
CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS 
 
Venue: Town Hall, The Crofts, 

Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham S60 2TH 

Date: Monday, 18th October, 2010 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended 
March 2006).  

  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Winter Changes to the Green Bin Collection (Pages 1 - 3) 
  

 
4. Contaminated Land Strategy Review (Pages 4 - 95) 

 
(A copy of Appendix B “Statutory Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy 
2010-13 Framework Document” is available in the Members’ Room) 

 
5. Area Assemblies - Devolved Budgets (Pages 96 - 106) 
  

 

 



 
 
 

1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 
Neighbourhoods 

2.  Date: 18th October 2010 

3.  Title: Trial Winter Changes to the Green Bin Collection 
Service 

4.  Directorate: Environment and Development Services 

 
 
5. Summary 
 
RMBC currently provide garden waste and cardboard to Yorkshire Horticultural 
Supplies Ltd (YHS) for composting via our green bin collection service.  YHS has 
brought to our attention that they are experiencing great difficulty during the winter 
months composting the feedstock provided as the majority is cardboard with little 
garden waste.  It is therefore proposed to halt the collection of garden waste for 3 
months (December 2010, January 2011, and February 2011) but continue to collect 
cardboard from the green bin.  This will not only help to alleviate the problems at YHS, 
but realise potential savings from gate fees during this time and allow us the possibility 
to sell the cardboard to re-processors. 
 
6. Recommendation 
 
That a trial be implemented to halt the collection of garden waste during 
December 2010, January 2011 and February 2011 but the collection of 
cardboard is continued during this period. 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



7. Proposals and Details 
 
The Streetpride service currently collects garden waste and cardboard via the Green 
Bin kerbside collection service from the majority of Rotherham households.  During 
2009/10 a total of 21,473 tonnes of garden waste and cardboard was collected from 
the kerbside for composting. The contract was awarded to Yorkshire Horticultural 
Supplies Ltd (YHS) in January 2008 for a total of 7 years.  YHS has recently brought 
to our attention that they are continuing to find it difficult to compost the feedstock 
provided during the winter months as it is predominantly cardboard especially after 
Christmas and New Year.  The card can be dealt with and composted during the 
summer months as it is mixed with the garden waste.  However, during the winter it 
could be dealt with far more effectively by recycling it rather than attempting to 
compost it.  We estimate that the percentage ratio of garden waste to card and other 
materials in the summer is approximately 60/40 and during the winter 10/90.  
Customer feedback from previous years has also indicated a preference for regular 
collections during Christmas and New Year due to the high levels of card produced for 
collection.  In addition, YHS has also proposed the temporary closure of Maltby 
Transfer Station during December 2010 to March 2011 which would require our 
collection vehicles driving to Finningley instead. 
 
It is therefore our proposal that by working with our new waste paper partner Newport 
Paper Ltd to hold a trial over the months of December 2010, January 2011 and 
February 2011.  The borough wide trial will include the halting of garden waste 
collection from the green bin but the continuation of cardboard collection.  During this 
period householders will be asked to ‘home compost’ using the Council’s special offer 
scheme or utilise the Household Waste Recycling Centres for any garden waste they 
produce.  Householders will continue to use their green bin for cardboard only and 
continue to present it on their normal collection day.  Streetpride will continue to collect 
the cardboard with the same vehicles and crews as normal but instead of taking the 
material to YHS for composting it will be delivered to the transfer station at KCM Skip 
Hire in Rotherham for onward recycling. 
 
Householders will be notified of the trial by a prominent sticker affixed to the lid of their 
green bin with further information available on the Council web site. YHS has agreed 
to pay for the production of this sticker. Domestic waste collection arrangements 
during Christmas and New Year will be advised separately. 
 
If the trial is successful, it will allow the opportunity to implement the winter changes to 
the Green Bin Service every year possibly for a longer period. 
 
8. Finance. 
 
In 2009/10 the amount of kerbside green bin collections equalled approximately 1750 
tonnes during December, January and February .The current gate fee at YHS is 
£18.86 per tonne for garden waste and cardboard.  Over the trial (3 months) we 
anticipate collecting approximately 1000 tonnes of cardboard.  We will not require the 
use of YHS over this period and therefore, will not be required to pay a gate fee. 
Newport Paper Ltd has indicated that they will pay £26 per tonne for clean mixed card 
taken into the transfer station at KCM Skip Hire in Rotherham.  The break down of any 
potential costs and savings is listed below: 
 

Page 2



Sticker: £4288 (to be paid for by YHS) 
 
Gate Fee Saving:  £33,000 
Card Sales:           £10,000 (@ £10.00 per tonne subject to quality) 
Total Saving         £43,000 
 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Should the cardboard be clean with only small amounts of contamination, Newport 
Paper ltd has indicated they will pay £26.00 per tonne. If the cardboard is lightly 
contaminated, Newport Paper Ltd has indicated they will pay between £0 and £10 per 
tonne.  If the cardboard is heavily contaminated with garden waste and makes the 
product un-saleable it will then have to be sent for composting away from the KCM 
site which may incur a charge up to £35 per tonne.  However, if this is the case we still 
have the contract option of taking the materials to YHS at Finningley at the current 
contract rate.  In addition, households may place garden waste into their domestic 
waste bin which may adversely affect recycling rates.   
 
 
10.  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The recycling of cardboard will help to achieve the following: 
 
Performance Indicators  
 
BV 82a (i) %age of household waste arisings which have been sent for recycling. 
BV 82a (ii) Total tonnage of household waste arisings which have been sent  
                  for recycling. 
BV 82d (i) %age of household waste arisings which have been landfilled. 
BV 82d (ii) Total tonnage of household waste arisings which have been landfilled. 
 
NI 191 – Residual household waste per household. 
NI 192 – Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling or composting. 
NI 193 – Percentage of Municipal Solid Waste sent to landfill. 
 
Waste Strategy 2007 set national targets for the reuse, recycling and composting of 
household waste – of at least 40% by 2010, 45% by 2015 and 50% by 2020. 
 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Nil. 
 
Contact Name: Dale Otter, Waste Management Officer, tel. ext 22185, 
dale.otter@rotherham.gov.uk. 
 

Page 3



 

 
 
 

1. Meeting: Cabinet Member For Safe & Attractive Neighbourhoods 

2. Date: 18 October 2010 

3. Title: RMBC Contaminated Land Strategy Review 

4. Directorate: Neighbourhoods & Adult Services 

 
5.   Summary 
 
All Councils are legally required under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 Part 2A to 
have in place a strategy on how contaminated land will be identified, inspected and 
investigated. 
 
The Council adopted a Strategy, in the prescribed format, in response to the statutory 
duty on the on 2nd July 2001.  The “Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy” has been 
reviewed in light of updated guidance which will enable land owners and developers to 
be more informed on the Council’s approach for identifying and inspecting such land.  
With completion of the review statutory and non statutory consultation is required.  
 
Further to the Strategy review the report also proposes the adoption of the Yorkshire 
and Humberside Pollution Advisory Council (YAHPAC) guidance  Development on Land 
Affected by Contamination: YAHPAC Technical Guidance for Developers, Landowners 
and Consultants (March 2010) as an assessment mechanism. This will also enable 
effective benchmarking to take place with other local authorities in the Yorkshire and 
Humberside region who have adopted the YAHPAC guidance. 
 
 
6.   Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Safe & Attractive Neighbourhoods; 
 
1. Approves the release of the draft Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy for 
consultation with Statutory Consultees and non-Statutory Consultees 

 
2. Requests a finalised Strategy for adoption be reported following consideration 
of consultee response 

 
3. Approves the adoption of the Development on Land Affected by 
Contamination: YAHPAC Technical Guidance for Developers, Landowners and 
Consultants 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 4Page 4



 

7.  Proposals and Details 
 
7.1 Background 
 

In April 2000, Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act (EPA) 1990 came into 
force and introduced a new regime for the regulation of contaminated land in 
England. Part IIA addresses the legacy of land contamination and its’ main purpose 
is to:  

• Provide an improved system for the identification of land that is posing 
unacceptable risks to health or the environment; and  

• Secure remediation where such risks cannot be controlled by other means. This 
would take into account the cost of risk reduction, practical considerations, and 
the potential benefits. Part IIA is intended to complement other regimes; for 
example those aimed at preventing new contamination.  

Local Authorities regulate part IIA and the key responsibilities for the Council 
include: 

• Preparation of an inspection strategy setting out how the Authority intends to 
inspect its area for the purpose of identifying contaminated land.  

• Determining whether particular areas of land are contaminated land in 
accordance with the Secretary of State’s guidance.  

• Identification and notification of owners and occupiers of the land, those who may 
be liable and the Environment Agency that the land is contaminated land and 
whether it is a Special Site.  

• Undertaking urgent remediation action where there is imminent danger of serious 
harm.  

• Determining who may be liable to bear responsibility for remediation of 
contaminated land and what proportion of the costs they should bear.  

• Ensuring that appropriate remediation takes place, either by encouraging 
voluntary action or, unless restrictions apply, by serving a remediation notice on 
those responsible.  

• Taking further action if remediation is not carried out or is not effective.  

• Maintaining a public register containing details of regulatory action taken under 
Part IIA and though other means.  

• Providing information on contaminated land under Part IIA to the Environment 
Agency to allow preparation of the State of Contaminated Land Report.  

This is added to by DEFRA Circular 01/2006, Environmental Protection Act 1990: Part 
IIA Contaminated Land, which lays out the criteria and requirements of the 

Page 5



 

Contaminated Land Strategy, including a requirement to undertake review of the 
strategy. 

7.2 Proposals 
 
It is proposed that the adopted Contaminated Land Strategy is updated to include: 
 

• New models of Investigation and Assessment are adopted consistent with other 
Councils in the region 

• Targets are adopted that reflect the current capacity of the Council 
• The review of the Strategy is considered for Consultation 

 
Recently the Yorkshire and Humberside Pollution Advisory Council (YAHPAC) 
developed the technical guidance paper Development on Land Affected by 
Contamination: YAHPAC Technical Guidance for Developers, Landowners and 
Consultants. This document is designed to assist developers, landowners and 
consultants wishing to re-develop or significantly change the use of land which could 
potentially be contaminated.  This guidance has been adopted by a number of Local 
Authorities and incorporated into their existing Contaminated Land Strategies including 
Barnsley MBC, Doncaster MBC, Hull CC, Leeds CC, Wakefield MBC and York CC. This 
guidance paper is attached to this report for information (Appendix 1). 
 
With this document in mind Rotherham’s Contaminated Land Strategy has been 
reviewed and updated to include the YAHPAC document as the reference document 
against which to undertake inspections and reviews. This will ensure that there is 
considerable regional consistency across Yorkshire which will ensure a level playing 
field and allow benchmarking to take place on a like for like comparative basis. 
 
This methodology would also benefit from annual reporting through to the Cabinet 
Member for Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods as a means to ensure that elected 
members are informed of progress and to enhance benchmarking against other regional 
Local Authorities that report annually on their Contaminated Land Strategies. 
 
It is proposed that the guidance Development on Land Affected by Contamination: 
YAHPAC Technical Guidance for Developers, Landowners and Consultants is adopted. 
 
The revised draft Strategy document revises the Inspection Strategy and covers the 
period 2010-2013 (see Appendix 2). Whilst national guidance and legislation does not 
provide for any specific performance targets, within Rotherham’s reviewed Strategy 
targets set that are reflective of the number of sites that the Council has the capacity to 
examine within a twelve month period.   
 
The draft Strategy has already been considered by Legal and Democratic Services and 
Planning Services, who have raised no concerns. 
 
It is proposed that if the draft Strategy is considered suitable then required Statutory and 
relevant non-Statutory Consultees are consulted with prior to adoption of the reviewed 
Strategy. This will fulfil the Council’s obligations in relation to reviewing and consulting 
upon its Contaminated Land Strategy. 
   

Page 6



 

8.  Finance 
 
Provision is contained within existing revenue budgets, however, it should be noted that 
where a contaminated site was identified requiring invasive investigation the costs of 
such works could exceed planned budget allocation. 
 
9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The receipt of any monies from Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs is 
not guaranteed. 
 
Budgetary pressures might have a negative impact on the Council's abilities to fully fulfil 
its statutory duties.  Failure to undertake statutory duties in relation to Contaminated 
Land presents the risk of legal challenge to the Council. 
 
Failure to achieve national objectives and targets will have a negative effect on the 
Council's ability to contribute to success in tackling contaminated land. 
 
There is a risk that if a site that requires urgent attention is identified or brought to the 
Council’s attention, then there might be failure against the set targets through 
prioritisation of capacity and finance to deal with the emergency. 
 
10.  Policy & Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The Community Protection Unit’s contaminated land work discharges the Council’s 
statutory duties in relation to contaminated land and contributes to the Corporate Plan’s 
objectives of; 

o Helping to create safe and healthy communities, and 

o Improving the environment 

 

In addition to contributing to the Community Strategy’s Sustainable Development 
cross cutting theme by protecting and enhancing the environment, the work also 
contributes to Rotherham Alive by ensuring a place where people feel good, are 
healthy and active, Rotherham Achieving by helping to improve the quality of life in the 
most deprived communities and Rotherham Proud by increasing the satisfaction in the 
local area as a place to live and putting pride in the hearts of our communities. 
 
In addressing the Rotherham Alive priorities contaminated land work contributes to 
delivering the following key Public Health strategic action: 
 

• Tackling Health Inequalities. 
 

Dealing with issues related to contaminated land has clear linkages to the seven 
outcomes of the Outcomes Framework for Social Care, and importantly includes: 
 

• Improved Health and Emotional Well-being, by promoting and facilitating the 
health and emotional well-being of people who use the services. 

 

Page 7



 

11.  Background Papers and Consultation 
• The Contaminated Land (England) Regulations 2000  
• The Environment Act 1995 
• The Environmental Protection Act 1990 
• Environmental Information Regulations 1992 
• Development on Land Affected by Contamination: YAHPAC Technical Guidance 

for Developers, Landowners and Consultants 
• DEFRA Circular 1/2006 Environmental Protection Act 1990: Part IIA 

Contaminated Land. HMSO, London. 
• Consultation with EDS Planning & Regeneration Services 
 

 
 
 
 
Contact Name:  
 
Bridget Corcoran:  Scientific Officer, bridget.corcoran@rotherham.gov.uk;  
Lewis Coates:  Community Protection Manager, lewis.coates@rotherham.gov.uk 
  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 8



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

���������	
��
�	��

��	������
���
����

��	
���	�
��	�
�
�
�

����	���������	���
�����������������
��	��	�����	�
��	���
�	
��

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�����������	������������
 ����
��	������������	����

�
�

!�����	�"#$�%�&�����"'$'�
�

Page 9



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �!�

���"�������	����������������
��	������������	����#������$����������������%�����
��� ��������
����
��&�������� ��� ��"� 
�%�
���� 
�� ���� �
�� �����
��	� ������� �
��	� 
���
��%��	'�������������
������������	���
�	����	������
��%�������
���� �
����%���
��
�	����	��	
��������
��	��	���	
���'��
�
���������	����� ������
����
�����������
����
���� �����������
��
����%���	����
�

� � �

� � �

� �
�

� � �

� �
�

� � �

�
� �

�
� �

�
�

�����������
�����%���	�������	
�	��
������������	��	�����
�����	������������������������'�(
�����	
�	��
������� �
����%���	����		�������
��
� ����������
�	�
�� 
��
� ��%����
��	��%���	����	�����
�������
�������� �	���
��������)��
� 
�����	%���	� 
������������������
� ������������	
�*+���������	����
�����
���'������	�
����������������	���	)�	�
��	� �
����������	%���%����
��	��	�%���	�������
���	���  ��
���� ��	
��	�� ����� ��� 	�
'� ,����� ��%����
��	� �	� �����	
�� ���� ���������� 
���� ��� ���� %�	����� ������ �	�
��	��	��	�����	����
�	�
�������������	��������������	����������
����
�
�����	
�����
�
��	'�*�
���
�����
����
��������	������
�����
���
�����	-�����	�� �	������ �	� 
��� ��������	
� ��� ��������	
� ��� ��	� ��	
���	�
��	� 
�� ������ ��.
�.�
��  ��"�	%� ����
����� 
��
�
����	��
�����	
���	�
��	��
�
����������
���	�
���������
��	��	���������
��	���/������	
�'�
�

���	����(��	
��
������
����� ������"��
����"	� ��%��
��������
�	�������������
�������� �	%���%�	���
��	�����
��������"����	�������
�������	���	�
���	����� �����%�
�� 0����%�� ���	����� ����� ��
�� ���	����� ������
�	� ���
���
� ���	����� ����� ��
�� ���	����� 1�����"� 2	����	��	
���
���
��
��	��������	�
���2���3���	
���	�
����	���	���
���'�

Page 10



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �4�

�

��	
�	
�� �(��
�
�

���������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��


��������������������������	���	������������������
������	���	�� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��

������������� !����"!	��#������������	�	��$	��
���������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��

�����%�!	��������	���	�����$	������������ ����������������������� ���

�����&�$����	��	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

�����'�(��	�	���	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

)�������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

�  ���	*��+*�� �����(���������+��)������
������	����������	���	������)����������������������������������������������������������� ���

�  ���	*%�!�����	������������������������	���	��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ �	�

�

�

�

Page 11



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �5�

�

)	
����
��	�
�
�
��	�������������
�������	
���	�
��	� �������
�	�������������	
� �	���	�����	��� 
���
��	�� �����������
�����������
�	
��������6������
������
�����
����	����	��	
'�7�������

���8�� ��	���	
���	�
��	����%�	�
�������������
�	%� �	��
��������������������
���9:
��
�	�!;
����	
���������
�
������������
�����
��������	�������	
������	���������
�'��
�
���������������
����%���	������
�������
��������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
�� ���
 ���� 
�� ��.������� ��� ��%	�����	
��� ���	%�� 
��� ���� ��� ��	� ��� �����	%��  ����� �����
��
�	
�����������	
���	�
�������	
�����������	��������	�����#��������	�3�9�$'��
�
���� %���	��� ����������  ��
� �	�����
��	� ������ ��� �����

�� 
�� 
��� ������ ���		�	%�
��
����
�'����� �����
����� �	���
�%�
��	�� �	
����������� ��	� ��	
���	�
��	� ������ ����� �

��� %�����	���  �
��	� ��<99� 7���� ���������� ���� 
��� 7�	�%���	
� ��� ��	�
��	
���	�
��	���	���	�� �
�������	
����
�����
���'�
�
*�������
�����������
��
����(���	�������������
�������
��	��������	���������		�	(�
�������
��	����	(��������������	���������		�	(��������
��	����	(�������#��
�
+���,�
������
����	
���	�
��	-�
���
��	� 
�������� ��	
���	�
��	����� "	� 	� 
�� ��� ��6������ 
�� ����	�����
���	� 
���
�	����	��	
'����������	��	
����������
��
��
����	����	%��������
�����
�����������
��	
���	�
�� ��
���  �
���
�� �
� 
��� ����� 
����� ��	�����	%� 
��� ���"�� 
��
� 
���
��	
���	�
��	�����
���� 
����"�� 
�����
�����
����� ���� �
��	� ������	� 
���	����� 
��
� �
�
����	�
������������
��	����
��� �����	����	��	
'�
�
���������	��������	
���	�
��	�����	�
�	����������������	
��	��	�����
��������"'�<��"�
�3��
��  ��	� �� ������� #�� ��	
���	�	
$� �	� �� ���	������� �����
��� #�'%'� ����	���
��	
������ �
�������
��� �����	����	��	
$���
���3��
��
�����
�� �
������
� �����	"�	%�

���
 �'���������"	� 	�����������
�	
���	"�%�'�=����3�����������	����	���������
�����
��	
���	�	
���	����������	%��
�	%���%�
������%�� 	��	�
�������'�������	
���	�	
��������
�����	
��	���������������������3����������������������%��������������
���'����������	
�
��	�����
�����"�����	
�����	%�	� ���
� �����	����������	
�����	%�	� ������
�����'%'�
����	
�����	%������	
��
������
�������
�������	
���	�
��	'�
�
,����� �� �������� ��������	
� �	
������� �� ���	������� �	� ���� �	-��� 
���
��������	
���
���������������	������
����������������
�	
��������	
���	�
���� ��	�
���� #���� ����	�3� 90$�� 
��� ���������
�� ��� ��	� ��	
���	�
��	� ������ �� ���� ���
��	�����'�
�
�������	���.��/����	������
��
���� ���	���8�� �����	������
��  �
�� ������
� 
�� ��	� ��	
���	�
��	� ����� 
����%�� ��
�� 
���
���		�	%����������	����
�!�����
���2	����	��	
������
��
��	���
�9::;'��
�
 ��
�"��
��	� ��	
���	�
��	� ������� 
��
� ���� 	�
� ���
�  �
�� 
����%�� 
��� ���		�	%� �������� ����
���
� �
�� 
����%�����
� !����� 
���2	����	��	
������
��
��	���
�9::;'������ ��%����
��	�
����������
���	����	����� 
�� �	���
�%�
��������
�	
��������	
���	�
����
��� �
��	� 
�����

Page 12



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �>�

��
���
�� �	� 
�� ������� ����	.��� ��� 
��� ��	
���	�
��	� ��� ����� 
�� ��� �����	%�
�	�����
��������"�
����������������
������
����	����	��	
'��
�
 ��		�	(�
������������
������		�	%������������
���	�����
��
���	�����������
����������
����������
��
�������'��
�
���� ���		�	%� �������
��	�� ����� 
�� ��� ��	������ ���� ��
�	
���� ��	
���	�
��	� ������� 
��
�	������������	��� �
�� 
����� 	��	����	
������		�	%���
�9::;��	� �
�����		�	%�
�������1
�
���	
�!4�#��1!4$� ������
�
���
��
� ���������	�
������������������������
�����
��������������������������������������
�����	���������������
������������������
������������ ������
��������������������	�������� �� ����� ���������
���� ����������������
���� �����
������ ��
�� ��!�������� ��� ��� ��
�����	� ��� ����������������� ���� ���������
�����������
������
����"��
�
&	��	����
�� �����
��������
�����
�	
����������	
���	�
��	�
���	����	���
�����
������ �����

��� �������� ��������	
� ��� ���	�������� 
��� ���		�	%� &�������  ���� ��	���
�  �
�� 
���
���	���8����	
���	�
����	�&������'�����&������� ���� 
��	��������
����������
��	��	�
���� �������	� 
��
� ���
���� �	�����
��	� ��� �����

��� ��� ���		�	%� ��	�
��	�� ���
����������	�
�����������	
�
���	�����
��
�
�����
�� ����������
������	����������
���
�	��������
����	����	��	
��	�
���������'�
�
0����

�	(��� ��		�	(���������
��	�1������������	
�2����������.��/����	������
��
,������� ��������	
� ��� ��������� �
� ��� 
��� �����	������
�� ��� 
������������ 
�� �	�����

��
�������������	���	
���	�
��	��������������
������	�������
��
�������
��	�# �����
	��������$� 
�"����������	� 
��
� 
��� ��	� ��� ������	� ?���
����� �������8� �'�'� 
�����
�� ���
����	�����
���������� �����������������
������
������������	����'�
�
(
����
�����������8�������	������
��
���	�����
��
�
����	���
�%�
��	������	���	
���	�
��	�
#������� 9� 
�� 5$� ��� ������� ��
� ��� �� ���
����� /�������� �����	�  �
�� �3�����	��� �	�
��	
���	�
����	��'�'��	��	����	��	
�����	���
�	
'��
�
1���� ��� 
��� 	�
��	��� ���		�	%� �������
��	� ������ #9���$� �	����� �� ���
��	� �	� ��	�
��	
���	�
��	'�����23��
�	%�*������
��	������
����@���
��	�9>��9A�����9:�����	�	%��	�

���������	
�9������������'���������
��	���/������
����������	
�
����	
�������
����������
��
�	
���� ���� ��	���	
���	�
��	��
� 
�����
����� ��������	����������� ������	%� �	
�����'�
�������	
�����
� ������ 
��� /���
��	�� �	� 
��� 23��
�	%� *��� ���
��	� #��� 	� ��������$�
 ��	��������	%������		�	%��������
��	'�
�
�
�

��
��

��
��

Page 13



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �A�

34���������
���34��
�	(�5���0��
��	������
���0
�	���$�  �*����
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
)��
����	�����
���	�����
���6���
��	���	�
���34��
�	(�5���0��
��	����7���.��
��	��	�
���������
�� ��	
���	�
��	� ��������	
� ���
� ��� �����

�� ��
�� 
��� ���		�	(�
�������
��	'� ��� �� ��	����� �� ��	
���	�
��	� ��������	
� ���
� �	����� �� ������ 9�
�	���
�%�
��	��  ����� ��	���
�� ��� �� ��"
��� �
���� �� ��
��  ��"����� �	� �	� �	�
���� ���"�
��������	
�#������%��B����� ���
�����
����$'�����	�	%��	� 
���	�
������� 
�����
�������
���� ����
����	
��
�
������	���8����	
���	�
����	�&����������������'�
�
(�����������������	%��	��	������������	
����������
��#�'���	���������	���%���	$��

��������	�	%���������	
� ����� �	�����	�3�!���	���������������������	
���	�
��	�
��������	
'� ���� ����� %����� ���� 
����%�� 
��� ��������	
� ��������� �	� ���������
��������
�����
��
������	�
���������	����
�� ��
������	���	
���	�
��	�����	������'�(��	��
��
�	
���� �������� ��� ��	
���	�
��	� ���� ��	
������ 
��	� 	�� ���
����  ��"� ��� ��/�����
#���	�	
��	������ ��	��%�����	
���� 
������	���8����	
���	�
����	�&������$'� (��
��
�	
���� �������� ��� ��	
���	�
��	� ���� ��	
������ 
��	� ���
���� �	���
�%�
��	�  ���� ���
��/������	�������������	
��
� 
������	���8����	
���	�
����	�&������� ���������'�
������� �	����� 
��
� 
��� �����	�	%� ��������	
� ����� ��� �����

��  �
�� ����� ���		�	%�
�������
��	'�

��	�����������	��	�
�����
��	
���	�
��
����� �����	�������
��������	
��	���	� ���������
"	� 	���	
���	�
��	������	���	�
 ��������"	� 	�
����������
�����
��	
���	�
��	'�

��	���������	
���	�
��	����
������
����������������
����
���
��
��
����� �����	�������
��������	
��	����	������	��
 ����������������
�	
������
��	
���	�
�������'�=��
����
�	�����
��	��	���
�	
����
��	
���	�
������
���
������	����
���	��	�����	�3�90'�

��������������
��
���������
���	�������8��������	�4�$�9�

��
��������	������
��	
���	�
��	�
=��������	
���������	%���
���� ����
�	������	����������	
�����	��
�������� ����	%�'�(
����������
	�
��
��
���	
���	�
��	����	�
�
���
���
��
����	� �
�����������
�	��
��������C��
���	��������	�
%���	�������
������ �������
���������������������	'����

Page 14



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �D�

�

*��������
�����
��� �����)	���
�(�
��	������	������
�����
��	
���	�
��	�

�
�����	���
�%�
��	����������	
��	�����	����#������
��	$������	���	
���	�
��	���	����
����
� �	
�������������� ������������� ��������������	
�� �	� 
��� ��� �����
����� '�������
������� ������ ��� ����� �� �	� ����� 
�� ��	
���� ��	
���	�
��	� �	�������� �� ������ ����
����	%� ��
���
��	��	���
�����
�"�	�
����"������
��E���
������������F'� ������	�
��

��
�	�
���������
���������6�����������������
��������������
#��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

)��
���������
�	
��������
��	
���	�
��	-�

)��	���������������
������

�	�������	(�
�
��
�(��
��
��������� ��		�	(���
����
������

��������#�

0)�3�05)��,�3��
*:/�503�

;�����
������
��	�
��6�����

 �����"�1�0�
��)	���
�(�
��	��	�/������������	
�8�#$'9�
0����
�
�����	�	(��
��
��������� ��		�	(���
����
���	���

 �����"�/����
#�

 �����$�1�����
���0
����0�
��+���������	�)	�
����/������������	
�8�#<9��
0����
�
�����	�	(��
��
��������� ��		�	(���
����
���	��� �����$�/����
#�

)��
������	��	�����
������������������
������
���

����	����	��	
�����������
�-�

;��

�
����

�

����

�

;��

�

 �����=�%�/�����
��	�8�#$=9�
��/�����
��	�0
��
�(�����
���������

��
����	��(��������
���
������ ��		�	(���
����
����������	��
���	(�/�������+����#�

 �����>�%!�������
��	�8�#$?9�
0����
���!�������
��	�/����
�
��
��������� ��		�	(���
����
��
��
��	�����
��
�
���/�������+�������������������
��	�������	���

��
��
����(����/�����
��	�0
��
�(�#�

0)�3�05��300*5����/3&3�)��3��
+��	�
��������� ��		�	(���
����
�������
������
��
�
���

������
��	���6������	
����������	����������
��������	������
��
������	��	����
�	(#�

Page 15



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �B�

�

 �����$�%�����
���0
����0�
��+���������	�)	�
����/����
��������	
�
�
�����������������������9���������	
� ��� 
����
��	���%����	���
�	�	%������ ��
�8��
���
������
����

�	%��	��
����
�	
����
����������	
���	�
��	'�=�������
�����	�
��
��
����
���������
��	�
������������		�	%���
����
��������	%������		�	%��������
��	����������
�	
�
�	�����
��	��������������'�
�
������9�� ������������
�������������
���������	
���	�
��	���������	
����	���
�������
��"
����
��������
�� ��"������	��	��	�
�������"���������	
� �
��
�����	�	%����������
�	� �� ������ 9� �����
'� ���� �����
�� ��� �� ������ 9� ��������	
�  ���� �
����	�� ��� ���
����
�	���
�%�
��	������/����'�
��
����
���0
���
�� ��"
��� �
��� ��� �� �
����� ������� ��� ���������� ���
������� �	� �����	
� ������� �	�
����� 
�� ��	
���� ��
�	
���� �	.��
�� �	� ���.��
�� �������� ��� ��	
���	�
��	'� (
� ������
�	������	�����
��	��	��

�� 1�
������
��	��	���

�	%�#�	����	%�����
�����	$'�
�� �����	
���	������	���	��	�
�������	�
�����
�����
�'�
�� ���
������� ��	� ���� �	�� �	� �	� 
��� ����	�
�� ��� 
��� ��
�� ��
��	�� ����� ��������

���������	����	%����
�������������	�����
�����'�
�� 7�	�	%����/������	%���
���
���'�
�� �����������	
���	�
��	�
��
�������������	
'�
�� ��
��������������%�����������
��	��	���	
�'�
�� 1������	��	�����	%�%����%�'�
�� 2����%���	����������%�'�
�� ����	 �
����	��������� �
��'�
�� ����
��	���������

����	�����

���	��3���
� ��
����
��'�
�� ���
���
��	��	�������%������	���'�

�
0�
��+���������
����
�� ��"����������������������	��
�"�	�
����	������	���������	�
����	�����
��	�
%�
��������
�����"
����
��'�&������
��	�������������������
�	%�
���

�� ������
�8�������
��	�
�����	���

�	%�#�	����	%��	�����
��	��	�
��������	����	�
��	�
��	���������.%���	������ 
�	"���	���	������������
����� ��
����
������
�	�
����
���%�������6���������������$'�

�� ������	�
��	����
�����
���	��
���
����'�
�� G��������������������	��������	
���	�
��	�
�� 1�%	�������%�
�
��	���
����'�

��
)	�
����/������������	
�2���	���
����0�
��&����
��
��� ������	%� ��
� �� �
����� ��"
��� �
��� �	� ��
��  ��"����� �������� �	� �	�
����
��	���
���� ��
�� ����� ������ ��� �������'� �� ��	���
���� ��
�� ����� ��� �������� ��
��%���� ��� 
����� 
��
� �����
��
��� 
��� ��
�	
���� �����
�	
� ��	"�%��� �
� �� ��
�'� (
� ������
�	�����
�������� �	%��
�%�
���� �
���
������������
�
��	���	�������
��	�-�	���
��	
�����

�� 0�����������	����
�	
��������%	�����	
���	
���	�
��	��'%'�
�	"�����	��������	�����
��
��'�

��  �
������
����%�� �������	
���	�	
����	�
�������'%'�����
���	
��
�����������'�

Page 16



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �:�

�� /����
����
��
���
���
������	���������
�����
�����	
���	�
��	��'%'������	
�����
%���	 �
��'�

�
������� 	�
�� 
��
� 	�
� ������ �������  ���� ��� ��	"�� 
�� ������ �����
��� 
����%�� ������
��
� ��'�
�
���� ��	���
���� ��
�� ����� ����� �	����� �	� �	�
���� ����� ��������	
� 
�� ��� �����
����������� �	���
�����
������ �����"� �	���
�(�
��	� �����6����#�������	���
����
�����������������������	��������
����(��
��� ���������������	�����
��	�
���(�
����#�

�
�� �����$������
���	
��	�	(�
����	�����
��	����
���	�
�����������
����������
����
�����

�� 
��� �	� �������� ���� 
��� ������  ��		�	(� ��
����
�� ,3*:/3�
�������	(�
��
���	�4
������#��
�
�
��������
������� �����$�/����
�
��
� ����
���0
����0�
��+���������	�)	�
����/������������	
�

�
)	����-�

9� ���������	����������
��� �
!� 1�
������
��	��	������
����	�� �
4� ���������������
�����
�����	����������������	�	%���	�����������
�

����
�
������
�9>;�������� ��������������#
���	������������������
�����
���	�� �������������$'�H�
�����������������
���������������������	�
������	
���������
����
�������'�

�

5� ��������	
����
����	����	��	
�����

�	%���	����	%��
�� �����%�������%����%���������%��
�� (	�����
��	��	������ ��"�	%���	��
������	�	%����/������	%�

��
���
����
�� (	�����
��	������
���2	����	��	
��%�	����	� �
���

���
���
��	��������
��	��	���	
���	���	�������
����
���
�� (	�����
��	������
������	�����	����������	�������
���������
��

 �
�������������	���	���	
���	�
��	��
��

�

>� ��������	
����
��������	
��	�����������
���������	�������	�	%�
��	������

�

A� ��������	
�����	�������������	���	
���	�
��	������
��#��".�����
����	
������$������������ ��"��

�

D� ��	���
������
�������#������-
��������	� ��

�	$� �
B� <��"� ��������	
� ����� �	� �������� ��������	
�� �	����	%� �	�

���������� ��� ��
���� �	-��� ��
�	
���� ��	
���	�	
� ��������� ��
� ����
�	������
�����

�

:� <������	�
��	�������	
��������	���
�%�
��	� ��"�����	����������
�
����	%���
��	��������	�
��������������%	����
����	���
�%�
��	'�

�

�
�
 ������ 	�
�� 
��
� 
��� ���������	� ��� �� ����������� �	����	��	
��� �������
8����������0�
��������3	����������������������������	������
�9��	��
����	�
���	�
���������	
�
�����
�
�����6������	
������� �����$������
#������������
������
��	
����
������������
�����	�����
��	�����
�
�����
����
���	�
���	
��	�
������������
�	
�����
�
��	���6����������������������$����
����
��#��

Page 17



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �9;�

�

 �����"�%�0�
��)	���
�(�
��	��	�/������������	
�
�

�
(��������9��	���
���
��
�
������������
�	
����������	
���	�
��	����������!��	���
�%�
��	�
 ���� ��� ��/����'� ������ !� ���������� ��
�� �	���
�%�
��	� �	� ���"� ��������	
�� 
��
�
����	��  ��
���� 
����� ���� �	�� �	�����
����� ���"�� 
�� �������� ������
�� ��� 
���
�	����	��	
'��
�
0�
��)	���
�(�
��	�
�� ��
�� �	���
�%�
��	� ������ ��� ���%	�� 
�� �
����	�� 
��� 	�
���� �	� �3
�	
� ���
��	
���	�
��	� ����� �
� ��������	
��	������������ ����� �
� �������	
'� (
� ��� �����
�	
� 
��
������ 
�� 
��� ��	���
���� ��
������� ������
�� �	� ������ 9�� ��� 
����  ���� �	����� 
��
� ����
��������� �����
�	
� ��	"�%��� ���� �	���
�%�
�'� (	���
�%�
��	�� ������ ��� ������� ��
� �	�
������	��� �
��019;9D>��01>:4;��������	
�2����������	���<99'�
�
�	��������������������������� �
����	-���%���	�%��������������/�����
���������
���
��	
���	�
��	��
�����
�'��������	�
��
��
�
���������	�������������������%���	�%�����
������ �������
��	�
����� �	�����	���
���
���'�0�������%�	�����

��� ������ ���
�������
��	���	�� ��� �
� ���� 
��� ��
�	
���� 
�� %�	���
�� ��
��	�� �	� �����	� ��3���� ��� ��
���
����
�� �	� 
��� ����	�
�� ��� ������� 
���� ���� ��� �
� ���"� ����� %���	� %����'� =��
����
�	�����
��	� ��� ���������� �	� 01B5B>�� �(<(�� �AA>�� H�0�� ����	��� �	� 2�����
��	� ���
���������	
������������	�1�
��� �����7�
��	���	������	����3������������	
��	�

�������
����(	�
�
�
�����2	����	��	
�������
�8��������	���"'��
�
��������������
�� �	���
�%�
��	� ��"������������������ �	���������	%��
��
�%���	�
�����

�� 
�� 
������������		�	%���
����
�� ������������'�����������	%��
��
�%��������
�	�����
�������� �	%��	�����
��	���
�

�� �������������	���)��
�������� 
��� �	���
�%�
��	� �������
���	� 
������������ 
���
��	���
������
��������	�
����	�����
��	�%������%���%�
�����	%�������9'�

�� &������ � ��� 
��� �	
�	�� ������	%� I� �	����	%� �	�����
��	� �	� )��
�����
��	� ���
�����������
��	�����
������

��	���	�	��������	�
������/��	����	����
��	�
���������	%������	�
���	%�
������	��
�"�	'�

�� 1�����	%��	-�����	�
���	%���
����
��������'�
�� ������	
���	�	
���	�������
����
��
� ��������������'�
�� ������"����	�����������������#������ �
����	-���%���	�%��$�
��
� �������
�"�	�

���������/��	
�������
�����	������'�
�� ���� ������
���� ��
���� 
��
�  ���� ��� ���'� ������� 	�
�� 
��
� �	���	�	
���

������
�� ������
������ �	� �	���
����� ��
���� ������ ��� ���� #�'%'� *+�1��
7�2<�1$'�

��
)	� ����� ������ �� ���

�	� ������	(� �
��
�(�� 8������ ��� �����9� ����� 	��� 
�� ���
�����

�� 
��� �	� �(���� ���� 
��� ������  ��		�	(� ��
����
�� ������� 
���
�����	����	
� ��� ��
�� �	���
�(�
��	� �����#� ����� ��� ���
� ������	
� ���� ���(�� ���
������4� ��
��� ��
�� �������� ��	
���	�
��	� ������#�  ������ ��	
��
� ����� ������
 ��		�	(���
����
��
���������
�������6������	
�#�
���
/������������	
�
��
��� ��������� ��� 
��� 1�����	%� 1
��
�%��� ��� 	���������� �	� ������
��	� ��� 
��� ��
��
�	���
�%�
��	�  ��"��� 
��� ��	���
���� ��
�� ����� �������� �	� ������ 9� ������ ���

Page 18



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �99�

����� ���	����
�'�(
���������
�	
�
����	������������
�	
���������
�	
���	"�%�����	%�

������"���������	
��	������ ��
���� �
� �����
�����
� 
�����
���	� ��
���� �
�����
���
��
�	
����
�������
��������
��'��
�
�������	(�/����
������	�����
��
��
��������������
����
���
�	%����"��������������� ���	�����	%�
�������
����������	�
��
 ��	� �������� ������� ��� ��	
���	�
��	� �	� ����
��� ��	����� ��������	
� ���
�����
#���$������ �����1�
��1����������������	
����
�����#11��$����������	��������'��
�
���� ���
� ��� ������ ����� ��
����
�
���� ��������� �������'� (�� ������� ����� �
����
���	
��������������
�������
�������
��
���	�����
��
�
��������������	
�
��*+��������
�	��	����	��	
'�J��
�����
��	����
������������
���������������'�
�
(�� 
��� �������� ������� ��� ��	
���	�
��	� �3���� 
�������� 
��	� ������� �
����� ��
�.
������������"���������	
������/����'�������	�������
����������
��	����11������	%����".
������	%'� ���� ��	
���	�
�� ��	� 23������� ��������	
� #��2�$���
�����%�� ��� ��
%����	��	
�������
����
�����%�� 
��
���	�������� 
����
���
�� 
��� ���"�� 
���������
�������	
���	�	
���	�����'���������	�����
��
�
��������	
�������	����
�����2�����
 ����
��������
�
���
����������������	�#����"�
���2	����	��	
��%�	��� ����
�������
����$'���
	�����������
��	�
�������"���������	
����������������������	����	%�<(1���	�<0��'�
������� �	����� 
��
� ���������� ���� �	� ��	�� �
��*+� ������� �	� �	����� ���� ��
�� ���������
�����
�	
� ��	"�%��'� ���� ���".�����	%� ������
��	�� �	� �	���
��	
���� ���
� ����� ���
�����	
���	�������	��'��
��
�������	(�/����
����	
������+�
����
��	
������  �
���� �	������ ��
� ���� 	�
� ����
�� 
��� %���	 �
���� �������� �
������ �	�
��
������'� (	�����
��	�
�� ��	���	
���	�
��	��	�
������		�	%���%�����
���2	����	��	
�
�%�	��� ���� ��� ��"�� ��� 
��� ������ ���		�	%� ��
����
�� 
�� ��
� ��� �� ��	���
��� �	�
��������������	����"��
����	
������ �
���'�����2	����	��	
��%�	��8�����	��������
��
���
��
��	�����������	
������ �
���'��
�
���� ��������-�������	
� ������ ������� ��������	
� �	�����
��	� 
�� ������� 
��� ���"�� 
��
��	
������ �
���'�������
����
�����
���	���
�%�
��	�
�����������������������	
���	�	
��
������ ��� �������� 
��  �
��� /����
�� �
�	����� ���� �3������ �	����	��	
��� /����
��
�
�	���� #2@1$�� ��	"�	%�  �
��� �
�	���� #�,1$� �	� ���
���� ���"� ��������	
� ���
������
��	����������/����'���
�
=��
���� ������ �	� �����	
�� ���� ���������� �	� 
��� 2	����	��	
� �%�	���  ����
��
#   '�	����	��	
.�%�	��'%��'�"$'��
�
�������	(�/����
��:
����/����
����
�����������	��������"��
�������	%����
���
������������������
��"���������%��������
���'�
(	� ��
��
��	��  ����� ����� �����
���� ����� ���	� ��	
����� �	� �����
�	
� ��	"�%���� ������
��	���
�
��	�  �
�� 
��� ���������
�� ��
����
�
���� ���� #�'%'� 2	%����� H�
����� 2	%�����
����
�%�$���������'��
�
(	�1��
������!;;B�
���2	����	��	
��%�	������	�����
8��2����%�����<��"���������	
�
=���� ��"'� ����� ����� ��"� �������� �� 
����� ��������� 
�� �������	%� 
��� ���"�� �����
��	���	
���	�
��	�
����%�	�������	��������� �����������
���'�=��
�����	�����
��	����
�����������	�
���2	����	��	
��%�	��� ����
��#   '�	����	��	
.�%�	��'%��'�"$'�
�

Page 19



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �9!�

&	�������
��	����
������"���������	
�������������������	�
��	�����������������

�� ��
����������4� ��"�� ���������/�����
����"��
�����
��E���
������������F'����
�
�� �����"������
���	
��	�	(�
����	�����
��	����
���	�
�����������
����������
����
�����

��
����	�������������
��������� ��		�	(���
����
��,3*:/3�
�������	(�
��
���	�4
������#�
�
�
��������
������� �����"�/����
�
��
� 0�
��)	���
�(�
��	��	�/������������	
�

�
)	����-�

9� <���� �����	�������������	���	
���	�
��	������
������������� ��"�� �
!� 1�
���	���
�%�
��	���
�����%����	����	%���

�� 7�
��������	���
�%�
��	��	�)��
�����
��	�
�� ���	���� �	%�������	%�����
��	���	�)��
�����
��	��������
��	���
�� 1�����	%��	��	���
������
��
�%����

�

4� <����
���	���	�	%�����
����	���
�%�
��	���	����	%���
�� ����	� ��	�
��	�� #������ %��� �	�  �
��� ��%������ �	�� ����

%���	$��
�� 0�������-
�������
���%��
�� ���������	� ��� ����-%��- �
��� ��	
���	�
��	� #�	�� ��������

�����
������	���
������	���	�
���	%��
�$�

�

5� *��
����	���
������
���������	����	%������	
���	�
����������	��
�����������9�

�

>� <��"���������	
�������	���	
���	�	
.��
� ��.�����
�������'�
1�����
�"�������	
����������
�������	��/��	�����	���"����������
�������	��'�J��
�����
��	�����	�����"���������	
����������'���
�
�����/��	
�
�
�������"���������	
����������/�����

�

A� <������	�
��	������������
��	�I�)��
�����
��	�����������
��
��
����������
���	���������"���������	
���	�	%���
���	������	�
��	�	�����������������	���	%�
������	�
���	%���/������	
��

�

D� <������	�
��	���������
�����	���
�%�
��	�����	��������� �
�

Page 20



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �94�

�

 �����=�%�/�����
��	�
�

�
������4� ��"���"	� 	����������
��	���	�������
���?����	���8����
�����
��
���	�����
��
�

�����	�������������	
� ������
������������'�<�����
��	���	� 
�"����	����������'%'�
�����������
���������������	
���	�
��	������"�	%�����
� �������	���
�	%������������
���
�	�����	
��������
����������'�
�
&	��������	���
�%�
��	��	����"���������	
� ��"��������	�������
�������������	��
�	�������!���� ������
��	��
��
�%�� ��� ��/����� 
����������

�� 
�� 
������������		�	%�
��
����
�� ���� ���������� ������ 
�� ������
��	�  ��"� �����	��	%'� ���� �
��
�%�� ���
�
���������
�
�� ��
����%��	%�
�������	��	���
��
��������
�����	
���	�
��	�������� �
��
���	�
�� �	��
�"�	%�� ��� ������� 
�� ��
��	� ���������'� (
� ���
� ����� ��	
���� �� � 
���
 ��"�� ��������������� 
�����	�
��
���� �����������
�	
� ��	"�%���������	����"�	����
��	
�����'�<�����
��	� �������������
� 
�"�������	
� ��� �	�� ��������
����
�� ���������
����
�	%�
��������
��	��	-�����������
��	'�
�
:�@��
�����
����������
��	��
��
�%�����������������
�
��
�����)��
��������
��� ��"��
������������
��
��	����	%���������)��
�����
��	����
�� ���
��
����
���������
����������	������	'����
�����������
�����
�� �	���
�%�
��	-������������	������
����	%�
���	�
�����	��3
�	
�
���
�����	
���	�
��	����	� ��������
������������
����%��
����������� ��"�'�
�
+�����
���
������3���	�
��	���� 
����3��
� ��"�� 
������	��
�"�	����
����%���	����	%� �
��

����������
�����%����� 
�������������
��������'������������� �	�������
�����	���	�
�� �	%��
���	���
��
���������
�����������
�'����
��������
�����
����	������������

�����
������ �	������������������	�� �����
����
�����������������������
����
������

�������.�����	���
���	� ��
��������������
��	����
���������%���	'���	����
�������
��
��� ����  �
��	� 
��� ������
��	� ���
� ����� ��� �
����� ���	%�  �
�� ��	����
������
���������
��	���'%'�%���������	����%��.
�3
������������'��������%������
�������������

������
���	�����
����/������	
�'������
�������� 
��������	�����������	�� ��� �������
�	��
�"�	%��	����������	%�
��� ��"����
����������'�
�
!�������
��	�
��
��������
�����	������	��� �������
��	� ��"�� ���������������
�����	�
��
��
��
�

��� ������
��	� ���� ���	� ����������'� <������� 
��%�
� ���
����� ���� ��/����� 
�� �
�
��
 ��
� ������� ��� �	������� ��	
���	�	
�� ��	� �����	� �	� ��
��  �
���
� ����	%� �	�
�	�����
��������"�
���	�������
���'��������"���������	
����"�%������
��������
�����
���
��������
�����
�������	����	%�
����	��
��	���
��
��
������
�'������������������
��
������"���������	
�
������������������ �������������	�����
��
������������������%	��

��*+���������	��������������
������
�����
�'�������	���
�������������������������

�����	�
��
���� �����
��������
�	
���	"�%��������	
� �������������'�
�
,������������������
��	������������� 
�����
�"�	��
��� ����
��	���� 
�������������������
��� ��	
����� �	� �	�����  �
��	� 
��� ������
��	� �
��
�%�'�,����� %���	� ��� ��������
 �
���� ���� 
�� �����	�
����� 
��� ����
��	�� ��� ������	%� ���	
�����
� ��� �������� �
�
�'��
����2	����	��	
��%�	��� ��������	������ ��	��%����	%��������	����	���������	
�
���	
�'�
�

Page 21



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �95�

1���� ��
��� ���� ��/����� ��	%� 
���� ��������
��	� ��	�
���	%'� ���� �3��
� 
���������� ����
�������	%�
���������
��	����
��������
�������������
�
���	�
���������
��	��
��
�%�'�(
�
 ���� ��� �	�����	����� 
�� ���� � ��������
��	� 
�� ��	
�	��� ���� �� ��	%
��� ������ ��� 
����
 �
���
��	���������	
����
������%����'�(����	%�
����%���	 �
������������ �
������%���
��	�
���	%� ��� ��/������ �
����� �	� 
���������� ��� �	
����� �����
�� ���� ����� ��� ��/�����
�	����	%��	
�������������
��	����
����'�
�
&�
�(�
��	�
7������������ ����� ����� 
�� ��� �	�������
�� �
��	� 
��� ��������	
� �
����� 
�� ���
��
�
��
���������� ������	����
�	
���� ��	
���	�
��	���'%'� �� �����������
�� %���������	����
��������������"� �������������	%����
�������������� 
����������	"�	%� �
����������
�'�����
�������/������	
��������������������
������	�
���������
��	��
��
�%�'�
�
����	����
��
��������
�����	��	
���	�����	������/���������
���������
��	�����������	������	�

��� ������
��	� �
��
�%�� �'%'�  ��
�� ��	�%���	
�� ���
���
��	-������%�� ����	���'��
��	�����
��	���������������%���	�
����
��	������	��������	
������	�
�����	
�������
�	������������	.��������� ����� ��������
��"�������
�'�
�
��	
�	(�	���&��������
1����� 
��� ������
��	� ��� �	����������� ��� �	�	
�����
�� ��	
���	�
��	� ��� ���	�
���	%� 
���  ��"��� 
����� ���� ��� �� ��/������	
� ���� ��	
�	%�	��� ��������'� ����
������
��	��
��
�%���������	������	��	��
�"�	%��
����	%�
��
����������������
�	����
������ �
����� ��� 
��� ���
����  ��"�� ��/�����  ���� ��� �����

�� 
�� 
��� ������ ���		�	%�
��
����
�� ���� ��������� ��� ���		�	%� ��
����
�'� �� 
��������� ������ ����� ��� �	����� 
��
�
�
�� ��	�
�����	
�	%�	����
����� ������������

�'�
�
/�����
��	���������	��	��������	����	���
���/�����
��	�0
��
�(���������	�
�����

�� 
�� �	� �(���� ��� 
��� ������  ��		�	(� ��
����
�#� ���� /�����
��	�
0
��
�(���������	�����
����	�����
��	����
���	�
�����������
������#��
�
��������
������� �����=�/����
�
�
� /�����
��	�0
��
�(�� )	����-�
9'� &�)��
��������
���������
��	� ��"�� �

!'� ��
�������
��	����� ��"��
��������������
���	����	%��
�� �������
��	����%���	���	�
��	��#������%���� �
��$�
�� ������������	������������	
���	�
��	�
�����������
��
�� <�����
��	���
�����%����	����	%�������������
��
�������

�
���� ��"��
�� 1�
�����	�-�� �	%��
�� �����	%���� ��"���	����	%������3���
��
����������

�

4'� ��	��	
����%�����	
��������
���	�����	����#������%����	��	
���
 ��
����	�%���	
�����	�����
�'$�

�

5'� 1�
����	�%���	
�����������
�����
��
���
��	��%���������	����	��	
�
�	����	�
�����	%� ��"�'�,��������������
���	���������
���	�
����
�����
-	����-�������	
������	�
�����	
�����������������	.���'��

�

>'� G�������
��	��
�������	����	%��
�� 1�����	%��
��
�%��
�� ����������	������-��	�
���	%��
��
�� ��������������
��	�
��%�
����
�����
�� �	��������
����������������������
��	��������������
��

�

A'� ��	
�	%�	������������ �

�

Page 22



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �9>�

 �����>�%�!�������
��	�
�
�
������5� ��"��������"	� 	������������
��	�������	��
�"�	������ �	%�������
��	'�����
�����������
����	
����
���������������
��� �������
����� ��"���	�
����	
���� ��
����
�	�� ���
���� ������
��	� ��� ���"���	�%���	
���������� ���� 	��������� 
�� �	����� 
���
��
��������
����������
���	
�	�����'�
�
&	�������
��	����
���������
��	� ��"������������
��	������
������/�����
����������

��

��
������������		�	%���
����
�'������ �����
����
���������
��	��	���������
��	��������
��
�  �����  ���� ����� ������� ���	� �%����  �
�� 
��� ������ ���		�	%� ��
����
�� �	� 
���
�����
�� 
�� �
����	��  ��
���� 
��� ������
��	� ���
����� ����� ���	� �������'� ,�����
��	%��� 
���� ��	�
���	%� ��� ��/������ �'%'� %���	 �
��� ��� %��� ��	�
���	%�� �	� �	
�����
�����
���������������

���
����	%�����
�����������
��	� ��"��	��
�"�	�
���
�'�,�����

�����
�8��������
��	����
����������	�
����	���
��
����
��������
�����	
�	%�	��� ��"��
���
�����	������
������������������������
�����
�����/��	
�
�
�������"���������	
��
���������������
��	� ��"�������
�%�
��	���������������3�����'�
�
:�@��
�����
���� ��������
��	� �����
� ������ �	����� 
��� �
����� �	� ��)��
����� ��� 
��� ������
��	���
 ��"���	��
�"�	��	���
�'�
�
+�����
�� �
����� ������
��	� ��� ���� ������
��	� ��"�� ������� ��
� �	� ��
�����
� ��� �	�����
���	%� �
���	�����	����� �	%���
��
����� �
���������������
�'�����
�
�������������
��
�����������
����������� �	��������	%� �
�� 
��������������	�� �����
����
�����'��
G�����������	����
������� �������������	����
�����
���
���	���
��
������ ��������.
�����	���
�����������������
����'�=�����
��������
�������
��	������� �������������
��	�
�������� ����
�"�	�������/�������	����	%���
����	����������
�'�
�
!�������
��	�/����
��
<����
�� ��� 
��� �	������� ��� ���� 
��� ��������
��	� �������� ������ ��� �	����� �
��	� 
���
�����
� �
�� �� �
��������������	��	� �	
�����
�
��	� �%��	�
� 
��� ������
��	� ���
������
 ����� �����%�����	�
���������
��	��
��
�%�'��
�
(��
���������
��	����
����������	�
����	���
�����
���� ��"������/�����
���	�����
�����
��
��� ���
����� ���� �
�� �	
�	�� ���'� ����� ���� �	������ �	��
�"�	%� ���
���� �
����� ���"�
��������	
�� ��
��	�	%� 
���	��
�"�� ���
���� ������
��	��
� 
�����
����� �	�
����	%������
����� ��� ��
�%�
��	� ��
���� �'%'� �� �������� 
�� �����	
� ������ ���	%� �����
�� ��� 
���
��	
���	�
��	'����������	��������������� �
��
������	����������	��������������	���
�
� ��� "	� 	� 
��
� 
��� ������
��	� ��"�������	�
���
� 
��� 
��%�
������ 
�� 
����3
�	
����
 ��"���/�����
���	�����
�����
��������
����������
���	
�	�����'���
�
)	
�����!�������
��	�
(	��������������	%���
������	�
���	%� ���������/������	�
�����
��
�����������������
��	�

��������
��	� ��"�'�,�����
���� �����/������ 
������������������������	���
� ��	�
�%����	%�
���������
��	��
��
�%�����
�� ��	��	
����������
�� ������������

��
��
���
���������		�	%���
����
����	����	%��	���	
�����������
��	����
����'������
�������������

��
�����%���	�����������������	������	��	
�������������
��	������
�'�
�

Page 23



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �9A�

��	������	��
���������
��������
���� ��
�������������
�	
���	"�%�����������	����"�	���������
������
��	
�������	� ��
����
�����
��������
����������
���	
�	�����'��	����
����	���
����
��������������������	����'�
�
:	� ������
��	� ��� /�����
��	� �	� !�������
��	� ������� �� !�������
��	� /����
�
������ ��� �����

�� 
�� 
��� ������  ��		�	(� ��
����
�� ���� ��������#� ����
!�������
��	�/����
��������	�����
����	�����
��	����
���	�
�����������
������#��
�
�
��������
������� �����>�/����
�
�
� !�������
��	�/����
� )	����-�

9'� &�)��
�����������������
��	� �

!'� ��
�������
��	�����������
��	� ��"����	����	%��
�� 7�
������������
��	�
�� 23
�	
����������
��	�
�� 1�
�����	�-�� �	%��
�� �����	%���� ��"��� ��������������
��
�� ���
�%���������	�
��
�	%�
��
�������
��	���������������

���	��	��
�"�	'�

�

4'� ��
�������� ������������
�
��� ��"� �

5'� ��
����� �	� )��
�����
��	�� ��� �	�� ���	%��� 
�� 
��� �%���� ������
��	�
�
��
�%��

�

>'�� G�������
��	��
����	����	%� ��������������
���
�� ������
�����	� �	���
�� 
��
� �����
�� �	����	%����%�	��� �����
��

����
���	�����	�������
��������	
��
�� 7�	�
���	%������
������%���	 �
����	�%�����
�� ���������	��	��	
�����
�
��	� �
��������
��	����
�����
�� ���	����� �	%�
���
��	
��������	��
���������	��������	����

������%����������
��	��
��
�%��

�

A'� ��
����� �	� ��������
��	� ��� ��
�%�
��	� ���������� �	����	%�  �����
���������
���

�� ��
�������������	%���
�����-�����
��
��������	�
��
������
���
�� ��
��������������	����%��.������	����
��
�� 1��������
��	������	"�	%� �
���������
�� ��������������"�������

�

D'� ��	��	
����%�����	
���	�����	���� �

B'� ��
����� �	� �	�� �	%��	%� ��������
��	� ��� ��	%� 
���� ��	�%���	
�
��/������	
��

�

:'� ��	�����
��	�
��
�������
��	���)��
�������������	���
��	�
�����
��
������
������������'�

�

�
�
�
�������(����� ��		�	(���	�
��	���
���������(����	���	
���	�
��	���	�
��	���
��������� ��		�	(���
����
������
�
��� ��
������ 
��
� �
� ���� 
��� ������	
� �
�(��� ��
�����
���� �����
�� ����� ���	�
�����

��
�����	�
��
��
��
�
�����������	
�������
������������#�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 24



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �9D�

5������������	
���
�
�
�������	�
��
��
�
������
����� ����	�
��3������������3����
�����
�

�� 0��
����1
�	����(	�
�
�
��	�#!;;D$'�,0�<><?A"''BA�������� ���
��������
���������
�����
��	��	�
/�����
��	����������	������	������
�����������	
�#�01(����	�	'�

�
�� 0��
���� 1
�	���� (	�
�
�
��	� #!;;9$'� ,0� $'$B?A"''$A� )	���
�(�
��	� ���  �
�	
������ ��	
���	�
��

0�
���1�������� ���
���#�01(����	�	'�
�

�� 0��
����1
�	����(	�
�
�
��	�#9:::$'�,0�?C='A$CCCA�������� ���
��������0�
��)	���
�(�
��	�#�01(��
��	�	'�

�
�� 0����	%�<��������2�
��������	
� #!;;9$'�,/3�/����
� >$>A� ��
��
����&�������� ���������	(��	�

������	
���	�
����	#��0<2����	�	'�
�

�� ����
���� (	�
�
�
�� ��� 2	����	��	
��� ����
�� �	� ����(<2� #!;;B$'�����	��� �	� �������	(� 0����
��	
���	�
��	���
����
�� �� ���
����� ��	��	
��
��	'� �(2�� �	�����(<2�� ��	�	� #���������� ������
   '����'��%'�"$'�

�
�� ��	�
���
��	�(	��
���<���������	�(	�����
��	��������
��	�#!;;D$'��)/)���DD?A��������	(�/�����

 ���������E����������	�������
��,����	(�#��(<(�����	�	'���
�

�� �����
��	
� ��� 
���2	����	��	
� #9::>$'� )	��
��� �������� 8�������� 
�
���9#���2�� ��	�	� #����������
������   '�	����	��	
.�%�	��'%��'�"-$'�

�
�� �����
��	
� ���� 2	����	��	
�� =��� �	� <����� �������� #!;;A$'� ��������� '$2"''DA� 3	����	��	
���

 ��
��
��	���
�$CC'�%� ��
�"�'��2=<�����	�	�#�����������������

��--   '����'%��'�"$'�
�

�� 2	����	��	
��%�	��� #!;;:$'���	
���	�
����	�34���������������	
� 8��3�9A�0��
������	�
/�����	
�  ������
��	�#� 2	����	��	
� �%�	���� 0���
��� #���������� ������    '�	����	��	
.
�%�	��'%��'�"-$'�

�
�� 2	����	��	
� �%�	��� #!;;A$'� /������� ���(�
�� &�
�����(�� %� ����(����(����� /����

��������	
� ���� ��	� ��	
���	�
��	'� 2	����	��	
� �%�	���� 0���
��� #���������� ������
   '�	����	��	
.�%�	��'%��'�"-$'�

�
�� 2	����	��	
� �%�	��� #!;;5$'� ��/$$A� &����  ��������� ���� 
��� &�	�(���	
� ��� ��	�

��	
���	�
��	'�2	����	��	
��%�	����0���
���#����������������   '�	����	��	
.�%�	��'%��'�"-$'�
�

�� 2	����	��	
� �%�	��� #!;;;$'� /� F� �� ����	����� /����
�  ?1'D?2�/A� ����	����� �����
�� ��� 0�
��
)	���
�(�
��	#�2	����	��	
��%�	����0���
���#����������������   '�	����	��	
.�%�	��'%��'�"-$'�

�
�� 2	����	��	
��%�	���#!;;;$'�/�F�������	�����/����
� ?1'DD2�/A�0���	����&���� ������������


������������	
�������������
��0����0�����	(�0
��
�(����������	���	
���	�
��	#�2	����	��	
�
�%�	����0���
���#����������������   '�	����	��	
.�%�	��'%��'�"-$'�

�
�� H�
��	��� ������ 0����	%� ���	����� 2	����	��	
� �%�	��� K� �(2�� #!;;B$'� /� F� ��  ������
��	� DDA�

����	�������
���0�������������	
���������	(��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	#�H�0��K�
2	����	��	
��%�	������	�	�#����������������   '	���������'��'�"$'��

�
�� H�
��	���������0����	%����	���� #!;;D$'�����	����	�3�����
��	�������������	
� ����������	�

0�
��� ������ &�
��	�� �	� �����	� ���4��� ����  ����	
'� H�0��� ��	�	� #���������� ������
   '	���������'��'�"$'�

�
�� &���������
�������
��������7�	��
���#!;;5$'� ��		�	(� ������0
�
���	
�"=A� ��		�	(��	� ����
��	�

��	
���#��		�4�"A����������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	#�&��7����	�	�#����������
������   '�����	�
���'%��'�"$'��

�
�� &���������
�������
��������7�	��
���#!;;5$'�����,����	(�/�(���
��	��"'''A���������������	
�

��%�0�
�� ������
��	��	�/����
�	���
��&���
���#�&��7����	�	#�

Page 25



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �9B�

�

����	�4�$�%�34����������!��	�������3	�5�����	�
 �
�	
��������	
���	�
�	(���	�5����
�
�#��������������
�������	��������	�����'�(�����������	����
�����
�
������	�������
�����
�	��	��������������	���
�
������	���8����	
���	�
����	�&��������
�����������	
������������	
��#�����������
���	����	%������$�
������
��	
��
��1�������
��H����������	���L�����
��������	8�������	%��������	������	%�������
��7�3��������������	
���	����	%����	�����������������
�

�
,#��������������
������
�	
��������	
���	�
�	(���	������� ��������������������		�3�
!� ��� ���		�	%� ������� 1
�
���	
� !4�� ���		�	%� �	� �����
��	� ��	
���� #!;;5$'� =��
����
�
��������������������	�
��������
��	
����
���2	����	��	
�(	��
������������� ���������
����������
��� 	����������������%�������
���2	����	��	
��%�	��� ����
�'��
�
��1���
��������	�������
���� ��"�����
�����������	%�K���	����	%� ��"���
�������K���	�������	�	%�K���������	%����
��������	����	����	���
��
���������	%�	����	%�K��	%�	����	%� ��"����'%'�������	����
��������������	%��
��7���
���-���	�������
����
���
�����
��2���
������K�����
��	����/�����	
���	����
����K���������
����� ��"�������������	���
��	����	
����� ����
�
��	���
��&�������	���������
��������
���%��K���
����
��	���
����
��7�	����
����K�������������
��������	
�������K�%�������
��7�	����
���������%�	���K��	��%�	���������������	����	%����
�����������-��"������
���������
������������	
������	
����
��%�	
���	������
�����

��<�������	��
�����	����	%�
������	����
�����
��7�	�
��	��K��3��������������
��	��
��
�	%�K��
���%����
����
����������"�	%�K������������	����
�����
�� ��3
�����	��
�����	����	%�
�		�	%�K����
������
��������K��������	����
��������	
�	%� ��"��K����
�%���������������	%��
�� �������
���
��	
��
�� =�����������	%��	��
���K���
���	%���
��������	
���
��<��� ������
�����"�����#�	����	%���������"�����	�$��%���%�������������%�����
���
������
���

�� ��	�������
���%��K��	��	���
��	���� ��
���
��1� �%�� ��"�����������
������K�"�		�����
�����

�������	����� ��
����������	%�K�����������������������
��"��
��1�����������
����������	�	%�����������
������
��������������
������

�
:
����������	�
����������	�
��
���(�
������	
���	�
���	����A�

��<�����
��������
�	���������	��	��
�������
���
����	�
���	
��	��������.��'%'�%���
��	
��������
��	������	���	%� ��"���

��0��������
���K�%����������
���%�����
����.��3����������������������������
��������������������	%��������� �%�����%��
K������ ��
�����������

��H�
������.�������	%�������
���
����	����	%����	��
��H�
������.�������	%������
����	��	
��
��	�������
�����	��
��������
�	�����
��7�
��	��K������	���3��������
��	�K��������	���	��������	�	%�������� �
��	������
�
���������������� �
��	��

Page 26



�

���������	
��	���	������
�������	
���	�
��	���
�����������	���������	���������������������	� 	�����	���	���
�	
��� � �9:�

��

����	�4�"�%�0����	�	(���������	
������	���	
���	�
��	��
�
�
�
����� ����� ��� ���
����� ���� 
��� ��������	
� ��� ��	� ���� ���� ���� �	������� �����	
����
������
������������
�����	�
���
��	������	����������	��	��4��
�	(�(���	�����#�(
� ���	�
�
���
����� ���� 
��� ��������	
� ��� ��	� ���� ���%��� �����	%� ��������	
��� ����
��	
��� ���������
	����������������	8�������������������	%����������� �����
������������	������
��	��
����������	�
����)���	
�
�� 
��� ��	����� 
������������
��	�� ���� ��/������������	������ 
������������	������
������ 9� <����
� �	� ��� ���������
��� �����/��	
� ������ !� #1�
�� (	���
�%�
��	� �	� <��"�
��������	
$��������4�#<�����
��	�1
��
�%�$��	�������5�#G�������
��	$�<����
�'�
�
 ������ ������
�� �	� ,�:�G� �3��3/0� �	� �����
� ��
�� ����� ������
��  ��		�	(�
�������
��	��	����	�#��
�
���������	
������	������
�������	
���	�
��	�
�
��	���	
���	�
��	� ��� ��	� ���������
�	�������������	
� �	���	�����	��� 
��� ��	� ���������
��
�����������
�	
��������6������
������
�����
����	����	��	
'�1�������
���������
�	������	�
���	�
��������������	%����
���%���	�
�����)���
��������������������	
��������������������������
����	���
���
������������	�	%���	��
����	� ��
���������'�
�
(	� ������	���  �
�� �����	��	
� ������� �	� 
��� ���	���8�� ��	
���	�
�� ��	� (	����
��	�
1
��
�%��� 
��� ���	����  �	
�� 
�� �	�����%�� 
��� ����������	
� ��� ����������� ���� ��	�
#��� 	�������	$'��� �����������������
�����
�	
�������"������	
���	�
��	��������
�� �
�������
��	�
�����������	�����������/������	
��
��
����
����������������
������������
���	�����
��
�

��������	���	%���
������	�����
�����
����	����	��	
'���
���������
�����	����
�������
�����
�������'�
�
(	������
��������� ��
��������������	
�������
��������������
������������		�	%���
����
�����
�
�����
������
��
�
��������	���	�����
��������"��������	
���	�
��	'������	�����
��	������������
 �������� ���������	������	��)�%���	
�
����������	���������	��� �
��
���	���������	�
��	
���	�
��	���	�
��	��
������

�����
���	�����		�	%���	��	
'�
�
�
;:�3A�
�
*������� 
�� ������� 
��� ��6����� �	�����
��	� �
� 
���� �
�(������ �����
� �	� �� ����� �	� 
���
�������
��	����������	�
���������
��	������	���	
���	�
��	���	�
��	�#�����
�
(���
��	�����	
� ��	�������
�	%�
������������������
� 
����� ����� ��"�������
��
���	
���	�
��	�
�����3��
��	�
�����
��#����	��	��)���	
���
�$� ���������������
�
�����������������
�����
��	%���
������
��
�������	
��
� 
������	���8����	
���	�
����	�&���������������������	%����������
��	�	%������	������
�
��
������������	������������
�����������9�<����
'��
�
��	
���	�
����	�&�����������������	�����������������	%�
������
�����
�������	������
�������	
�
���'� ����� ����� ������� ������ 
�� ���		�	%� &�������� �	� 
��� ���
�����
�� ��� ��	� ���� ��������
��������	
�'�����&������� ����
�����������������
�������������	��� ����
�
��������'��

Page 27



�

�

�  �)��;��2���3;���3��)�0�
�

� �������	
� �%�	
�
=����H����
�
�
�

�
�

�

������
�
�
�
�

� �

�������	��
�

� �

=�3�
�

� �

2�����
�

� �

�
�
�

�3!3�: &3;���3��)�0�
�

1�
��H�����
�

�

1�
���������
�
�
�
�
�

�

1�
������<�����	��� 2��
�	%� � H��
��	%� �
�
�
�
0�
�����
�������	��	�,����	(��5���

�
�

�����
��� �%�����
����� ����������� (	��
����� &
����#��������������$�+��
����
���
����������	�
���-�
#
��"�����
��
������$�

� � � � �

�
�

�����
��� �%�����
����� ����������� (	��
����� &
����#��������������$�+��
����
��������	
�
��	����-�
#
��"�����
��
������$�

� � � � �

�
�

�����
��� �%�����
����� ����������� (	��
����� &
����#��������������$�+��
�����
�����	�
���	����������	�

������
�$?'�
�����-�
#
��"�����
��
������$�

� � � � �

�
�
�

Page 28



�

�

=���� ��� ��	�*���
� � �
� � �

)��
�����	���������
���	(����������(�����
��
������	(�8�9��
#�������������
�%����
�����
%���	������$�

� � �

�
�
����
������	�������������
����������
���8�	����	(�
���	�����	����
�������
��	����������������	(�9��	�
��
�-��
#(��������������������
����$�

�

�
����
������	��(���	��
���
�������������
���
���
���
��	���	���
�-��
#(��������������������
����$�

�

�
+��
������
����4��
�	(�
�����	(���	�
�����
�����	�
�������-��
#��������
�
���������������$�

�

�
�
������	������������������������	��
�����	�
�����
�-��
#�������������$�

���� H��

�
�
�����
��������	��	������2������������������������-��
#�������������$�

���� H��

�
�
)���7���.�
����
�������
������������������
�
��
����2�����������
���(����
����	�����
��	���	�
�
���������	��������(����	����	(�6��	
�
�����	�
��
��	�
���	�
�

�
�

�
�
�����
��������	��	�����
������������
���
����
8�	����	(�
������	�	(�������
�9����������
��	�
����
��
��#�������������$���
=����	�����
��	��	���	�������
����������������
��
���
2	����	��	
��%�	��� ����
�'��
�

���� H��

�
�

<����
�� *	�����
�������
��������	��	���
���������
��	��	���	
���
��
���������
������	�����
�-�#�������������$���
=����	�����
��	��	������
��	��	���	
���������������
��

���2	����	��	
��%�	��� ����
�'�
��

���� H�� ���� H��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 29



�

�

�@���	
���	�5���
�
�

�����
��� �%�����
����� ����������� (	��
����� &
����#��������������$�+��
����
��������	
�
�@���	
���	����-�
#
��"�����
��
������$�

� � � � �

�
�����
��� �%�����
����� ����������� (	��
����� &
����#��������������$�+��
�����
���

�@���	
���	����	�
���������	�
���
���
�$?'������-�
#
��"�����
��
������$�

� � � � �

�
����
������	�������������
����������
����	��@���	
�
��	�8�	����	(����	���
��	����
���������	�����
�����������	(�9-��
#(��������������������
����$�

�

�
����
������	��(���	��
���
�������������
���
���
���
��	���	��@���	
�
��	-��
#(��������������������
����$�

�

�
�
�����
��������	��	�����
������������
���
����
���������
��	�������	�	(���	���
��	�"?'���
����
���
�����
�-�#�������������$���
=����	�����
��	��	���	�������
����������������
��
���
2	����	��	
��%�	��� ����
���	���	
��
�
���
���	���8����	
���	�
����	�&������'�
�

���� H��

�
�

0�
���������
��	�
�

�
 ����������������
��������

�	������
�
����������
�����	����	(������������
�����	��
�	����
�(�����������������������	����	(A�
�

�� �����
�
�� ����	�������	%�
�� 1�%	�����������	����
�'�
�� 2���	���������
�������'�'���	���������� �����	���	%�	����	%� ��"���
������
���
��	
��
��
�� �����	
�%���	���	�
��	���'�'�����%���	-������ �
��������	%����%�
�
��	�����������
��	�

�
�'�
�� =����	%�

�
���� ���

�	� ������
��	� ������ ����� �	����� �	�����
��	� �	� 
��� 	��(������	(� ��	��
�	����	(������	
��	��������������8����	��	9#��
�
�
�

Page 30



�

�

 ����������	���	
���	�
��	�/����
��
�
(�����������	����������	�������������������
���	����	���	
���	�
��	�<����
�����������������

���� �	�����
��	� �	� ������
� ��� 
��� �������
��	�� ���	%�  �
�� ����� �	
�����
�
��	� ��� 
��� <����
� �	�
����
��	�
��
�������������������	
'�
�
�
� � 2	������ � � � �
� �
�
�
)����
������0����
�
��������	
�	�
�������
��	��������������������	%���
��������	
����
�����������	�%���	�����������
�
��	�����	%�������������	%���������������	%M�
�
�
� � ���� � � � � � �������������������H���
�
�
�
H�
��� (�� ����� �����	
�
��	-���
�����
���  ���� 	��� 
�� ��� �����

�� 
�� 
��� ������ ���		�	%�
��
����
�� 
�� ���	�
��
�� �
�� ���
�����
�� ���� ���'� ���� �����	
�
��	�  ���� 	��� 
�� �	����� 
���
����� �	%��
������

�� 
�������������
�������C��
�� 
�����
��������������
�"�	���������������������	���������
���C�
�� 
��� �������� �	���
����� ���
�� ��� ��	
���	�	
�� �	����	%� ��
����� 
�
��� ��
�������

���������	�� #���$�� ������
�� ���������
��� ���������	�� #���8�$� �	� �
����
��	
���	�	
�������	����������

�� 
�����������	
����
������%��	�
� �����
����	���
����������
�� ����������������
���������

������
�����
���������'��

�
�
�
,�����	�
����	�����
��	������������������	�
���������
���������
�
�����
�����	������
���	��	����	
���	�
��	����������
����������������
����
�����
�#�
�
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN�
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN�
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN�
�
�
 ��������(	�������
����	�����
��
�����
����	�����
��	�(���	��	�
������������������
�
��
���
���
����������	����(���	�������#�
�
�
�
1�%	��NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN''�����
��NNNNNNNNNNN''�
�
�
�

�

� �

Page 31



 

Approved for release: ………………………………………… 
Community Protection Manager 
Version: 2010 i 
Date: 

 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 

 
 
 

STATUTORY 
CONTAMINATED LAND 
INSPECTION STRATEGY 

2010 -2013 
 

 FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT 
 
 

Revised JULY 2010 
 

 
 

Page 32



 

CONTENTS           PAGE  
 
Executive Summary 
 
Strategic Approach 
 
1.0 Introduction           1 

1.1 Background 
1.2 National Objectives 
1.3 Local Objectives 
1.4 Regulatory Context 
1.5 Definition of Contaminated Land under Part IIA 
1.6 Special Sites 
1.7 Situations to Which the Contaminated Land Regime  

Does Not Apply 
 1.8 Development of the Strategy 
 
2.0 Characteristics of Rotherham        8 

2.1 Geographical Context 
 2.2 Description and History of the Area 
 2.3 Geology of the Area  

2.4 Hydrogeology and Hydrology of the Area 
 2.5 Known Information on Contamination 

2.6 Land owned by Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council  
 
3.0 Overall Aims And Objectives Of The Strategy    12 

3.1 Introduction 
3.2 Objectives of the New Regime: 
3.3 Priorities of Rotherham MBC  

 3.4 Aims of Rotherham MBC 
 
4.0  Local Authority Priority Actions And Timescales    14 

4.1 Production of Strategy Document 
4.2 Acquisition of Geographical Information System (G.I.S.)  

Semi-quantitative Screening Tool and Databases Containing  
Information on Receptors, Pathways and Targets 

4.3 Operation of Risk Assessment Methodology Programme 
4.4 Detailed Site Inspections 
4.5 Dealing with Urgent Sites 

 
5.0 General Liaison And Communication Strategies    17 

5.1 Liaison with Statutory Bodies 
5.2 Liaison with Interested Parties (Stakeholders) 
5.3 Communication 
5.4 Public Register 
5.5 The Environmental Information Regulations 1992 
5.5 Provision of information to The Environment Agency 
5.6 Use of Information by Other Services Within Rotherham MBC 

 

Page 33



 

Implementation 
 
6.0 Procedure For Identifying Potentially Contaminated Land  23 

6.1 Internal Management Arrangements for Inspection  
and Identification 

6.2 Principles of Risk Assessment    
6.3 Requirements for Strategic Approach 
6.4 Information Collection 
6.5 Information Evaluation 
6.6 Information and Complaints 

 6.7 Methods of Inspection 
6.8 Site Investigations 
6.9 Potential Special Sites 
6.10 Site Specific Risk Assessment 

 
7.0 Procedure For Regulating Contaminated Land    31 

7.1 Introduction 
7.2 Formal Notification: Declaration of Contaminated Land 
7.3 Responsibility for Remediation and Liability 
7.4 Enforcement Action: the Remediation Notice 
7.5 Remediation by the Council 
7.6 Follow-up Action 
7.7 Considering Rotherham MBC’s Own Interests in Land 

 
8.0 Review Mechanisms        37 

8.1 Review of assumptions and information 
8.2 Review of Strategy Document 

 
9.0 Information Management        38 

9.1 General Principles 
9.2 Information Storage Systems  

 
Glossary 
 
References 
 
Appendices 
 
 1 Special Sites 

2 Pollution of Controlled Waters 
3 Potential Receptors & Categories of Significant Harm 
4 Categories of Potential Contaminative Land Uses  
5 Powers of Entry & Appointment of Suitable Persons 
6 Enforcement Concordat 
7 Map of Rotherham

Page 34



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This document details how Rotherham MBC will inspect its land for contamination, 
under the requirements of regulations included in the Environmental Protection Act 
1990.  The strategy was first adopted by the Council and published on the 2nd July 
2001. This document revises the Inspection Strategy and covers the period 2010-
2013. 
 
The Council uses all available information and employs a risk based approach, both 
in the initial screening process and during detailed inspection of sites, in order to 
identify contaminated land.  A list of all potentially contaminated sites based on 
available information has been compiled, and the inspection programme started in 
2006 (it is always the case that urgent priorities will be addressed when they arise).  
The Council has a duty to publish a public register of any land designated as 
statutorily contaminated. No land to date has been designated as statutorily 
contaminated in Rotherham.  
 
The process of investigating and remediating land aims to ensure that all land in the 
Borough is suitable for the use it is put to, and does not pose unacceptable risks to 
people, the environment, water and property. 
 
The strategy has been revised to take account of work undertaken before 2010 and 
to provide revised timescales for completion of the inspection process.  
 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council is committed to developing and 
promoting the Borough as a safe and attractive place. The Council will seek to 
promote sustainability and minimise environmental pollution through its own 
activities and its influence on others. 
 
This Contaminated Land Strategy has been developed by Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council as part of its obligations defined in Section 78 B(1) of Part IIA of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990. As part of this duty the Council will instigate 
the inspection of the Borough from time to time for the purpose of: 
 

• Identifying contaminated land; and 
• Identifying Special Sites. 
 
Contaminated Land, as defined in the Act, is land that: 
 
• May be causing significant harm or 
• Pollution of controlled waters. 
 

The Council have adopted a Strategic Approach to the identification of 
contaminated land with the emphasis being on: 
 

• Human health 
• Ecosystems 
• Property and the built environment 

 
The Borough of Rotherham consists of mixed residential and industrial areas with 
substantial rural areas. Traditional industries such as coal mining, iron and steel 
production, engineering and other heavy industry have declined since the 1980s 
leaving a legacy of potential environmental problems. 

Page 35



 

 
In line with standard practice, the Council will adopt a ‘suitable for use’ approach to 
the management of contaminated land. Risk assessments will be based upon the 
Pollutant-Pathway-Receptor scenario and the establishment of linkages between 
pollutants and vulnerable receptors. 
 
The key stages of the Strategy are defined and explained within this document  and  
include: 
 

• Site Prioritisation; 
• Site Inspection; 
• Site Investigation; 
• Site Remediation; 
• Post Remediation Management. 

 
The procedures detail how the Council will identify and inspect land that may be 
contaminated. The strategy demonstrates how the Council will deal with sites that 
are found to be significantly contaminated such that they pose a risk to people, the 
environment or built structures. The Council is responsible for identifying who is 
liable for remediating contaminated sites. This is not a simple matter but there is a 
prescribed process for attributing liability between various groups or individuals who 
have an interest in the land. Where the land in question is in the ownership of the 
Borough Council, it will be responsible for its remediation. 
 
The Council will maintain a Register of information relating to contaminated land, 
which will be available for public inspection although some information may be 
declared commercially confidential. The strategy details how this information will be 
handled to ensure those parties who need to know will have access to the 
information under the Environmental Information Regulations. 
 
The Council will establish formalised links both internally (between Council 
departments) and externally (with other organisations such as the Environment 
Agency and DEFRA and more locally with community organisations and industry 
where appropriate). This will ensure efficient consultation, transfer of information, 
and transfer of regulatory control. Periodic monitoring of the implementation of the 
strategy will be undertaken by the Environment Agency as part of a ‘State of the 
Environment’ Report. 
 
This contaminated land strategy will ensure that the Council meets its obligations to 
protect human health, property and the wider environment. It will also drive the 
remediation of contaminated sites and encourage the re-use of brownfield land in 
line with the sustainability policies of the Council. 
 

 
 

Page 36



 

1 

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Background 
 

It has been widely known for a number of decades that past industrial development 
has left a legacy of land contamination. Many industrial practices may have led to 
substances being in, on or under land, for example heavy metals, organic 
compounds such as tars, asbestos, acids, alkalis, etc.  In addition, the needs of 
society are such that large volumes of refuse have had to be disposed of to landfill 
in the past. 
 
This problem has become particularly evident in the late 20th century, where 
demographic shift of populations has resulted in the large scale redevelopment of 
many previously industrialised areas, often for more sensitive uses.  Many of these 
previously used (‘brownfield’) sites have substances which may cause 
contamination, some of which may be harmful to the health of persons, damaging 
to buildings, crops, ecosystems, etc and polluting to the water environment.   
 
Previous guidance on contaminated land was limited in its application and set 
prescriptive standards which were not based on actual quantifiable risks.  As a 
consequence, some remediation to address the problems highlighted above may 
have been unnecessary and costly, whilst areas that required further consideration 
were not addressed in sufficient detail.  The first legislation specifically addressing 
contaminated land was published in June 1995 in Section 57 of The Environment 
Act 1995.  This amended The Environmental Protection Act 1990 by introducing a 
new Part IIA  - The Contaminated Land Regime (referred to herein as ‘the Part IIA 
provisions’).   
 
The Contaminated Land (England) Regulations 2000 came into force in April 2000 
and provide a framework against which to develop a strategy for considering and 
addressing land contamination within a local authority’s area.   
 
 

 
 
1.2 National Objectives 
 

The implementation of the new regime is seen by the Government as an essential 
tool to provide an effective framework to deal with the regulation of contaminated 
land.  It is based upon the principles of site remediation being to a standard 
‘suitable for use’, and of ‘the polluter pays’, when assessing liability.  The approach 
is ‘risk based’ and must embody the principle of ‘sustainable development’.  
‘Suitable for use’ does not mean a full ‘clean up operation’. 
 
There are three objectives which underlie the ‘suitable for use’ approach to 
contaminated land remediation: 
 
• to identify and remove unacceptable risks to human health and the 

environment; 
• to seek to bring back damaged land into beneficial use; 
• to seek to ensure that the cost of the burdens faced by individuals, 

companies and society as a whole are proportionate, manageable and 
economically sustainable.   

Page 37



2 

 
The ‘polluter pays principle’ embodies an objective to ensure that, where feasible 
(and subject to certain limitations), any person who caused or knowingly permitted 
the contamination in the first instance will be the ‘appropriate person’ to pay for and 
undertake remediation.  If this is not possible, only then does the responsibility pass 
to the current owner or occupier of the land. 
 
In the United Kingdom, sustainable development means safeguarding natural 
resources and protecting and enhancing the environment as a key issue to be 
considered when considering the safeguarding of the standards of living and quality 
of life.  Greenfield development is limited in its availability and if possible, 
Government policy is to ensure appropriate redevelopment of ‘brownfield’ land.  As 
well as improving environmental standards, this also helps to contribute to social 
and economic regeneration of the area. 
 

 
1.3 Local Objectives 
 

The implementation of Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 will have a 
direct influence on the strategy and policy of Rotherham Borough Council.  The 
regime requires each local authority to ‘cause its area to be inspected from time to 
time for the purpose of identifying contaminated land’.   
 
The initial part of the strategy requires each local authority to prepare and publish a 
strategy on how it will ensure that all those affected by and involved with 
contaminated land inspection clearly understand the rationale behind it, the 
methods which will be used to assess it and the time-scales involved.  The strategy 
must be justified and transparent and detail the arrangements and procedures to 
ensure compliance with the legislation. 
 
Like many other areas in the United Kingdom, Rotherham has been associated 
with large amounts of industry which have had significant potential to cause land 
contamination. 
 
The Council has a Policy and Performance Agenda as part of its strategic 
framework.  Of these, the following Corporate Priorities are an integral part of the 
ethos behind remediation of contaminated land: 
 

• Rotherham Safe; 
• Rotherham Alive; 

 
There are also a number of key cross-cuttings issues which underpin the themes.  
One of the major issues is Sustainable Development, to which Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council is committed.  The Local Agenda 21 Strategy 
provides a framework for future action on sustainable development at local level.  It 
recognises the need to improve the current environment and to protect it for the 
future generations who will inherit it. 
  
It is recognised that the development of a strategy and its implementation must be 
accountable and will be subject to the requirements of the access to the 
Environmental Information Regulations 1992. 
 

Page 38



3 

It is also envisaged that the regime will be implemented following and with due 
consideration of the views of other stakeholders, businesses and community 
groups and involve such groups in the consultation process whenever possible. 

 
 
1.4 Regulatory Context 
 

Local Authorities and The Environment Agency share the regulatory responsibilities 
for this regime.  A glossary of the commonly used terms associated with this 
legislation is found at the back of the strategy. 

  
Role of Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

 
Under the new Part IIA provisions, each local authority must ‘cause its area to be 
inspected from time to time for the purpose of identifying contaminated land.’ 

 
 The regime requires local authorities to: 
 

• Identify the problem; 
• Assess the risks; 
• Determine the appropriate remediation requirements; 
• Consider the costs; 
• Establish who should pay; 
• Implement and remediate; 
• Decide if a contaminated site requires designating as a ‘special site’.  

Details of what this means can be found at appendix 1.   
 
Local authorities must act in accordance with guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State in respect of these requirements and statutory guidance has been published 
by the Department of Environment, Food and the Rural Affairs (DEFRA), in the 
form of DEFRA Circular 01/2006 
 
The statutory guidance requires local authorities to produce a formal contaminated 
land strategy document clearly setting out, details of how the Council plans to 
implement its inspection duties under Part IIA of the Act.  This document had to be 
formally adopted by the Council and published within 15 months of April 2000.  The 
document referred to here is this document (revised). 
 
Once land is considered to be statutorily contaminated, the local authority will be 
required to: 
 

• establish who should bear responsibility for remediation; 
• decide (after consultation) what remediation is required and to ensure 

this takes place; 
• where a Remediation Notice is served or the Local Authority undertakes 

the work itself, to determine the proportions of the liability for meeting the 
costs of the work; 

• to record certain information that is required about regulatory actions, on 
a Public Register. 

 

Page 39



4 

In order to carry out the inspection duty, it will be necessary to undertake a 
strategic approach to the identification of land which may be contaminated, in order 
to target those areas that are considered to represent the greatest risk first. 
 
Role of the Environment Agency 

 
The main roles of The Environment Agency are: 
 

• Regulation of special sites, including producing and maintaining a public 
register of special sites remediation (see appendix 1).  

• Inspection of land that, if found to be contaminated, would be a special 
site (at the request of, and on behalf of a local authority); 

• To provide information to the Council on land contamination;  
• The provision of advice to a local authority on identifying and dealing 

with pollution of controlled waters, including site specific advice on site 
remediation where appropriate.  Details of what  pollution of controlled 
waters may include can be found at appendix 2; 

• To assist local authorities in identifying contaminated land; 
• To publish periodic reports on state of the environment and 

contaminated land in England and Wales. 
 
 
1.5 Definition of Contaminated Land under Part IIA 
 

Under Section 78A (2) of Part IIA, contaminated land is defined as follows: 
 
 ‘any land which appears to the local authority in whose area it is situated to be in 
such a condition, by reason of substances in, on or under the land, that - 
 
(a) significant harm is being caused or there is significant possibility of such harm 
being caused; or 
 
(b) pollution of controlled waters is being, or is likely to be, caused (appendix 2).’ 
 
The guidance prescribes the ‘receptors’ to which ‘harm’ may be caused, what is 
meant by ‘harm’, and what a local authority can consider is ‘significant harm’ or 
‘significant possibility of such harm’.  Appendix 3 details these.  
 
The following factors need to be taken into account to determine the significance of 
harm: 
 

• the nature and degree of harm; 
• the susceptibility of the receptors to which the harm might be caused; 
• the time scales within which the harm might occur. 

 
It uses the concept of ‘pollutant linkage’ to determine if land is contaminated.  There 
must be a linkage between a ‘contaminant’ (i.e. the substance which has the 
potential to cause harm) and a ‘receptor’ (i.e. something or someone that may be 
adversely affected by the contaminant), by means of a ‘pathway’ (i.e. a route by 
which the contaminant can reach the receptor). 
 

Page 40



5 

In order for land to be determined as appearing to be statutorily contaminated, 
therefore, there must exist a ‘significant pollutant linkage’.  This consists of: 
 
• a ‘contaminant’ situated in, on or under the land with a potential to cause 

harm or to cause pollution of controlled waters (appendix 4 lists land uses 
that have the potential to result in contaminants in, on or under the land, and 
the potential severity of such uses); 

• ‘a receptor’, which is either a living organism or group of living organisms 
including human beings, controlled waters and certain ecological systems) or 
property (including buildings and livestock) which could be harmed by a 
contaminant; 

• ‘a pathway’ which means one or more plausible routes between the source 
and receptor, such that the contaminant is causing significant harm, or 
significant possibility of such harm, to the receptor. 

 
Where all these three aspects of contaminant, pathway and receptor are thought to 
exist, the local authority must then satisfy itself that such a pollutant linkage does 
exist and that it is: 
 

• resulting in significant harm being caused to the receptor;  or 
• presenting a significant possibility of significant harm being caused to the 

receptor;  or 
• resulting in pollution of controlled waters;  or  
• likely to result in such pollution. 

 
If this is the case, then there is said to be a significant pollutant linkage and the land 
is judged as appearing to be statutorily contaminated land. 
 
It is important to note that the definition does not include all types of harm, nor all 
types of receptor, but is designed to address identification of land where the 
contamination is causing unacceptable risks to specific targets, such as human 
health and water pollution. 
 

 
1.6 Special Sites 
 

There are circumstances when a local authority considers a site to be contaminated 
land that it may be a ‘special site’.  The descriptions of the types of land which are 
required to be designated as special sites are detailed in appendix 1.  Such sites 
have the Environment Agency as the enforcing body, and detailed investigation of 
any potential special site is carried out by the Environment Agency, on behalf of the 
local authority. 

 
 
1.7 Situations to Which the Contaminated Land Regime Does Not Apply  

 
There are situations where existing legislation would address the implications and 
impact of contamination.  These include: 
 

• New development: the potential implications of contamination on new 
developments should be considered as part of the Town and Country 
Planning requirements and ultimately planning permission would take 

Page 41



6 

account of issues of contaminated land.  When development is taking 
place, it is the responsibility of the developer to carry out the necessary 
remediation, in connection with Building Control requirements; 

• Integrated pollution control: certain processes prescribed under Part I of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 must meet a specific pollution 
control regime enforced by the Environment Agency.  This includes the 
IPPC (Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control) regime; 

• Waste Management  Licensing: all waste disposal and processing sites 
are subject to licensing, and contamination causing harm or pollution of 
controlled water will be dealt with as a breach of the licence conditions 
where appropriate; 

• Pollution of controlled waters not arising from land: under the Water 
Resources Act 1991, where a pollution incident has occurred and the 
pollutant has discharged directly into controlled water or has left the land 
and is entirely in controlled waters, then this legislation will apply; 

• Discharge consents: under the Water Resources Act 1991, any 
discharge to water which is authorised by consent cannot be the subject 
of a Remediation Notice under the Part IIA regime; 

• Organisms: the land must be contaminated by a substance and this 
does not include living organisms; 

• Control of Major Accident Hazards (COMAH) Regulations 1999: where 
there has been an incident at a COMAH site, the requirements include 
off-site/on-site emergency plans that address restoration plans; 

• Significant harm as a result of a work activity: harm to the public and 
employees from contamination arising from a work activity would be 
addressed by the Health and Safety at Work, etc Act 1974.  

 
In addition it should be noted that the statutory nuisance action under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990, which enabled land contamination causing a 
nuisance as well as being prejudicial to health, is no longer permitted.  Therefore, if 
the land is found to be ‘contaminated’ in a common sense meaning of the word, but 
is not causing significant harm, or there is no plausible pathway between the 
pollutant and receptor, for example, then it is not classed as statutorily 
contaminated.  Whilst it may still cause nuisance, it is no longer possible to address 
the issue under either the statutory nuisance or Part IIA provisions.  In such cases, 
the land may be considered to be ‘land in a contaminated state’. 

 
 
1.8 Development of the Strategy 

 
The lead role for implementation of the strategy is taken by Community Protection 
Unit, which undertakes the traditional Environmental Health and Anti-Social 
Behaviour functions of the Council and is part of the Neighbourhood and Adult 
Services Directorate.  The responsibility for developing the strategy is assigned to 
the Community Protection Manager (South) and the Scientific Development Officer 
within the Community Protection Unit.   
 
In order to ensure that as much relevant information as possible is obtained, and to 
ensure that all the responsibilities in relation to Council-owned land are fulfilled, 
liaison with all relevant Council Services will take place.  Liaison with other 
organisations, such as the Environment Agency, Natural England etc. will also be 
taking place. 
 

Page 42



7 

Detailed inspections of sites which may be contaminated are undertaken using a 
risk-based approach, ensuring that the sites which are the current highest priority 
are addressed first.   
 
Where the Council itself may be responsible for contaminated land, then the 
relevant Directorate will be advised forthwith, to enable it to commence 
investigations itself, in advance or as part of the prioritised inspection procedure 
adopted by this Service. 

 

Page 43



8 

CHAPTER 2: CHARACTERISTICS OF ROTHERHAM  
 
2.1 Geographical Context 
 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council is located in South Yorkshire and 
comprises of one of the four Metropolitan Councils of South Yorkshire. The 
neighbouring local authorities are Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council, 
Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council, Sheffield City Council, North East 
Derbyshire District Council, Bolsover District Council and Bassetlaw District 
Council.  In addition, the Shire Counties of Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire border 
Rotherham, and are the Waste Planning Authorities for the local authorities in their 
areas.  A simple map is found at appendix 7. 
 
Outside Rotherham’s urban centre, there are substantial populations based on 
Anston, Aston, Dinnington, Kiveton Park, Maltby, Rawmarsh, Swinton and Wath-
upon-Dearne.  Seventy percent of the Borough is rural, particularly to the north-
west and the south of the Borough.  The area is intersected by the two major 
motorway networks of the M1 and M18, and the major rivers of The Don, and 
Rother flow through it. It comprises an area of 300,760 hectares. 
 
 

2.2 Description and History of the Area  
 
Approximately 249,000 residents live within the Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council area with 106,135 residential properties.  Rotherham is a Borough of 
contrasts and diversity.  Almost three quarters of the Borough has a rural land use, 
comprising a mixture of highly productive agricultural land, remnants of large rural 
estates, parkland and villages.  Even within built-up areas, the countryside is often 
reflected in parks and gardens.  
 
Settlement in Rotherham dates back to prehistoric times and the local iron ore was 
exploited by the Romans, who built a fort by the River Don at Templeborough.  The 
monks from Kirkstead Abbey mined and smelted iron ore at Thundercliffe from the 
12th century. During the later 17th Century and into the 18th Centuries the Dukes of 
Leeds and Kiveton Park and the Wnetworth’s at Wentworth wielded much national 
political clout backed by agricultural and industrial foundations. Nevertheless 
Rotherham remained a rural environment and it was not until the industrial 
revolution of the 19th century andd the arrivals of the railways from the 1840’s that 
Rotherham became primarily an industrial town largely as a result of its position 
between Sheffield and the ports on the East Coast amongst other things.  Major 
coal mining (and associated industries such as chemical and coking works), and 
steel manufacturing industries developed, particularly in the areas of 
Wath/Manvers, Kiveton Park, Dinnington, Maltby, Thurcroft, Treeton and 
Templeborough.  The majority of the traditional heavy industries were rapidly lost 
from the area from the mid-1980s, and major redevelopment has already taken 
place on many of the major steel making and coal mining sites, plus a number of 
other individual colliery sites.  In addition to industrial use, a large part of the 
Borough is rural and agricultural. Current diversification includes more light industry 
and high-tech business parks, particularly on the former industrial brownfield sites. 
Typical of this historical change has been the fortunes of Kiveton Park: during the 
17th and 18th Century Kiveton Hall surrounded by a few farmsteads, was home to 
the Osbournes, Dukes of Leeds. The 1st Duke of Leeds was instrumental in the 
Glorious Revolution of 1688 and setting Britain on a political course that was trade 

Page 44



9 

and mercantile. The arrival of railways in the 1840s resulted in the sinking of the 
first mine shaft in the 1860s turning Kiveton Park from its rural identity, into a heavy 
industrial landscape. In just over a century the pit was closed resulting in rapid 
industrial decline. The site has now been replaced with leisure and services 
industries. 
 
There are 3 country parks, 10 urban parks, numerous parish council and miners’ 
welfare areas of public open spaces maintained by the Council.  There are 514 
listed buildings in the Borough and 36 Scheduled Ancient Monuments. 

 
The 15th century Parish Church of All Saints which stands prominently in the centre 
of town is one of the finest examples of perpendicular architecture in Yorkshire.  
Erected in 1483 during the reign of Richard III is the Chapel of Our Lady on 
Rotherham Bridge, one of only four of its kind remaining in the country.  Roche 
Abbey is a dramatic ruin dating from 1147.  It lies approximately 12 miles to the 
east of the town, near the village of Maltby.  Situated in a meadow by a stream, its 
surroundings were landscaped in the 1770’s by Capability Brown.  On the north-
west side of the Borough lies Wentworth Woodhouse, the former country home and 
seat of the Earls Fitzwilliam.  Its façade is the longest of any stately home in Britain, 
and, while the house is a private residence, its outward splendour can be viewed 
from footpaths through the surrounding park.  In the vicinity of Wentworth 
Woodhouse are several follies and monuments such as Hoober Stand (erected at 
the highest point in the Borough), Keppel’s Column the Needle’s Eye and 
Rockingham Mausoleum.  Boston Castle, another folly dating from the 18th century, 
is situated in Boston Park just beyond Rotherham town centre. 
 
There are 5 local nature reserves in Rotherham, found at Catcliffe Flash, Firsby 
Reservoirs, Keppels Field/Scholes Coppice/Brays Plantation, Warren Vale and 
Maltby Common.  Rotherham contains 4 Registered Historic Parks, 25 
Conservation Areas, 77 Ancient Woodlands and 7 Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest.  Rotherham’s Heritage Site Register, which includes not only specific 
protected sites, but all sites with a known interest, contains around 670 sites.  
These include sites registered for natural history, ancient woodland, Regionally 
Important Geological Sites, landscape, archaeology, listed buildings and local 
social history. 
 
 

2.3 Geology of the Area  
 

The geology of the area may be a major influence on pollution linkages, as 
pathways may be created or limited by the underlying geology, for example, with 
gravels and clays respectively.  Certain geological strata may be contamination 
receptors such as aquifers, or may indeed be a source of contamination, for 
example, radon emissions from granites and limestones and arsenic in Coal 
Measures.  
 
The geology of Rotherham comprises sandstones, shales and coal seams of the 
Lower, Middle and Upper Coal Measures, which generally dip to the east, where 
they are overlain unconformably by limestones and marls of the Permo-Trias. In 
general, they compromise a thick sequence of rocks (up to 1500 metres) which are 
characterised by the repeated sequence of mudstone, siltstone, sandstone, seat 
earth, coal.  Each sequence is rarely more than 15 metres, but where a greater 
thickness occurs it is due to a greater thickness of sandstone.  The Coal Measures 

Page 45



10 

are extensively faulted.  There are minor outcrops at the extreme east of the 
Borough of the Permian Marls and Sands.  The Lower Magnesian Limestone 
consists of thin bedded to massive dolomitic limestones up to 60 metres thick. 
Geological faults cross the area, trending in a north west to south east or north east 
to south west direction, with the bedrock being covered in parts by newer deposits 
of alluvium and boulder clay.  Along the major river valleys of the Don and Rother, 
superficial deposits of Alluvium, 1st. Terrace, Sands and Gravels are found.  These 
are often areas where industrial development occurs, both currently and 
historically. 
 
 

2.4 Hydrogeology and Hydrology of the Area 
 
Groundwater is used throughout the North East Region of England for many 
purposes from small private domestic wells abstracting less than 10 cubic metres 
per day to major public supply boreholes abstracting over 10,000m3/d.  In 
Rotherham, two water companies supply public water, namely Yorkshire Water plc 
and Severn Trent Water plc. 
 
Through the Borough, the major rivers of the Don and Rother flow, with their 
confluence in Rotherham town centre.  Downstream, and to the northern boundary 
of the Borough, the River Dearne meets the Don.  There are a number of reservoirs 
in the Borough, primarily forming part of the Country Park resources.  The South 
Yorkshire Navigation Canal passes through the centre of the Borough to the north, 
and to the south, the Chesterfield Canal is found. 
 
Aquifers provide a base-flow component for the flow of many of the region’s rivers.  
For the Pennine rivers this may be quite low, and they respond flashily to rainfall 
and run-off. 

 
The Lower Magnesian Limestone is a Major Aquifer and lies to the east of the 
Borough.   

 
The Lower and Upper Magnesian Limestones are separated by the Middle Permian 
Marls and form locally important aquifers.  Aquifer properties are very variable due 
to lateral and vertical variations in lithology.  However, fissuring of the Limestone, 
often associated with faulting, and sometimes Karstic conditions may provide large 
borehole yields, but also results in the aquifer being susceptible to pollution.  
Extensive quarrying of the Limestone provides an increased pollution risk because 
of the reduction in thickness of the unsaturated zone and removal of overburden.  

 
The Coal Measures, though classed as a minor aquifer, may provide good borehole 
yields and many industrial supplies rely on them.  The major sandstones are the 
aquifers, but groundwater flow is extensively affected by the faulting and fissuring of 
the rocks, and also by the results of coal mining and associated dewatering 
activities. Particularly in the north of the Borough, dewatering has stopped and 
minewater levels are rising in the old workings. In the south of the Borough, 
dewatering is continuing to protect continuing mining.   
 
Because of the complex, and often poorly understood, hydrogeology it is impossible 
to subdivide the Coal Measures into aquifers and non-aquifers except on a very 
detailed level and the whole sequence must therefore be considered in general 
terms an aquifer. 

Page 46



11 

 
Significant contamination occurs on many old mining sites, especially where there 
were coking plants and also on old gas works and these may cause surface and 
groundwater problems.  Deep mining has also left a legacy of poor groundwater 
quality on parts of the Coal Measures. As dewatering from deep mines ceases this 
poor quality water is likely to find its way to the surface and cause contamination of 
surface waters. Older parts of the coalfield, such as those below Rotherham, have 
longstanding problems from a number of minewater discharges in the South 
Yorkshire area. 

 
 

2.5  Known Information on Contamination 
 

By virtue of the past industrial heritage of the area and the large-scale closure of 
these sectors of industry from the mid 1980s, the Council is aware of the significant 
likelihood of contamination across major areas of the Borough.  As part of the urban 
regeneration programme, it has undertaken a number of major rolling programmes 
of site investigation and reclamation in the Wath/Manvers, Catcliffe/Orgreaves and 
Templeborough areas, plus a number of other discrete schemes particularly on 
colliery and town gasworks sites.  Both Environment and Development Services 
and Neighbourhood and Adult Services have been pro-active in addressing these 
sites.  As a result, a number of site investigation reports and reclamation schemes 
are held on file in the form of paper records by the two Services. 
 
It is recognised, however, that due to the nature of the industrial usage of the area, 
other sites may contain contaminants associated with these and other industries, 
together with possible contamination from a number of former landfill sites, typical 
of the urban area. 

 
 
2.6 Land owned by Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council  
 

The Council either owns or has owned a wide-ranging portfolio of land and 
property.  Unfortunately, there is no one overall listing of all Council owned land, as 
all details are held by individual Directorates.  The land owned by the Council 
includes housing, car parks, parks, woodland, allotments, commercial premises, 
and landfill sites. 

 
  

Page 47



12 

CHAPTER 3: OVERALL AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE STRATEGY 
 
3.1 Introduction 

 
The production of this strategy document is a requirement of the statutory 
guidance.  It is designed to show that the approach to assessing land in the 
Borough for designating land as contaminated land: 
 
• is rational, ordered and efficient; 
• is proportionate to the seriousness of any actual or potential risk; 
• ensures that the most pressing and serious problems are located first; 
• ensures that resources are concentrated on investigating in areas the 

Council is most likely to identify contaminated land; and  
• efficiently identifies requirements for the detailed inspection of particular 

areas of land.  
 
It is also designed to inform all Stakeholders of the Council’s intentions and to 
provide information to The Environment Agency for its reporting on contaminated 
land.  The strategy should be compatible with the Council’s key themes and the 
objectives of sustainability and is freely available to all Council Services and the 
public to inspect. 
 
 

3.2 Objectives of the New Regime 
 

The overriding objectives are: 
 
• to improve the focus and transparency of the controls in relation to 

contaminated land, ensuring that the Council takes a strategic approach to 
problems of land contamination; 

• to enable all problems resulting from contamination to be handled as part of    
the same process; 

• to increase the consistency of approach taken by different local authorities;   
• to provide a more tailored, regulatory mechanism, including liability rules 

better able to reflect the complexity and range of circumstances found on 
individual sites. 

 
In addition to these objectives, there is also significant emphasis placed on 
voluntary remedial action, rather than through service of a Remediation Notice etc.    

 
 
3.3 Priorities of Rotherham MBC  
 

The priorities of the Council when, dealing with contaminated land, are to: 
 

• protect human health; 
• protect controlled waters; 
• protect specified ecosystems; 
• prevent damage to property (livestock, buildings, etc); 
• prevent further land contamination; 
• encourage voluntary remediation; and 
• encourage re-use of brownfield sites. 

Page 48



13 

3.4 Aims of Rotherham MBC 2009-2012 
   

• To meet the requirements of DEFRA Circular 01/2006; 
• To follow DEFRA’s advice and good practice  
• To ensure that the strategy supports the Council’s priorities; 
• To undertake an assessment of land for which Rotherham MBC may 

itself be responsible for (‘the appropriate person’) and ensure that the 
Council is aware of any potential land contamination liabilities arising 
from its own portfolio of land, so as to enable appropriate action to be 
taken; 

• To undertake assessments of contaminated land in accordance with 
Development on Land Affected by Contamination: YAHPAC Technical 
Guidance for Developers, Landowners and Consultants (March 2010) 

• To identify statutory receptors and targets; 
• To assess possible risk to those receptors, including evidence of actual 

harm or pollution of controlled waters;   
• To evaluate information on possible presence of contamination; 
• To justify inspection of particular areas;  
• To check assumptions and specify priorities at appropriate intervals;  
• To identify and address contaminated land in an ordered, rational and 

efficient manner, based on the principles of risk assessment; 
• To deal with the issue of contaminated land in an open and transparent 

manner;  
• To liaise efficiently and exchange information with other Council 

Programme Areas and other Stakeholders, particularly the Environment 
Agency; 

• To do all it can to prevent any unnecessary ‘blight’ of land in the 
Borough;  

• To ensure that any response is proportionate to the seriousness of 
actual or potential risk, and the specific circumstances of the case. 

 
 

  

Page 49



14 

CHAPTER 4: LOCAL AUTHORITY PRIORITY ACTIONS AND TIMESCALES 
 
Based on the information contained in the previous chapters, the following broad 
phased plan to meet the regulatory requirements, together with the time-scales to 
be followed, is proposed.  Much of the work described here is considered in detail 
in the chapters that follow. 
 
 

4.1 Production of Strategy Document 
 

The Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy was formally adopted by Council on 
2nd July 2001. 
 
 

4.2 Acquisition of Geographical Information System (G.I.S.) Semi-quantitative 
Screening Tool and Databases Containing Information on Receptors, 
Pathways and Targets 

 
The Council uses a significant digital data and a geographical information systems 
package, utilising MapInfo, to facilitate this.  The semi-quantitative risk screening 
tool is used to ensure that the information concerning receptors and potential 
contaminants can be matched and prioritised, to ensure that the potentially worst 
case situations are investigated first.  
 
Prioritisation Process:  
The prioritisation process was completed in 2006. 
 
 

4.3 Detailed Site Inspections 
 
 The next stage in the risk assessment process, is to inspect the sites in order of 

priority.  Such inspections are required to obtain sufficient information to be able to 
determine if the land appears to be contaminated land (and in particular, evidence 
of the actual presence of a pollutant), and if so, if it falls within the definition of a 
special site.  This will be based on a phased information gathering exercise, using 
any or all of the following: 
 
• Collation and assessment of documentary information, or other information 

from other bodies; 
• A visit to the particular area for visual inspection and in some cases, limited 

sampling, such as surface deposits; 
• Intrusive investigation of the land, for example, exploratory excavations. 
 
If these investigations confirm that the pollutant linkage is significant (contaminant 
resulting in significant harm or the significant possibility of such harm being caused 
to the specified receptors or resulting in or likely to result in pollution of controlled 
waters), then the land will be statutorily defined as contaminated, and the 
procedures in the following chapters will be followed.  In order to undertake this 
level detail of individual sites, it is anticipated that this process will be ongoing until 
completion of investigation of all sites considered appropriate.  However, at this 
stage, it is not known how many such sites will require investigation, until all the 
relevant data has been inputted and assessment completed. 
 

Page 50



15 

Dealing with Urgent Sites 
 
 If at any stage of the process involved in the strategy production, prioritisation and 

inspection, it is considered that: 
 

• There is an imminent danger of serious harm or serious pollution of 
controlled waters, being caused; and 

• It is necessary for the authority to carry out the remediation itself to prevent 
that harm or pollution; or  

• the site is referred by the Environment Agency for determination as a special 
site,  

 
then these will take priority over the routine programmed work. 
 
Provisional Programme 2010-2013 
 
Investigation Programme No of sites to be inspected 
1/4/10-31/03/11 10 
1/4/11-31/03/12 10 
1/4/12-31/03/13 10 
 
This is subject to the demands on the Community Protection Service. 

 
 

Page 51



16 

CHAPTER 5: GENERAL LIAISON AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES 
 
 
5.1 Liaison with Statutory Bodies 
 

The following organisations were consulted with regard to the strategy and their 
comments taken into consideration before publishing the final strategy: 
 

• The Environment Agency; 
 
• Natural England 

 
• Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA); 

 
 

5.2 Liaison with Other Interested Parties (Stakeholders) 
 
 

In addition to the above statutory consultees, it is essential that all Services within 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council help and play their part in developing and 
implementing the strategy, and will continue as the strategy develops.  These 
include: 
 

 
• RMBC Planning and Regeneration: The inspection of the Borough will 

ultimately identify areas of potentially contaminated land that may 
subsequently be identified for development.  Numerous planning 
applications in the past have required contamination to be addressed, 
and reports of investigation and remediation will be held on file.  
Information concerning land use throughout the Borough, and the 
Unitary Development Plan are held by Planning Services; 

• RMBC Legal & Democratic Services: The legislation is complex and will 
require legal interpretation and guidance as the regime progresses, both 
for enforcement purposes and in terms of liability for sites owned by the 
Council which may be resulting in or have resulted in contamination; 

• RMBC Environment and Development Services and 2010 Rotherham 
Ltd.: May have in the past caused or currently be responsible for 
pollution, which subsequently requires addressing, or may have details 
of pollution sources;   

• Land Development Service: Conveyancing and sale or purchase of land 
which may have the potential for contamination and the legal 
implications of this will require careful consideration; 

• RMBC Children and Young Peoples Services: May currently own or 
lease land which could be subject to the contaminated land regime and 
require remediation; 

• Chief Executive: There is potential for significant resource implications 
upon the Council as a result of the legislation, both in its regulatory role 
and as the owner of sites which may be considered to be contaminated; 

• Neighbourhood and Adult Services: Not only in its role as regulator and 
the lead Service developing the strategy for contaminated land, but also 
in respect of existing knowledge of prior contaminated land assessments 
and remediation, as part of its statutory nuisance and planning consultee 

Page 52



17 

role, plus urban regeneration activities, in conjunction with the other 
Council Directorates. 

 
The following adjoining local authorities were consulted: 

 
• Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council; 
• Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council; 
• Sheffield City Council; 
• North East Derbyshire District Council; 
• Bolsover District Council; and  
• Bassetlaw District Council. 

 
The Council will seek to assist bodies which work closely on joint projects.  
Organisations such as the Groundwork Partnerships and Yorkshire Forward 
contribute to the regeneration and environmental improvement of the Borough, and 
will be actively supported in this role. 
 
 

5.3 Communication 
 

Anyone wishing to discuss this strategy, or contaminated land in general, can 
contact officers at: 
 
Neighbourhood and Adult Services, Reresby House, Bow Bridge Close, Rotherham 
S60 1BY. 
 
Telephone:  01709 823172 
Fax:   01709 823154 
e.mail:  env.health@rotherham.gov.uk. 
 
It is intended to keep owners, occupiers and all other interested parties and 
stakeholders fully informed at each stage of the process of identifying contaminated 
land.  This will involve extensive consultation in order to attempt to arrive at an 
informal solution to any specific problems.  The ethos is that effective remediation 
is more likely to be achieved with informal agreement by all parties involved than by 
formal enforcement processes.  The new regime provides incentive to undertake 
voluntary remedial actions in preference to enforced remedial actions, which will be 
encouraged wherever possible.   
 
Once a particular site has been declared contaminated by statutory definition, the 
Council will prepare a written record which will include: 
 

• A description of the confirmed pollution linkage(s) including a conceptual 
model (plus information about any investigation reports available); 

• A summary of evidence confirming existence of the pollutant linkage(s); 
• A summary of risk assessment(s) upon which the pollutant linkage(s) 

were considered to be significant; 
• A summary of how the requirements of the statutory guidance were 

satisfied; 
• An indication of why the person is considered to be an appropriate 

person;  

Page 53



18 

• Information about any other person also notified and the capacity in 
which they were notified; and 

• Information about the tests for exclusion from and apportionment of 
liability. 

 
This formal notification will be provided to all relevant parties, including: 

  
• Owners of the land; 
• Occupiers of the land; 
• Those liable for remediation (the appropriate persons); and 
• The Environment Agency. 

 
It is, however, accepted that there will be times when not all those who may be 
relevant to the proceedings will be identifiable at the initial stages.  Steps will be 
taken to ensure that if further information is obtained which identifies other persons, 
then they are brought into the formal notification and consultation stages as soon 
as practicable. 
 
As previously identified, the Council will be using a risk based approach to the 
identification of contaminated land and is likely to be obtaining and recording large 
amounts of risk based data.  Officers will be available for discussions and 
meetings, as appropriate.  Communication of the information by the Council will be 
in a form that: 
 

• Is relevant to the group affected; 
• Is relevant to those requesting the information; 
• Is clear consistent and concise; 
• Is not overly technical; 
• Allows equal access to all; 
• Includes all relevant stakeholders; 
• Invites feedback; and 
• Will be communicated objectively in a timely and transparent manner. 

 
 
5.4 Public Register 

 
In addition to informal communications, the Council is required to maintain a 
register of the regulatory action taken under Part IIA.  This will be a paper record, 
and available for public inspection at all reasonable times.  The Register content is 
prescriptive and is required to include: 
 

• Remediation Notices; 
• Remediation Declarations; 
• Remediation Statements and notifications of claimed remediation; 
• Details of site reports obtained by the Council in relation to Remediation 

Notices; 
• Designation of sites as Special Sites; 
• Any appeals lodged against remediation and Charging Notices; 
• Convictions; 
• Information on contaminated land that the Council is responsible for; 
• Other environmental controls; 
• Agency site-specific guidance. 

Page 54



19 

 
If the information obtained is, in the opinion of The Secretary of State, against the 
interests of national security, is commercially confidential or relates to the affairs of 
an individual or business, then this can be excluded from the Public Register. 
 
The Public Register is kept at: 
 
Neighbourhood and Adult Services, Reresby House, Bow Bridge Close, Rotherham 
S60 1BY 
 
Telephone:  01709 823172 
Fax:   01709 823154 
e.mail:  env.health@rotherham.gov.uk. 
 
The register  can be inspected between the hours of 09.30 and 16.30, Monday to 
Friday, free of charge.  Requests for photocopies of documents will be charged for. 
 

5.5 The Environmental Information Regulations 1992 
 
In addition to the Public Register, there will be a significant amount of 
environmental information held by the Council, as a result of implementing the Part 
IIA provisions.  Requests for specific environmental information may be made by 
landowners, consultants, developers and members of the public, etc.  This 
information will be made available unless there are ‘compelling and substantive 
reasons to withhold it’.  These reasons include: 
 

• international relations, national defence, public security; 
• legal proceedings; 
• confidential deliberations; 
• internal communications; 
• unfinished documents; 
• commercial confidentiality; 
• statutory restrictions; 
• personal information; 
• volunteered information; and 
• potentially damaging information. 

 
Requests for information under the Regulations will be dealt with as soon as 
possible and in any case, within two months of receipt of the request and will either 
result in provision of the information requested or details of the reasons for refusal 
to provide the information.  The information provided will be subject to a charge 
reflecting the costs of obtaining the information.  Any information provided will be 
given to the best of the Authority’s knowledge but cannot be relied upon to be 
complete or accurate and the enquirer will still need to satisfy themselves whether 
or not the information provided is complete or accurate. 
 

5.6 Provision of information to The Environment Agency 
 

The inspection strategy document must be provided to The Environment Agency, 
who will summarise the overall findings and highlight the proportion of Authorities 
that have delivered strategies.  It will not publish the details of any individual 
strategy.   

Page 55



20 

 
The Council is also required to notify The Environment Agency if a site is 
determined to be contaminated land.  This information is required to enable the 
Environment Agency to compile reports and also to assist in deciding whether or 
not it should provide site specific advice.   
 
All formal action taken with regard to contaminated land must also be forwarded to 
The Environment Agency, as and when this takes place.   
 
In addition, summary information is required to be provided to the Environment 
Agency, in order to assist it in assessing the regulatory effort directed at Part IIA 
nationally.  Information concerning contaminated land which is considered to be (or 
likely to be) a special site would require information provision to the Environment 
Agency.                   
 

 
5.7 Use of Information by Other Services within Rotherham MBC 

  
Where the Council itself may be responsible for contaminated land, then the 
relevant Service will be advised forthwith, to enable it to commence investigations 
itself, in advance of the prioritised inspection procedure adopted by this Service.  
The Directorate responsible for the land in question may need to consider what 
remedial action is appropriate, and seek financial means to undertake this.  
Technical advice will be provided, where appropriate to do so, by Environmental 
Health, but in the pursuance of equity, any Service Area that finds itself responsible 
for contaminated land will be dealt with in a manner similar to that which a private 
individual or organisation would be.  
 
Land contamination or the potential for land contamination is a material 
consideration with respect to planning applications and must be considered by the 
local planning authority.  Where land which is not designated as contaminated by 
statutory definition but which contains contaminants but no pathway or receptor, if a 
new receptor is introduced to the site, or a pathway for a pollutant linkage created, 
by virtue of a planning application, it may then become statutorily contaminated, 
unless appropriate measures are taken at the planning stage.   
 
The provision of the G.I.S. information concerning the location of known potential 
contamination hazards, once the strategy’s information gathering work has been 
undertaken, will be made available to the Planning Services.  Planning applications 
received may be checked spatially against the G.I.S. information obtained by 
Neighbourhood and Adult Services.  For development sites that have the potential 
to impact on or near known or potential sources of contamination, consultation 
should be made with the Community Protection Unit.  Prior to planning permission 
being sought, the developer may need to investigate any hazards and propose 
remedial action which require consideration as to whether or not the proposed 
development is suitable.  In a situation where a lesser hazard is perceived or the 
proposals are suitable, the investigation assessment and remedial measures may 
be made part of any planning permission.  In addition, it is considered that ‘added 
value’ can be obtained from the planning process by giving additional advice on 
avoiding the creation of future land contamination, and having reference to 
Planning Policy Guidance PPG23 ‘Planning and Pollution Control’. 
 

Page 56



21 

In addition to the planning system, the Building Control Service may require 
measures to be taken to protect buildings and occupants from the effects of 
contamination.  
 
From time to time, other Services such as Estates Management may require 
information regarding land owned by the Council or to be purchased, in connection 
with contamination.  This information would be provided when requested. 
 
Provision will be required to ensure effective cross-reporting of the Council’s 
enforcement activities. 

Page 57



22 

CHAPTER 6: PROCEDURE FOR IDENTIFYING POTENTIALLY CONTAMINATED 
LAND 

 
 

6.1 Internal Management Arrangements for Inspection and Identification 
 

Within Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council, the Community Protection Unit 
within Housing and Neighbourhood Services has been designated as the lead 
service with responsibility for implementing Part IIA of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990, following the Environmental Health Committee Meeting of 25th February 
1999 (minute K646 of the 24th March 1999 Council Meeting refers). 
 
The responsibility for developing and implementing the strategy is part of the 
responsibility of the Community Protection Manager and Scientific Officer.  There 
will need to be consideration of the logistics of investigating the actual sites which 
demonstrate a potential pollutant linkage once the initial screening has been 
undertaken. 
 
Inspection and Assessment of contaminated land will be undertaken in accordance 
with Development on Land Affected by Contamination: YAHPAC Technical 
Guidance for Developers, Landowners and Consultants (March 2010) 

 
6.2 Principles of Risk Assessment    
        

The principles of risk assessment underlie the method of interpreting the impact of 
any contaminant, via a pathway, on a receptor.  They are designed to provide   
quantitative and qualitative assessment on a site specific basis, to ensure the 
protection of human health and the environment, without there being unnecessary 
expenditure on sites where the impact of the contamination is not significant, and 
conversely, to prevent insufficient action being taken on sites where the actual risk 
of harm is significant.   
 
This approach requires determination of the actual use of the site as well as the 
pathways and contaminants, and it is clear that different uses will result in different 
degrees of risk from any source of contamination.  Consequently, each site 
requires assessing on an individual basis as many factors are of relevance in 
determining whether or not the contaminant source will present significant harm or 
significant possibility of significant harm being caused. 

 
 
6.3 Requirements for Strategic Approach 

 
Local Authorities are required to take a strategic approach to inspecting land in its 
area for contamination.  Such an approach is required to: 
 

• Be rational, ordered and efficient; 
• Be proportionate to the seriousness of the actual or potential risk; 
• Seek to ensure the most pressing and serious problems are addressed 

first; 
• Ensure that resources are concentrated on investigating areas where the 

local authority is most likely to identify contaminated land; and 
• Ensure that the local authority efficiently identifies requirements for the 

detailed inspection of particular areas of land. 

Page 58



23 

6.4 Information Collection 
 
A large number of sources of information will need to be assessed to identify 
possible sources of contaminants, and to some degree at this stage, pathways.  
The local authority must then consider the location of specified receptors and the 
extent to which they are found in the area. 
 
Identifying Contaminants 
 
The following sources of data will be considered when identifying possible sources 
of contaminants: 
 
• Historical digital Ordnance Survey maps; 
• Present day digital Ordnance Survey maps; 
• Digital present aerial day photography; 
• Geological maps of Solid and Drift, Made Ground and Superficial digital 

maps; 
• Radon Areas maps; 
• Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) surveys carried out by former MAFF; 
• Current and Historic Landfill Sites Register (Council owned records); 
• Landfill and Quarrying Records (Council owned records); 
• Petroleum Records (past and present petrol filling stations); 
• Electrical Sub-Stations (past and present); 
• Scrap Yards; 
• Trade Directories Information; 
• Integrated Pollution Control Register (Environment Agency); 
• Part B Processes Register and records (Council owned records); 
• Environmental Health Records; 
• Planning Services’ Records; and 
• Other Council Service Area’s Records. 
 
Identifying Receptors 
 
The following sources of data will be considered when identifying possible 
receptors: 
 
• Present day digital Ordnance Survey maps; 
• Digital present aerial day photography; 
• Water abstraction maps (Public and private water abstractions from the 

Environment Agency); 
• Groundwater vulnerability zone maps (aquifer vulnerability digital maps to 

identify controlled waters); 
• Ground water source protection zone maps; 
• Ecological areas (SSSIs, AONB, etc); 
• Scheduled Ancient Monuments (County Sites and Monuments Record); 
• Listed Buildings (Council owned records); 
• Tree Preservation Orders (Council owned records); 
• Ancient Woodlands (Council owned records); 
• Private Water Supplies (Council owned records); 
• Unitary Development Plan (held by Planning Services); 
• Schools and Colleges (Council owned records); 

Page 59



24 

• Recreation Grounds (Council owned records);  
• Allotments (Council owned records); and 
• Information on river quality objectives. 

 
Receptors will be assessed within 50m and 250m of each potential source of 
contamination. 

 
Identifying Pathways 
 
These will depend to a great extent on the specific contaminants and receptors, but 
may include ingestion, inhalation and direct contact with humans.  In addition, to 
reach a receptor, the contaminant may travel along pathways in the soil, geological 
formations and man-made pathways such as sewers and mine-workings.  It can be 
seen, therefore, that it is less simple to identify pathways from the initial screening 
tool, but will initially be undertaken by reference to land use data and information 
concerning physical properties of relevant contaminants (e.g. how mobile a 
contaminant is etc.) 
 
 

6.5 Information Evaluation 
 

All information concerning potential sources of contaminants and potential 
pathways / receptors is correlated utilising a geographical information system, for 
receptors on, within 50m and 250m of a potential contaminant.  Each of the five 
categories of receptor (human beings, ecological systems, property in the form of 
buildings, property in the form of crops and livestock and controlled waters) is given 
a scoring number reflecting the sensitivity, typical pathways likely and the priority 
that the Council has assigned it.  Each land use that may contain contaminants will 
be similarly assigned a scoring number to reflect the likely hazards that may exist 
due to the typical contaminants associated with the particular land use (see 
appendix 4).   
 
The scores for all components will then be referenced to a number of matrices, per 
receptor, and a ‘risk ranking number’ obtained.   The higher the number, the greater 
will be the potential for significant harm or pollution of controlled waters, based on 
the desk study information used to run the model.  Those sites with the highest 
scores will be prioritised first for more detailed investigation and assessment.  This 
may involve site investigations and sampling, to confirm the presence of any of the 
contaminant, pathway or receptors necessary to create a pollutant linkage, and to 
obtain evidence of the actual presence of a contaminant. 
 
At this stage, the Council will also need to consider evidence relating to existing 
schemes of remediation for contaminated land that have already been undertaken 
as part of planning process or rolling programmes of reclamation.  This will be used 
in order to determine if there is a need to amend any ranking that has been made 
without the benefit of the knowledge of remediation.  Previous remediation 
schemes may still need to be assessed in detail as part of the programme of 
investigation, to consider the remediation that was undertaken, in light of current 
best practice and risk assessment principles.     
 
 
 

Page 60



25 

6.6 Information and Complaints  
 

It is envisaged that contacts from interested people will be received, regarding the 
potential for a site to be contaminated, in much the same way as other service 
requests. 
 
Initially, all requests will be logged and recorded on a computer database and, if not 
taken personally by the relevant officer, the customer will be contacted within 5 
working days to advise of its receipt and the likely course of action to be taken.  
  
Upon receipt of a service request regarding a piece of land which is suspected to 
be contaminated, reference will be made to any existing information already held in 
determining whether or not land may be contaminated, i.e. is the information 
received already known to the Council and held in the Contaminated Land 
Database.  If this is so, then the customer will be advised of the current position, in 
terms of the likely priority with which the site will be assessed further, having 
reference to any new information which might change the priority of the initial risk 
screening.   
 
If the information is not currently known or changes what is already known, then 
there will be an initial desk-top investigation of the likely robustness of the evidence 
provided.  If appropriate, an initial screening exercise will be undertaken, in the 
same manner as will have already taken place.  Once this has been undertaken, 
the customer will be advised as to the likely time-scale for detailed investigation of 
the site in question, or the reasons why this is not being pursued.   
 
There may be situations whereby land is considered by the public to contain 
contaminants, but which is not likely to be designated contaminated land by 
definition.  This may be due to the need for proof of a viable pollutant linkage, as 
described earlier, or because of the low concentrations of contaminants that do not 
present significant risk to health.  The reason for the Council reaching a decision 
not to pursue the information received further will need to be clearly explained, in 
terms of risk management.   
 
Where the customer has an interest in the land, particularly a financial interest, for 
example if a property is to be sold, etc., there may be a request for early 
investigation.  Whilst recognising the concern that this may cause, it is not the 
Council’s policy for any such request to circumvent the risk screening exercise, 
where sites presenting a greater risk to human health etc will continue to have 
higher priority than financial/commercial concerns to individuals.  Nevertheless, all 
assistance will be given to such customers were this is practicable, without causing 
deprioritisation of more urgent sites.   
 
If the customer is not happy with the response received from the Service, then the 
Council has a formal complaints procedure which may be invoked, and in the event 
of concerns of maladministration, the complaint has recourse to the Local 
Government Ombudsman. 
 
All customers will be asked for their name, address and telephone number and the 
address of the land giving rise to the complaint.  This may be essential in order to 
follow up or clarify any of the information initially provided.  As per normal Council 
policy, the details and identity of the customer will be kept confidential as far as 
legally possible.  If, however, a remediation notice was appealed in Court and initial 

Page 61



26 

designation of the land as contaminated was due to adverse health effects alleged 
on the customer, then the information regarding the customer may be made public.  
The Council does not normally undertake investigations based on anonymously 
supplied information, although in the case of land contamination, information 
received will be investigated in due course, having due regard to the detail of 
information and likely level of reliability, as part of the risk screening processes. 
 
As discussed in detail later, and in appendix 6, the Council subscribes to the Local 
Government Association’s Enforcement Concordat. 

 
 
6.7 Methods of Inspection   

 
Following initial risk ranking of sites, detailed inspection may be considered 
necessary for a number of sites, based on possible pollutant linkages that may 
exist.  Detailed inspection, prioritised in accordance with the screening tool, will be 
required, to obtain sufficient information: 
 
• To determine in accordance with the guidance, whether that land appears to 

be contaminated land (i.e. that the pollutant linkage is significant); and 
• To decide if the land requires designation as a special site. 
 
Detailed inspection will include any or all of the following: 
 

• Collation and assessment of documentary information, etc from other 
bodies; 

• Visits to the site for the purpose of visual inspection and in some cases, 
limited sampling; and 

• intrusive investigation of the land. 
 
Detailed inspection is often time consuming and expensive and will be undertaken 
on a phased basis, terminating as soon as it becomes clear that no significant 
pollutant linkage exists.  Any such inspection will cease once sufficient information 
has been obtained to confirm that a pollutant linkage does not exist or is not 
significant, although the information obtained will be kept on file and under review 
in the future. 
 
As much desk top information as possible will be obtained by the Council about a 
site which may be contaminated prior to making any detailed judgement upon this.  
This may involve detailed inspection of all historical data in its possession and other 
documents held within the Council and by other external bodies.  This may include 
contact with: 
 

• The Environment Agency; 
• DEFRA; 
• English Nature; 
• Health and Safety Executive; and 
• Developers, previous occupiers, etc. 

 
As previously detailed, site specific liaison in the manner already highlighted will 
also take place with the current occupier/owner and anyone else considered to be 
an appropriate person or have any involvement.  This may include DEFRA in the 

Page 62



27 

case of agricultural land, or South Yorkshire Archaeology Service in the case of 
archaeological features at the site.  
 
Once the initial desk top assessment has been undertaken and it is considered 
necessary to undertake further detailed inspection of the land in question, i.e. there 
is a reasonable possibility of a pollutant linkage, then on site testing, or the taking of 
samples from the site would be required.  Having reference to the sensitivity of the 
assessment, it is clear that tact and discretion will be employed at all times to 
minimise the effect of such investigations upon owners and occupiers of land and 
adjoining land. 
 
The Environment Act 1995 gives powers to a local authority to authorise a person 
to exercise specific powers of entry.  It must, however, be satisfied that there is a 
reasonable possibility of a pollutant linkage at the site, and if intrusive investigations 
are planned, that it is likely that the contaminant is actually present and the receptor 
is actually or likely to be present.  These powers will not be used where the 
information required can be obtained from third parties without the need for 
entering the land or the person offers to provide the information within a reasonable 
specified time and does so. 
 
In cases where imminent risk of serious harm or serious pollution of controlled 
waters has been confirmed, then urgent action will be authorised by the Council 
forthwith. 
 
 

6.8 Site Investigations 
 
Site investigations and inspections will only be carried out by adequately qualified 
personnel (from time to time, this work may be undertaken by external consultants), 
see appendix 5, in accordance with appropriate health and safety and technical 
procedures, in order to ensure that such investigations are: 
 

• competent; 
• effective; 
• efficient; 
• do not cause any unnecessary damage or harm (including to 

designated historic sites etc); and 
• do not cause pollution of controlled waters. 

 
Once again, investigations will be undertaken on an incremental basis and will 
usually involve an initial site visit and assessment visually for evidence of significant 
pollutant linkages.  This may be followed by surface and near surface sampling and 
only where absolutely necessary, intrusive sampling at depth by means of trial pits 
and boreholes. 
 
Contamination that is suspected and which may be on a site of national 
archaeological significance, or where the contamination is linked with former 
industrial sites that are scheduled, will require careful consideration before 
investigation commences.  The Sites and Monuments Record of South Yorkshire 
Archaeology Service should be consulted to identify any such interests before any 
work starts. 
 

Page 63



28 

There are statutory powers of entry conferred on the Council to enable it to carry 
out its functions under Part IIA. 
 
   

6.9 Potential Special Sites 
 

Details of what determines if a site is a special site is found in the Contaminated 
Land (England) Regulations 2000, and a summary is provided in appendix 1.  
Where the Council is aware that the land it intends to investigate would be a special 
site if declared as contaminated land, it will notify The Environment Agency in 
writing and request any information it may have on the land and the likelihood of 
pollutant linkages.  The Environment Agency will carry out inspections of land on 
behalf of the local authority if identified as a potential special site by the Council. 
 
 

6.10 Site Specific Risk Assessment 
 
The purpose of this is to determine if the contaminant is: 
 

• resulting in significant harm being caused to the receptor;  or 
• presenting a significant possibility of significant harm being caused to the 

receptor;  or 
• resulting in pollution of controlled waters;  or  
• likely to result in such pollution. 
 

If this is the case, then there is said to be a significant pollutant linkage and the land 
is judged as appearing to be statutorily contaminated land. 
 
To assist in determining this, DEFRA publishes a set of guidelines for 
contaminants, to assist in establishing whether a site poses an actual or potential 
risk to human health.  If contaminant concentrations are below values which are 
likely to cause significant harm, then the site will be considered safe, but if values 
are higher then further assessments will be required.  This model - The 
Contaminated Land Exposure Assessment (CLEA) uses a variety of Monte Carlo 
simulations in order to examine the various different pathways by which humans 
become exposed to soil contaminants.   
 
With regard to risk assessment for controlled waters, The Environment Agency’s 
advice will be sought, and assessed in accordance with guidance laid down in the 
Methodology for the Derivation of Remedial Targets for Soil and Groundwater to 
Protect Water Resources document (Environment Agency R&D Publication 20, 
1999).   

Page 64



29 

CHAPTER 7: PROCEDURE FOR REGULATING CONTAMINATED LAND 
 
7.1 Introduction 
 

Once detailed inspection has taken place and the risk assessment, which has been 
applied to a particular site, indicates that the land is designated as statutorily 
contaminated, there are specific procedures that must be followed.  Throughout, the 
Council will follow the good practice required by the Enforcement Concordat, as 
detailed in appendix 6. 

 
 

7.2 Formal Notification: Declaration of Contaminated Land 
 

Once a particular site has been declared contaminated by statutory definition, the 
Council will prepare a written record that will include: 
 

• A description of the confirmed pollution linkage(s) including a conceptual 
model (plus information about any investigation reports available); 

• A summary of evidence confirming existence of the pollutant linkage(s); 
• A summary of risk assessment(s) upon which the pollutant linkage(s) 

were considered to be significant; 
• A summary of how the requirements of the statutory guidance were 

satisfied; 
• An indication of why the person is considered to be an appropriate 

person;  
• Information about any other person also notified and the capacity in 

which they were notified; and 
• Information about the tests for exclusion from and apportionment of 

liability. 
 
This formal notification will be provided to all relevant parties, including: 
  

• Owners of the land; 
• Occupiers of the land; 
• Those liable for remediation (the appropriate persons); and 
• The Environment Agency. 

 
If the local authority considers that the contaminated land will also be a special site, 
it will inform the Environment Agency of that decision also.  There are provisions 
laid down for addressing the situation where there is disagreement about this 
designation between the local authority and the Environment Agency. 
 
It is, however, accepted that there will be times when not all those who may be 
relevant to the proceedings will be identifiable at the initial stages.  Steps will be 
taken to ensure that if further information is obtained which identifies other persons, 
then they are brought into the formal notification and consultation stages as soon 
as practicable. 
 
The purpose of formal notification is primarily to engage with those persons or 
organisations that may be responsible for remediating the land in question or be 
able to provide guidance.  The issuing of such a notice has the effect of starting the 
process of consultation process regarding what remediation may be appropriate.  

Page 65



30 

The statutory guidance places emphasis on the voluntary remediation of land rather 
than through formal action.  There are exemptions from landfill tax for materials 
removed from site as part of voluntary remediation, and the remediation process 
remains under the control of the appropriate person, with mutual agreement 
between all parties.  The agreed works to remediate the site will be formally agreed 
with all appropriate persons, and a Remediation Statement published.  This will 
contain information detailing: 
 
• The things which have been, are being or are expected to be done, by way 

of remediation in this case; 
• The name and address of the person who has done, is doing or is expected 

to do each of those things; 
• The time periods within which each thing is being, or is expected to be done. 
 
Remediation includes: 
 
• ‘the doing of anything for the purpose of assessing the condition of the 

contaminated land in question, any controlled waters affected by that land or 
any land adjoining or adjacent to that land; 

• the doing of any works, the carrying out of any operations or the taking of 
any steps in relation to any such land or waters for the purpose of preventing 
or minimising, or remedying or mitigating the effects of any significant harm, 
or any pollution of controlled waters, by reason of which the contaminated 
land is such land or of restoring the land or waters to their former state; or 

• the making of subsequent inspections from time to time for the purpose of 
keeping under review the condition of the land or waters.’ 

 
The Remediation Statement will be placed on the Public Register. 
 
The Council supports the initiative of voluntary remediation.  Only when there have 
been 3 months of consultation with the appropriate person(s) and it does not 
appear likely that voluntary remediation will take place, will the Council resort to the 
formal course of action open to it, i.e. service of a Remediation Notice. 
 

 
7.3 Responsibility for Remediation and Liability  
 

There may be more than one significant pollutant linkage on the site in question, 
which would require enforcement of liability.  When all have been identified, the 
apportionment of liability will be needed.  This will be undertaken by means of: 
 
• Identifying potential appropriate persons and liability groups; 
• Characterising remedial actions; 
• Attributing responsibility to liability groups; 
• Excluding members of liability groups; 
• Apportioning liability between members of a liability group. 
 
There are two liability groups which may exist for each pollutant linkage: 
 
• Appropriate Persons Class A – generally these a polluter or those who 

knowingly permit the pollution; 

Page 66



31 

• Appropriate Persons Class B – these exist where no Class A persons can be 
found and so the liability reverts to the owners or the occupiers of the site in 
question.  Tenants are excluded from liability as a Class B person (but may 
be a Class A person). 

 
All reasonable enquiries will be made by the Council to determine Class A persons 
before considering Class B persons.  The method by which liability is apportioned 
both between persons and within liability groups is a complex issue which is 
discussed at length in the statutory guidance.   
 
After considering the costs of remediation and its apportionment between persons 
in liability groups, the Council will consider whether any of those liable may not be 
able to afford the remediation action.  After taking into consideration the statutory 
guidance, it may decide not to serve a Remediation Notice on any of the parties, 
but carry out the works itself and produce and publish a Remediation Statement.  In 
cases where an owner-occupied dwelling is situated on contaminated land, and the 
owner-occupier is a Class B person who did not know, or could not have been 
reasonably expected to know that the land was adversely affected by a pollutant, 
then the Council will do what it can to mitigate any costs for remediation that 
become necessary. 
 
Orphan Sites 

 
Where the site is statutorily contaminated but after reasonable enquiries the 
Council cannot find any Class A or Class B persons responsible for it, or the 
persons who have been found are exempted from liability for specified reasons 
then the site is described as an ‘Orphan Site’.  The exemptions from liability are: 
 
• the land is contaminated by virtue of pollution of controlled waters only and 

no Class A person can be found; 
• land is contaminated by virtue of the escape of a pollutant from one piece of 

land to another and no Class A person can be found; 
• the land is contaminated by virtue of pollution of controlled waters from an 

abandoned mine; 
• the person was acting in a ‘relevant capacity’, such as Official Receiver or 

Insolvency Practitioner, etc. 
 
In such cases, the enforcing authority should bear the costs of the remediation. 
 
 

7.4 Enforcement Action: the Remediation Notice 
 

Except in urgent cases, Remediation Notices are only served as a last resort and 
only after the lengthy consultation described above has been exhausted.  Once the 
Council is satisfied, after this stage, that the remediation required will not be carried 
out unless a formal action is progressed and the Council has no power to carry out 
the work itself, then a Remediation Notice will be served on each appropriate 
person.   
 
Remediation will be designed to ensure that the land is no longer contaminated for 
its current use, taking the shortest and lowest cost route to achieve this.  The 
issues of ‘reasonableness’ is considered in detail in the statutory guidance, 
particularly in relation to the costs of carrying out the remediation against the 

Page 67



32 

potential costs resulting from the continuing contamination.  Remediation in the 
context of the Part IIA provisions includes further investigatory work and 
assessment to be undertaken prior to actual steps being taken to mitigate the 
contamination, and monitoring after the work has been undertaken, as well as the 
actual treatment action.  Remediation Notices may be phased as part of an overall 
Remediation Scheme, for example, initially requiring further assessment actions, 
then in light of these, specifying a remediation scheme, etc. 
 
A Remediation Notice will contain details of the contaminated land, the remediation 
required (which must be appropriate and cost effective, employing best practical 
techniques), the appropriate person, and the rights of appeal against the notice.  
Certain details on a Remediation Notice are required to be placed on the public 
register. 
 
Any person served with a Remediation Notice by the Council has a right of appeal 
to the magistrates’ court within 21 days of its service.  If the notice is served by the 
Environment Agency, then the appeal is to the Secretary of State.  The works 
required in the Notice are suspended (unless urgent action is deemed necessary) 
until the appeal has been determined. 
 
Urgent Remedial Action 
 
In urgent cases, there is no requirement to consult, wait for the 3 month 
consultation period to expire, nor serve a Remediation Notice if the appropriate 
person is not easily identifiable, before the Council or Environment Agency carries 
out the remediation itself.  Where urgent action is required, this must be authorised 
by the Council.  In such circumstances, the procedures may involve forced entry to 
the premises.  When the Council determines the urgent action is necessary for a 
special site, the Environment Agency will be notified immediately, who will then be 
responsible for remediation.  In appropriate cases, the Council will seek to recover 
costs of remediation work that it has undertaken.  Urgent remedial action may be 
required if: 
 
• There is an imminent danger of serious harm or serious pollution of 

controlled waters, being caused; and 
• It is necessary for the authority to carry out the remediation itself to prevent 

that harm or pollution. 
 
In such cases, the enforcing body must publish a Remediation Statement. 
 
 

7.5 Remediation by the Council 
 

There are circumstances where the Council can carry out remedial actions itself.  
These include where: 
 
• Urgent action is required; 
• No appropriate person can be found (‘orphan site’); 
• One or more appropriate persons are excluded on ground of hardship; 
• The local authority has made an agreement with the appropriate person that 

it should carry out the remediation; or 
• The person served with the Notice is in default of a Remediation Notice’s 

requirements.   

Page 68



33 

 
 
 
 
7.6 Follow-up Action 

 
There is a need to ensure that the requirements of a Remediation Statement or 
Notice have been carried out adequately and satisfactorily.  This will often be 
determined by reference to quality assurance and verification procedures specified 
in the remediation actions.  In phased remediation schemes, the Council will also 
need to consider if and what further remedial action is needed.  The person who 
carried out remediation that was required can notify the enforcing body of the action 
undertaken, and the details of the ‘claimed remediation’ are placed on the Register 
(but cannot be taken as being approved or accurate by the local authority). 
 
If the agreed scheme in a Remediation Statement has not been undertaken, then 
the enforcing body will need to consider if it is now appropriate to serve a 
Remediation Notice. 
 
If the requirements of a Remediation Notice have not been complied with, the 
enforcing body must decide whether to prosecute that person for failing to comply 
with a remediation Notice without reasonable excuse.  They may also undertake 
the remedial works themselves and recover the reasonable costs from the 
appropriate person in so doing. 

 
 
7.7 Considering Rotherham MBC’s Own Interests in Land 
 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council and its predecessors both own and have 
owned in the past a number of premises and property within the Borough.  These 
may have or have had potentially contaminative activities.  Information as to 
ownership of Council land, both past and present, is held within the Estates Section 
of the Council.  It may be that as well as being the owner or occupier of 
contaminated land, the Council no longer owns the land in question, but as the 
initial polluter etc, becomes the appropriate person for remediation requirements.  
Many Council Service Units may discover that they are responsible for 
contaminated land, for example, those that have a sensitive receptor, such as 
allotments and schools, or those that have potential to create contaminants, such 
as engineering and waste disposal matters. 
 
If land for which the Council is itself responsible is found to be contaminated, there 
is no enforcing authority, unless the land is designated as a special site.  However, 
in order to address such land, the local authority must carry out the same 
assessment and consultation as if they were the enforcing authority and then seek 
appropriate remedial works as necessary.   
 
It will therefore be necessary for a formal relationship between the service 
responsible for the land in question and the Community Protection Service to be 
maintained, in order to ensure that the regime is fully implemented. Formal 
reporting to the relevant Council Cabinet will take place, and advice on what action 
the appropriate person is required to take will be provided to relevant officers. 
 

Page 69



34 

In order to establish the potential liability for Council land it will be necessary to 
ascertain all land within the Borough, which: 
 

• is or has been owned by the Council; 
• is or has been occupied by the Council; 
• is an area of land where the Council is the ‘appropriate person’ 

responsible for remediation under the legislation. 
 
This information is likely to be dispersed throughout the Council, particularly for 
older records, which will be paper based, and its research is likely to be a lengthy 
process.  As soon as information comes to light that there is potential for land that 
is the responsibility of the Council to be declared contaminated, this information will 
be formally advised to the relevant Service Unit in advance of detailed assessment 
in the priority ranking.  This will enable the Council to ‘put its own house in order’ as 
quickly as practicable. 

Page 70



35 

CHAPTER 8: REVIEW MECHANISMS 
 
8.1 Review of assumptions and information 
 

From time to time there may be occasions when inspections need to be undertaken 
outside the ranking order provided by the semi-quantitative screening tool, and be 
re-prioritised as appropriate.  These include: 
 
• unplanned events such as a spillage of material; 
• introduction of new receptors, such as designation of a new protected 

ecosystem or evidence of regular  trespass onto a site; 
•  identification of localised health effects which may relate to particular land; 
• responding to information from other statutory bodies, members of the 

public, etc. 
 
There will also be times when previous inspection decisions require reviewing, for 
example: 
 
• significant changes in legislation; 
• establishment of new case law, etc; 
• review of guideline values for exposure assessment; 
• provision of new information which changes some other relevant factor used 

to  determine the initial inspection decision; 
• programmed reviewing of sites previously determined as ‘land in a 

contaminated state’, but not statutorily contaminated. 
 

Inspection procedures will be audited by the Community Protection Service, to 
ensure compliance with the legislation and appropriate levels of technical expertise 
are employed throughout.  
 

 
8.2 Review of Strategy Document 

 
The strategy as a whole will be reviewed by the Council on an annual basis and 
any proposed changes incorporated as necessary.  This may include potential for 
the introduction of new receptors or sources of contamination, identification of 
special site and progress with the implementation.  

Page 71



36 

CHAPTER 9: INFORMATION MANAGEMENT 
 
9.1 General Principles 

 
A large amount of information will be held in the form of reports, maps, letters and 
other documents, inevitably with significant variation in formats and standards of 
the documents.  Much information will be obtained, stored and used in digital 
format, via the G.I.S. computer package being used for the purposes of the Part IIA 
provisions.  Much of this information will be available for members of the public, to 
have copies of, under the Environmental Regulations 1992, although there are 
specific exemptions that may prevent certain information being released.   
 
In addition, the Public Register required under Part IIA will be maintained as 
required by statute, and will act as the full and permanent record of all regulatory 
action taken under the Part IIA provisions. 
 
 

9.2 Information Storage Systems    
 

The G.I.S. is the major system for the storage, manipulation, analysis and 
visualisation of digital spatial data.  The G.I.S. uses a database that allows spatial 
data information to be referenced and linked to attributed data (information about 
what is at the particular place in question).  It is possible to link together both spatial 
and attributed data to enable simple analyses of significant amounts of data.  It is 
the G.I.S. MapInfo package which will be used by Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council upon which to enter all information concerning the land it is investigating as 
a result of the Part IIA provisions. 
 
Environmental data sets, however, can be provided in both paper and digital form.  
It is likely that both forms will be utilised as part of the strategy assessment tools.  
However, data sets may contain errors and it is important that such errors can be 
quantified and assessed in order to enable meaningful results to be obtained. 
 
National Geo-spatial Data Framework (NGDF) Standards for data logging are to be 
followed, to provide documentation in a recognised format.  Information that will be 
stored as a dataset will be described as follows: 
 

• Identification; 
• Subject matter; 
• Originator; 
• Access, use and restrictions; 
• Time of capture; 
• Geographical extent; and 
• Data supplier. 

 
The computerised holding of data will be backed up via the Council’s computer 
network each night, with tapes held on a 4-weekly rotation cycle.           

Page 72



37 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
The statutory guidance and circular use a number of terms which are defined in 
Part IIA of the 1990 Act, other Acts or in the guidance itself. The meanings of some 
of these terms are used in the strategy document, and are set out below, along with 
a reference to the section in the Act or the paragraph in which the relevant term is 
defined. 
 
Apportionment: any determination by the enforcing authority under section 78F( 7) 
(that is, a division of the costs of carrying out any remediation action between two 
or more appropriate persons). Paragraph D.5(e) 
 
Appropriate person: defined in section 78A(9) as ‘any person who is an 
appropriate person, determined in accordance with section 78F, to bear 
responsibility for any thing which is to be done by way of remediation in any 
particular case.’ 
 
Assessment action: a remediation action falling within the definition of remediation 
in section 78A(7)(a), that is the doing of anything for the purpose of assessing the 
condition of the contaminated land in question, or any controlled waters affected by 
that land or any land adjoining or adjacent to that land. Paragraph C.8(e) 
 
Building: any structure or erection, and any part of a building including any part 
below ground, but not including plant or machinery comprised in a building. Table A 
 
Class A liability group: a liability group consisting of one or more Class A 
persons. Paragraph D.5(c) 
 
Class A person: a person who is an appropriate person by virtue of section 78F(2) 
(that is, because he has caused or knowingly permitted a pollutant to be in, on or 
under the land). Paragraph D.5(a) 
 
Class B liability group: a liability group consisting of one or more Class B 
persons. Paragraph D.5(c) 
 
Class B person: a person who is an appropriate person by virtue of section 78P(4) 
or (5) (that is, because he is the owner or occupier of the land in circumstances 
where no Class A person can be found with respect to a particular remediation 
action). Paragraph D.5(b) 
 
Contaminant: a substance which is in, on or under the land and which has the 
potential to cause harm or to cause pollution of controlled waters. Paragraph A12 
 
Contaminated land: defined in section 78A(2) as ‘any land which appears to the 
local authority in whose area it is situated to be in such a condition, by reason of 
substances in, on or under the land, that- 
(a) significant harm is being caused or there is a significant possibility of such 
harm being caused, or; 
(b) pollution of controlled waters is being, or is likely to be, caused.’ 
 
Contaminated Land (England) Regulations 2000: regulations (S.I. 2000/22 7) 
made under Part IIA. 
 

Page 73



38 

Controlled waters: defined in section 78A(9) by reference to Part III (section 104) 
of the Water Resources Act 1991; this embraces territorial and coastal waters, 
inland fresh waters, and ground waters. 
 
 
Current use: any use which is currently being made, or is likely to be made, of the 
land and which is consistent with any existing planning permission (or is otherwise 
lawful under town and country planning legislation). This definition is subject to the 
following qualifications: 
(a) the current use should be taken to include any temporary use, permitted under 
town and country planning legislation, to which the land is, or is likely to be, put 
from time to time; 
(b) the current use includes future uses or developments which do not require a 
new, or amended, grant of planning permission; 
(c) the current use should, nevertheless, be taken to include any likely informal 
recreational use of the land, whether authorised by the owners or occupiers or not, 
(for example, children playing on the land); however, in assessing the likelihood of 
any such informal use, the local authority should give due attention to measures 
taken to prevent or restrict access to the land; and 
(d) in the case of agricultural land, however, the current agricultural use should not 
be taken to extend beyond the growing or rearing of the crops or animals which are 
habitually grown or reared on the land. Paragraph A.26 
 
Enforcing authority: defined in section 78A(9) as:  
(a) in relation to a special site, the Environment Agency; 
(b) in relation to contaminated land other than a special site, the local authority in 
whose area the land is situated. 
 
Exclusion: any determination by the enforcing authority under section 78F(6) (that 
is, that a person is to be treated as not being an appropriate person). Paragraph 
D.5(d) 
 
Hardship: a factor underlying any cost recovery decision made by an enforcing 
authority under section 78P(2). See paragraphs 10.8 to 10.10 of Annex 2 for a 
discussion of the interpretation of this term. 
 
Harm: defined in section 78A(4) as harm to the health of living organisms or other 
interference with the ecological systems of which they form part and, in the case of 
man, includes harm to his property. 
 
Inspection using statutory powers of entry: any detailed inspection of land 
carried out through use of powers of entry given to an enforcing authority by section 
108 of the Environment Act 1995. Paragraph B.21 
 
Intrusive investigation: an investigation of land (for example by exploratory 
excavations) which involves actions going beyond simple visual inspection of the 
land, limited sampling or assessment of documentary information. Paragraph 
B.20(c) 
 
Liability group: the persons who are appropriate persons with respect to a 
particular significant pollutant linkage. Paragraph D.5(c) 
 
Local authority: defined in section 78A(9) as meaning any unitary authority, district 

Page 74



39 

council, the Common Council of the City of London, the Sub-Treasurer of the Inner 
Temple and the Under-Treasurer of the Middle Temple. 
 
Monitoring action: a remediation action falling within the definition in section 
78A(7)(c), that is ‘making of subsequent inspections from time to time for the 
purpose of keeping under review the condition of the land or waters’. Paragraph 
C.8(g) 
 
Orphan linkage: a significant pollutant linkage for which no appropriate person can 
be found, or where those who would otherwise be liable are exempted by one of 
the relevant statutory provisions. Paragraphs D. 12, D. 14 and D. 17 
 
Owner: defined in section 78A(9) as a person (other than a mortgagee not in 
possession) who, whether in his own right or as trustee for any other person, is 
entitled to receive the rack rent of the land, or where the land is not let at a rack 
rent, would be so entitled if it were so let. 
 
Part IIA: Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
Pathway: one or more routes or means by, or through, which a receptor: 
(a) is being exposed to, or affected by, a contaminant, or 
 (b) could be so exposed or affected. Paragraph A. 14 
 
Pollutant: a contaminant which forms part of a pollutant linkage. Paragraph A. 17 
 
Pollutant linkage: the relationship between a contaminant, a pathway and a 
receptor. Paragraph A. 17 
 
Pollution of controlled waters: defined in section 78A(9) as ‘the entry into 
controlled waters of any poisonous, noxious or polluting matter or any solid waste 
matter. 
 
Possibility of significant harm: a measure of the probability, or frequency, of the 
occurrence of circumstances which would lead to significant harm being caused. 
Paragraph A.27 
 
Receptor: either: 
(a) a living organism, a group of living organisms, an ecological system or a piece 
of property which: 
(i) is in a category listed in Table A in Chapter A as a type of receptor, and 
(ii) is being, or could be, harmed, by a contaminant; or 
(b) controlled waters which are being, or could be, polluted by a contaminant. 
Paragraph A. 13 
 
Register: the public register maintained by the enforcing authority under section 
78R of particulars relating to contaminated land. 
 
Related companies: are those which are, or were at the ‘relevant date’, members of 
a group of companies consisting of a ‘holding company’ and its ‘subsidiaries’. The 
‘relevant date’ is that on which the enforcing authority first served on anyone a 
notice under section 78B(3) identifying the land as contaminated land, and the 
terms ‘holding company’ and ‘subsidiaries’ have the same meaning as in section 
736 of the Companies Act 1985. Paragraph D.46 

Page 75



40 

 
Relevant information: information relating to the assessment of whether there is a 
significant possibility of significant harm being caused, which is:  
(a) scientifically-based; 
(b) authoritative; 
(c) relevant to the assessment of risk arising from presence of contaminants in soil 
& 
(d) appropriate to the determination of whether any land is contaminated land for 
the purposes of Part IIA, in that the use of the information is consistent with 
providing a level of protection of risk in line with the qualitative criteria set out in 
Tables A and B of Chapter A, Paragraph A.3 
 
Remedial treatment action: a remediation action falling within the definition in 
section 78A (7)(b), that is the doing of any works, the carrying out of any operations 
or the taking of any steps in relation to any such land or waters for the purpose: 
(a) of preventing or minimising, or remedying or mitigating the effects of any 
significant harm, or any pollution of controlled waters, by reason of which the 
contaminated land is such land, or 
(b) of restoring the land or waters to their former state. Paragraph C.8(f) 
 
Remediation: defined in section 78A(7) as 
(a) the doing of anything for the purpose of assessing the condition of: 
(i) the contaminated land in question; 
(ii) any controlled waters affected by that land; or  
(iii) any land adjoining or adjacent to that land; 
(b) the doing of any works, the carrying out of any operations or the taking of any 
steps in relation to any such land or waters for the purpose - 
(i) of preventing or minimising, or remedying or mitigating the effects of any 
significant harm, or any pollution of controlled waters, by reason of which the 
contaminated land is such land; or 
(ii) of restoring the land or waters to their former state; or 
(c) the making of subsequent inspections from time to time for the purpose of 
keeping under review the condition of the land or waters.’ 
 
Remediation action: any individual thing which is being, or is to be, done by way 
of remediation. Paragraph C.8(a) 
 
Remediation declaration: defined in section 78H(6). It is a document prepared 
and published by the enforcing authority recording remediation actions which it 
would have specified in a remediation notice, but which it is precluded from 
specifying by virtue of sections 78E(4) or (5), the reasons why it would have 
specified those actions and the grounds on which it is satisfied that it is precluded 
from specifying them in a notice. 
 
Remediation notice: defined in section 78E( 1) as a notice specifying what an 
appropriate person is to do by way of remediation and the periods within which he 
is required to do each of the things so specified. 
 
Remediation package: the full set or sequence of remediation actions, within a 
remediation scheme, which are referable to a particular significant pollutant linkage. 
Paragraph C .8(b) 
 
Remediation scheme: the complete set or sequence of remediation actions 

Page 76



41 

(referable to one or more significant pollutant linkages) to be carried out with 
respect to the relevant land or waters. Paragraph C.8(c) 
 
Remediation statement: defined in section 78H(7). It is a statement prepared and 
published by the responsible person detailing the remediation actions which are 
being, have been, or are expected to be, done as well as the periods within which 
these things are being done. 
 
Risk: the combination of: 
(a) the probability, or frequency, of occurrence of a defined hazard (for example, 
exposure to a property of a substance with the potential to cause harm); and 
(b) the magnitude (including the seriousness) of the consequences. Paragraph A.9 
 
Significant harm: defined in section 78A(5). It means any harm which is 
determined to be significant in accordance with the statutory guidance in Chapter A 
(that is, it meets one of the descriptions of types of harm in the second column of 
Table A of that Chapter). 
 
Significant pollutant: a pollutant which forms part of a significant pollutant linkage. 
Paragraph A.20 
 
Significant pollutant linkage: a pollutant linkage which forms the basis for a 
determination that a piece of land is contaminated land. Paragraph A.20 
 
Significant possibility of significant harm: a possibility of significant harm being 
caused which, by virtue of section 78A(5), is determined to be significant in 
accordance with the statutory guidance in Chapter A. 
 
Special site: defined by section 78A(3) as any contaminated land- 
(a) which has been designated as such a site by virtue of section 78C(7) or 
78D(6)...; and 
(b) whose designation as such has not been terminated by the appropriate Agency 
under section 78Q(4)...’. 
The effect of the designation of any contaminated land as a special site is that the 
Environment Agency, rather than the local authority, becomes the enforcing 
authority for the land. 
 
Substance: defined in section 78A(9) as any natural or artificial substance, 
whether in solid or liquid form or in the form of a gas or vapour. 
 

 
 

Page 77



42 

REFERENCES  
 
The Environmental Protection Act 1990. HMSO, London. 
 
The Environment Act 1995. HMSO, London. 
 
The Environmental Information Regulations 1992 (S.I.1992/3240 as amended). 
 
The Contaminated Land (England) Regulations 2000. Statutory Instrument No 227. 
HMSO, London. 
 
DEFRA Circular 2/2000 Environmental Protection Act 1990: Part IIA Contaminated 
Land. HMSO, London. 
 
DEFRA Circular 1/2006 Environmental Protection Act 1990: Part IIA Contaminated 
Land. HMSO, London. 
 
Department of the Environment Transport and the Regions (DETR) (2000) 
Contaminated Land Inspection Strategies, Technical Advice for Local Authorities, 
DETR (Draft for comment April 2000, Final May 2001). 
 
Department of the Environment CLR Report No. 6 Prioritisation and Categorisation 
Procedure for Sites Which May Be Contaminated. DoE (1995). 
 
Environment Agency Guidance for the Safe Development of Housing on Land 
Affected by Contamination R& D Publication 66, 2000, HMSO, London. 
 
The Environment Agency/Local Government Association 5 year plan, Working 
Better Together. July 2000. 
 
ICRCL Guidance Note 59/83 Guidance on the Assessment and Redevelopment of 
Contaminated Land. ICRCL (1987). 
 
Development on Land Affected by Contamination: YAHPAC Technical Guidance for 
Developers, Landowners and Consultants (March 2010) 
 
Local Authority Guide to the Application of Part IIA of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990. Environment Agency R&D Contract REG/CON-79 Working 
Draft 01, (2000). 
 
Department of the Environment (DoE) (1994) Planning Policy Guidance Note 23 
(PPG 23) Planning and Pollution Control. HMSO, London. 
 
Scotland and Northern Ireland Forum for Environmental Research (1999) 
Communicating Understanding of Contaminated Land Risks. SNIFFER Project 
 
The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions; Circular 11/95; DoE 1995.  
 
The Data Protection Act, 1988. 
 
Some Guidance on the use of Digital Environmental Data; BGS Technical Report 
WE199/14; March 2000; British Geological Survey and the Environment Agency. 
 

Page 78



43 

Sheffield & Barnsley Sheets 100 & 87; Solid and Drift Edition; 1:50,000 Maps; 
British Geological Survey. 
 
Groundwater Protection Maps 1, 2 and 3; Environment Agency Contaminated Land 
Strategy Document. 

 

Page 79



44 

APPENDIX 1 
SPECIAL SITES 

Once a local authority has identified land as contaminated land by definition, it must 
also consider whether it falls into the category of a special site. Special sites are 
often sites where the Environment Agency have had, or still have, an enforcement 
role. 
 
What constitutes a special site is specified in the Contaminated Land (England) 
Regulations 2000, which must always be consulted for a legal definition. In simple 
terms, however, they include: 
 
• Land which is polluting controlled waters (in certain circumstances); 
• Sites subject to Integrated Pollution Control (see Environmental Protection 

Act 1990 Part I  Prescribed Processes and Substances Regulations 1991 
schedule 1 part A); 

• Land with waste sulphuric acid tar lagoons (on sites used for refining 
benzole, used lubricants or petroleum); 

• Land used as an oil refinery; 
• Land used to manufacture or process explosives; 
• Land used to manufacture or dispose of atomic, chemical or biological 

weapons (non biological contamination only); 
• Land used for other nuclear purposes; or 
• Land owned or occupied by a defence organisation for naval, military or air 

force purposes (not off-base housing / NAFFI); 
 
Contaminated land beyond the boundary of these premises which is also 
contaminated by them forms part of the special site. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



45 

APPENDIX 2 
POLLUTION OF CONTROLLED WATERS 
 
Controlled waters are defined for the purposes of Part IIA as: 
 
• Coastal waters including docks; 
• Relevant territorial waters (usually to three miles); 
• lnland fresh waters (relevant rivers, watercourses, lakes, ponds, reservoirs, 

including bottom / channel / bed, even if dry); 
• Groundwater (section 104 of the Water Resources Act 1991). 
 
The pollution of controlled waters is defined as the entry into controlled waters of 
any poisonous, noxious or polluting matter or any solid waste matter. 
 
There is no power in the Act to enable the Secretary of State to issue guidance on 
what degree of pollution may constitute pollution of controlled waters. However, 
when considering cases where very small quantities of a contaminant are causing 
pollution, local authorities must consider what remediation it may be reasonable to 
require. This should act as a limiting factor thereby ensuring unrealistic demands 
are not made in relation to cases of very minor pollution. 
 
Pollution of controlled waters will rarely be dealt with by the local authorities, 
without expert advice and guidance from the Environment Agency.  
 
Where pollution of groundwater has occurred and the source can not be identified, 
or the 
polluting substances are contained entirely within the body of water (and not in or 
on the land), then Part IIA does not apply and the matter would be dealt with by the 
Environment Agency under Part III of the Water Resources Act 1991. 
 
Where pollution has occurred from land which subsequently affects the 
wholesomeness of drinking water within the meaning of section 67 of the Water 
Industry Act 1991 (Water Supply [Water Quality] Regulations 1989 / Private Water 
Supplies Regulations 1991), then the land becomes a special site. 
 
Where pollution has occurred from land which results in surface water failing to 
meet the criteria in Regulations made under section 82 of the Water Resources Act 
1991, then the land becomes a special site.  The Regulation include:: 
 
• The Surface Water (Dangerous Substances) (Classification) Regulations 

1989; 
• The Bathing Waters (Classification) Regulations 1991; 
• The Surface Water (Dangerous Substances) (Classification) Regulations 

1992; 
• The Surface Water (River Eco System) (Classification) Regulations 1994; 
• The Surface Water (Abstraction for Drinking Water) (Classification) 

Regulations 1996; 
• The Surface Water (Fish life) (Classification) Regulations 1997; 
• The Surface Water (Shellfish) (Classification) Regulations 1997; 
• The Surface Water (Dangerous Substances) (Classification) Regulations 

1997; 
• The Surface Water (Dangerous Substances) (Classification) Regulations 

1998. 
 
Where the pollution of a specified aquifer is caused by any of the following 
contaminants the land becomes a special site: 

Page 81



46 

 
• Organohalogen compounds and substances which may form such 

compounds in the aquatic environment; 
• Organophophorus compounds; 
• Organotin compounds; 
• Substances which possess carcinogenic, mutagenic or teratogenic 

properties in or via the aquatic environment; 
• Mercury and its compounds; 
• Cadmium and its compounds; 
• Mineral oil and other hydrocarbons; 
• Cyanides. 
 
Specified aquifers are those contained in the following rocks: 
 
• Pleistocene Norwich Crag; 
• Upper Cretaceous Chalk; 
• Lower Cretaceous Sandstones; 
• Upper Jurassic Corahhian; 
• Middle Jurassic Limestones; 
• Lower Jurassic Cotteswold Sands; 
• Permo-Triassic Sherwood Sandstone Group; 
• Upper Permian Magnesian Limestone; 
• Lower Permian Penrith Sandstone; 
• Lower Permian Cohlyhurst Sandstone; 
• Lower Permian Basal Breccias, Conglomerates and Sandstones; 
• Lower Carboniferous Limestones. 
 
In effect, this leaves local authorities with the potential responsibility for the pollution 
of controlled waters where: 
 
• Surface or coastal waters are affected but not breaching the Regulations; or 
• Groundwater (other than a principal aquifer specified above) is contaminated 

and the water is not used for drinking. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 82



47 

APPENDIX 3 
POTENTIAL RECEPTORS & CATEGORIES OF SIGNIFICANT HARM  
 
(A) Potential Receptors 
 
RECEPTOR LAND USE TYPE 
 
Human beings • Allotments 
 • Residential with gardens 
 • Residential without gardens 
 . Schools and Nurseries 
 • Recreational/parks, playing fields, open space. 
 • Commercial/industrial 
Eco systems • Areas of special scientific interest 
     (Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 section 28) 
 • National / local nature reserves 
     (Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 section 35 I National Parks & Access 
     to the Countryside Act 1949 section 21) 
 • Marine nature reserves 
     (Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 section 36) 
 • Areas for the special protection of birds 
     (Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 section 3) 
 • Special areas of conservation & special protection areas 
    (Conservation (Natural Habitats etc) Regulations 1994 regulation 10) 
 • Special areas of conservation or potential special 
  protection areas 
 • Any habitat or site afforded planning policy protection 
     Planning Policy Guidance Note 9 - Nature Conservation, para 13 
Property • Buildings (including below ground) 
 • Ancient monuments 
 • All crops including timber 
 • Produce grown domestically or on allotments for 
  consumption 
 • Livestock 
 • Other owned or domesticated animals 
 • Wild game subject to shooting or fishing rights 
Water • Territorial sea water (to three miles) 
 • Coastal waters 
 • Inland fresh waters (rivers, streams, lakes, including the 
  bottom / bed if dry) 
 • Ground waters, Source Protection Zones, Major Aquifers, 
  Water Abstraction Points 
     (Water Resources Act 1991 s104) 

Page 83



48 

(B) Categories Of Significant Harm And Description Of Harm To That Type 
Of Receptor That Is To Be Regarded As Significant Harm 
 
Type of Receptor:  
Human beings 
 
Description of Harm that is to be Regarded as Significant Harm: 
Death, disease, serious injury, genetic mutation, birth defects or the impairment of 
reproductive functions.  For these purposes, disease is to be taken to mean an 
unhealthy condition of the body or a part of it and can include, for example, 
cancer, liver dysfunction or extensive skin ailments. Mental dysfunction is included 
only insofar as it is attributable to the effects of a pollutant on the body of the 
person concerned.  This description of significant harm is referred to as a ‘human 
health effect’. 
 
 
Type of Receptor:  
Any ecological system, or living organism forming part of such a system, within a 
location which is: 
• an area notified as an area of special scientific interest under section 28 of 

the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981; 
• any land declared a national nature reserve under section 35 of that Act; 
• any area designated as a marine nature reserve under section 36 of that Act; 
• an area of special protection for birds, established under section 3 of that 

Act; 
• any European Site within the meaning of regulation 10 of the Conservation 

(Natural Habitats etc) Regulations 1994(ie Special Areas of Conservation 
and Special Protection Areas); 

• any candidate Special Areas of Conservation or potential Special Protection 
Areas given equivalent  protection; 

• any habitat or site afforded policy protection under paragraph 13 of Planning 
Policy Guidance Note 9 (PPG9) on nature conservation (ie candidate Special 
Areas of Conservation, potential Special Protection Areas and listed Ramsar 
sites); or 

• any nature reserve established under section 21 of the National Parks and 
Access to the Countryside Act 1 949. 

 
Description of Harm that is to be Regarded as Significant Harm: 
For any protected location, harm which results in an irreversible adverse change, 
or in some other substantial adverse change, in the functioning of the ecological 
system within any substantial part of that location; or harm which affects any 
species of special interest within that location and which endangers the long-term 
maintenance of the population of that species at that location. 
 
In addition, in the case of a protected location which is a European Site (or a 
candidate Special Area of Conservation or a potential Special Protection Area), 
harm which is incompatible with the favourable conservation status of natural 
habitats at that location or species typically found there. 
 
In determining what constitutes such harm, the local authority should have regard 
to the advice of English Nature and to the requirements of the Conservation 
(Natural Habitats etc) Regulations 1994. 
 
This description of significant harm is referred to as an ‘ecological system effect’. 
 
 
Type of Receptor:  
Property in the form of: 
• crops, including timber; 
• produce grown domestically, or on allotments, for consumption;   

Page 84



49 

• livestock;  
• other owned or domesticated animals;  
• wild animals which are the subject of shooting or fishing rights. 
 
Description of Harm that is to be Regarded as Significant Harm: 
For crops, a substantial diminution in yield or other substantial loss in their value 
resulting from death, disease or other physical damage. For domestic pets, death, 
serious disease or serious physical damage. For other property in this category, a 
substantial loss in its value resulting from death, disease or other serious physical 
damage. 
 
The local authority should regard a substantial loss in value as occurring only 
when a substantial proportion of the animals or crops are dead or otherwise no 
longer fit for their intended purpose.  Food should be regarded as being no longer 
fit for purpose when it fails to comply with the provisions of the Food Safety Act 
1990. Where a diminution in yield or loss in value is caused by a pollutant linkage, 
a 20% diminution or loss should be regarded as a benchmark for what constitutes 
a substantial diminution or loss. 
 
This description of significant harm is referred to as an ‘animal or crop effect’. 
 
 
Type of Receptor: 
Property in the form of buildings.  For this purpose, ‘building’ means any structure 
or erection, and any part of a building including any part below ground level, but 
does not include plant or machinery comprised in a building. 
 
Description of Harm to that Type of Receptor that is to be Regarded as 
Significant Harm: 
 
Structural failure, substantial damage or substantial interference with any right of 
occupation.  
 
For this purpose the local authority should regard substantial damage or 
substantial interference as occurring when any part of the building ceases to be 
capable of being used for the purpose for which it is or was intended. 
 
Additionally, in the case of a scheduled Ancient Monument, substantial damage 
should be regarded as occurring when the damage significantly impairs the 
historic, architectural, traditional, artistic or archaeological interest by reason of 
which the monument was scheduled. 
 
This description of significant harm is referred to as a ‘building effect’. 
 
 

Page 85



50 

(C) Significant Possibility Of Significant Harm 
 
Descriptions Of Significant Harm: 
Human health effects arising from the intake of a contaminant, or other direct 
bodily contact with a contaminant. 
 
Conditions For There Being A Significant Possibility Of Significant Harm: 
If the amount of the pollutant in the pollutant linkage in question: 
• which a human receptor in that linkage might take in, or 
• to which such a human might otherwise be exposed, as a result of the 

pathway in that linkage, would represent an unacceptable intake or direct 
bodily contact, assessed on the basis of relevant information on the 
toxicological properties of that pollutant. 

 
Such an assessment should take into account: 
• the likely total intake of, or exposure to, the substance or substances which 

form the pollutant, from all sources including that from the pollutant linkage in 
question; 

• the relative contribution of the pollutant linkage in question to the likely 
aggregate intake of, or exposure to, the relevant substance or substances;  

• the duration of intake or exposure resulting from the pollutant linkage in 
question. 

 
The question of whether an intake or exposure is unacceptable is independent of 
the number of people who might experience or be affected by that intake or 
exposure. Toxicological properties should be taken to include carcinogenic, 
mutagenic, teratogenic, pathogenic, endocrine-disrupting and other similar 
properties. 
 
 
Descriptions Of Significant Harm: 
All other human health effects (particularly by way of explosion or fire) 
 
Conditions For There Being A Significant Possibility Of Significant Harm: 
If the probability, or frequency, of occurrence of significant harm of that description 
is unacceptable, assessed on the basis of relevant information concerning: 
• that type of pollutant linkage, or 
• that type of significant harm arising from other causes. 
 
In making such an assessment, the local authority should take into account the 
levels of risk which have been judged unacceptable in other similar contexts and 
should give particular weight to cases where the pollutant linkage might cause 
significant harm which: 
• would be irreversible or incapable of being treated; 
• would affect a substantial number of people; 
• would result from a single incident such as a fire or an explosion; or 
• would be likely to result from a short-term (that is, less than 24-hour) 

exposure to the pollutant. 
 
 
Descriptions Of Significant Harm: 
All ecological system effects. 
 
Conditions For There Being A Significant Possibility Of Significant Harm: 
If either: 
• significant harm of that description is more likely than not to result from the 

pollutant linkage in question; or 
• there is a reasonable possibility of significant harm of that description being 

caused, and if that harm were to occur, it would result in such a degree of 

Page 86



51 

damage to features of special interest at the location in question that they 
would be beyond any practicable possibility of restoration. 

 
Any assessment made for these purposes should take into account relevant 
information for that type of pollutant linkage, particularly in relation to the 
ecotoxicological effects of the pollutant. 
 
 
Descriptions Of Significant Harm: 
All animal and crop effects. 
 
Conditions For There Being A Significant Possibility Of Significant Harm: 
If significant harm of that description is more likely than not to result from the 
pollutant linkage in question, taking into account relevant information for that type 
of pollutant linkage, particularly in relation to the ecotoxicological effects of the 
pollutant. 
 
 
Descriptions Of Significant Harm: 
All building effects. 
 
Conditions For There Being A Significant Possibility Of Significant Harm: 
If significant harm of that description is more likely than not to result from the 
pollutant linkage in question during the expected economic life of the building (or, 
in the case of a scheduled Ancient Monument, the foreseeable future), taking into 
account relevant information for that type of pollutant linkage. 
 

Page 87



52 

APPENDIX 4: 
CATEGORIES OF POTENTIAL CONTAMINATIVE LAND USES 
 
The list overleaf has been drawn up to provide a broad indication of the type of 
sites that are know to use, or to have used in the past, materials that could pollute 
the soil. The list is not exhaustive, and inclusion on this list does not necessary 
infer the existence of a pollutant linkage. 
 
NB: 
Animal burial and Animal by-product processing will not result in determination of 
contaminated land based on biological contaminants, as these are excluded from 
the definition of ‘substances’, but may only be relevant in the context of water 
pollution. 

 

Page 88



53 

Abattoirs       Laundries 
Adhesives manufacture      Leather manufacture 
Agriculture       Metal coating 
Aircraft manufacture      Metal manufacture 
Airports        Metal sprayers and finishers 
Animal burial       Mining 
Animal by-product processing     Mirror manufacture 
Anodisers       Motor vehicle manufacture 
Anti-corrosion treatment      Oil fuel distributors and suppliers 
Asbestos products      Oil merchants 
Asphalt works       Oil refineries 
Automotive engineering      Oil storage 
Battery manufacture      Paint and varnish manufacture 
Bearings manufacture      Paper works 
Blacksmiths       Pesticides manufacture 
Boiler makers       Petrol stations 
Bookbinding       Photographic film works 
Brass and copper tube manufacture    Photographic processing 
Brass founders       Paper manufacture 
Brewing       Plastics works 
Car manufacture      Plating works 
Carbon products manufacture     Power stations 
Cement works       Print works 
Chemical manufacture and storage    Printed circuit board manufacture 
Chrome plating  Radioactive materials processing 
Ceramics manufacture  Railway land 
Coal carbonisation  Railway locomotive manufacture 
Coal merchant  Refiners of nickel and antimony 
Concrete batching  Resin manufacture 
Coppersmiths  Rubber manufacture 
Descaling contractors (chemical)  Scrap metal dealers 
Detergent manufacture  Sealing compound manufacture 
Distilleries  Sewage works 
Dockyards  Sewage sludge disposal areas 
Drum cleaning  Sheet metal merchants & works 
Dry cleaners  Ship breakers 
Dye works  Ship builders 
Dyers and finishers  Skein silk dyers 
Electricity generation  Small arms manufacture 
Electrical engineers  Smokeless fuel manufacture 
Electro platers  Soap manufacture 
Engineering works  Solvent manufacture 
Explosives manufacture (including fireworks)  Solvent recovery 
Farms  Steel manufacture 
Fertiliser manufacture  Stove enamellers 
Fellmongers  Synthetic fibre manufacture 
Fibre glass works  Tank cleaning 
Food processing  Tanneries 
Foundries  Tar and pitch distillers 
Fuel manufacture  Textile manufacture 
Fuel storage  Thermometer makers 
Garages and depots  Timber treatment 
Gas mantle manufacture  Timber preservatives manufacture 
Gas works  Tin plate works 
Glass works  Transport depots 
Glue manufacture  Tyre manufacture and retreading 
Gum and resin manufacture  Vehicle manufacture 
Hatters  Vulcanite manufacture 
Hide and skin processors  Vulcanisers 
Ink manufacture  Waste disposal 
Iron founder  Waste recycling 
Iron works  Waste treatment 
Laquer manufacture  

Page 89



54 

APPENDIX 5 
POWERS OF ENTRY AND APPOINTMENT OF SUITABLE PERSONS 
 
Powers of Entry 
 
Section 108 of the Environment Act 1995 gives the local authority power to 
authorise, in writing, ‘suitable persons’, to investigate potentially contaminated 
land. It should be noted that these powers are not available to the Environment 
Agency. The powers which a person may be authorised to exercise include: 
 
• To enter at any reasonable time (or in urgent cases, at any time, if need be 

by force) any premises / land to make such examination and investigations 
necessary; 

• To take samples, photographs, carry out tests, install monitoring equipment 
etc. 

 
At least seven days notice must be given to residential occupiers and occupiers of 
land where heavy plant is to be used. Consent must be obtained to enter from the 
occupier, or failing that, a warrant obtained under Schedule 18 of the Act. 

 
The Council will not use these powers to obtain information about the condition of 
land where: 

 
• It can obtain the information from third parties without the need for entering 

the site;  
• A person offers to provide the information within a reasonable and specified 

time, and does so. 
 
Urgent Action 
 
Urgent action must be authorised where the Council is satisfied that there is 
imminent danger of serious harm or serious pollution of controlled waters being 
caused as a result of contaminated land.  In such circumstances the procedures 
identified in the statutory guidance will be followed which may involve the forced 
entry into the premises. 
 
The terms ‘imminent’ and ‘serious’ are not defined, and local authorities are 
advised to use the normal meaning of the words. There is, however, guidance on 
what may constitute ‘seriousness’ when assessing the reasonableness of 
remediation. 
 
The Council will undertake the remediation in urgent cases where it is the 
enforcing authority if it is of the opinion that the risk would not be mitigated by 
enforcement action. In the case of a special site the Council will declare the land 
contaminated land in accordance with the statutory procedure, and then notify the 
Environment Agency who will then be responsible for the remediation. 
 
In appropriate cases the Council will seek to recover costs of remediation works it 
has completed. 
 

Page 90



55 

‘Suitable Persons’ 
 
The science and technical procedures relating to the investigation and 
assessment of contaminated land are extremely complex. Knowledge of several 
specialised disciplines is required together with an ability to interpret significant 
amounts of data and make a reasoned judgement. 
 
Neither the Act nor the statutory guidance defines what may constitute a ‘suitable 
person’ for the purposes of the investigation and assessment of contaminated 
land. There is no list of approved consultants or any professional organisation 
which oversees the training of contaminated land specialists. There is no minimum 
qualification and no recognised qualification.  
 
At Rotherham, there will need to be training of staff in the disciplines associated 
with determining land as contaminated, including risk assessments and 
remediation, before such staff will undertake assessment and enforcement action.  
The base level of competency which it is considered will be necessary will be 
qualification to degree standard in Environmental Sciences (or similar) or 
qualification as an Environmental Health Officer and registration with EHORB, 
together with demonstration of continuing professional development and specific 
training and competency in contaminated land issues. 
 
Consultants come from a range of backgrounds including: 
 
• Environmental Health; 
• Other environmental science disciplines; 
• Surveyors; 
• Engineers; 
• Geologists; 
• Hydrologists; 
• Soil scientists; 
• Chemists etc. 

 
Ultimately, the responsibility for determining what land may or may not be 
declared contaminated lies with the Head of Environmental Health, who will often 
need to rely on the advice of appointed, ‘suitable persons’. 
 
The Head of Environmental Health is delegated with the power under this 
legislation, and will authorise officers accordingly to act on his behalf. 
 

Page 91



56 

APPENDIX 6 
ENFORCEMENT CONCORDAT  

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
Our aim is to protect the community and the environment.  Clear and consistent 
enforcement also helps businesses to compete fairly. 

 
We recognise that most businesses and individuals want to comply with the law.  
We will assist and advise wherever possible, but will take firm action against those 
who disregard the law or act irresponsibly.  This policy sets out the issues we will 
consider before taking formal enforcement action such as issuing legal notices, 
cautions or prosecutions. 

 
We have adopted the Government’s Concordat on Good Enforcement and commit 
ourselves to the following aims and procedures: - 

 
2.0 Aims 
 
2.1 Standards 
 

We will consult about the services we provide, with business and the public.  We 
will draw up clear standards setting out the level of service and performance that 
they can expect to receive.  We will publish these standards and report on our 
annual performance against them.  

 
2.2 Openness 
 

We will provide accessible information and advice, in plain language, on the 
legislation that we enforce.  We will be open about how we set about our work. 

 
2.3 Helpfulness 
 

We believe that prevention is better than cure and we will actively work with local 
business to advise and assist with compliance with the law.  We will provide a 
courteous and efficient service and our staff will identify themselves by name.  We 
will offer a contact point and telephone number to encourage further liaison. 

 
2.4 Complaints about our service 
 

All complaints will follow the council’s formal complaint procedure, which is easily 
accessible to all service users, and which explains the rights of complaint and 
appeal, including the likely timescales involved.   

 
2.5 Proportionality 
 

We will, as far as the law allows, and where co-operation is given, work with 
businesses so that they can meet their legal obligations without unnecessary 
expense.  We will take into account the costs of compliance for business by 
ensuring that any enforcement action we take or remedial action we require is 
proportional to the risks.  In relation to small businesses, voluntary and community 
organisations, we will take particular care to help them meet legal obligations 
without incurring unnecessary costs. 

Page 92



57 

2.6 Consistency 
 

We will carry out our duties in a fair, equitable and consistent manner.  Whilst 
officers must exercise judgement in individual cases, we will have arrangements in 
place to promote consistency, including liaison with other authorities and agencies.  
We recognise that there are situations where there is a shared enforcement role.  
We will ensure that in those circumstances enforcement is effectively and efficiently 
co-ordinated to avoid duplication of resources. 

 
3.0 Procedures 
 

Advice from an officer will be put clearly and simply, confirmed in writing on 
request, explaining why any remedial work is necessary and over what timescale.  
Legal requirements will be clearly distinguished from best practice advice. 
 
Before formal enforcement action is taken, there will be an opportunity to discuss 
the circumstances of a case, unless immediate action is required (e.g. to prevent 
destruction of evidence or where there is an imminent risk to health and safety). 
 
Where immediate action is taken, reasons for such action will be given at the time, 
and confirmed in writing in most cases within 5 working days, and in all cases within 
10 working days. 
 
Where there are rights of appeal against formal action, notification of the appeal 
mechanism will be clearly set out in writing at the time the action is taken. 

 
4.0 When Do We Prosecute? 
 

Before deciding whether a prosecution shall be taken against a business or 
individual, we will consider a number of factors in line with the Code for Crown 
Prosecutors.  These factors may include the following:  

 
• The seriousness of the alleged offence; 
• The history of the party concerned; 
• The willingness to prevent a recurrence of the problem and co-operate with 

officers; 
• Whether it is in the public interest to prosecute; 
• The realistic prospect of conviction; 
• Whether any other action (including a formal caution) would be more 

appropriate or effective; 
• The views of any customer and other parties with an interest in a 

prosecution. 
 

(Note:  These factors are NOT listed in order of significance.  The rating of the 
various factors will vary with each situation under consideration.) 

 
5.0  Application Of Our Policy 
 

Officers will take account of this policy when making enforcement decisions.  It will 
be read in conjunction with relevant guidance on enforcement action which may be 
produced and regard will be given to any relevant quality procedure. 

 

Page 93



58 

In cases of emergency or where exceptional conditions prevail, managers may 
suspend all or part of this policy where necessary to achieve effective running of 
the service and/or where there is a risk of injury or to health of employees or 
members of the public. 

 
6.0 Review 
 

This document will be subject to an annual review with additional reviews 
introduced to accommodate changes in legislation and local needs. 

 
 
 
 

Page 94



59 

APPENDIX 7 
MAP OF ROTHERHAM 
 
 

Page 95



 
 
 

1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe & Attractive Neighbourhoods 

2.  Date: 18th October, 2010 

3.  Title: Area Assemblies – Devolved Budget Projects 

4.  Directorate: Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 

 
5.  Summary 
 
This report is to seek approval for project proposals from the Area Assembly 
Devolved Budget for 2010. 
 
These projects will enable the delivery of local initiatives which meet community 
priorities as identified in the Community Strategy and the Area Assembly Area Plans. 
 
 
6.  Recommendations 
 
That the Cabinet Member 
 
1) Approves the projects to be funded from identified NAS budgets  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER 

Agenda Item 5Page 96



7. Proposals and Details 
 
The 2010/11 devolved budget for Area Assemblies is funded through NAS 
mainstream funding of £30k per Area Assembly. This is allocated in 2 separate pots 
of £10 k and £20k with slightly different criteria for spend. 
 
The £20k can be spent on either goods, or services. However where possible it is 
preferable that the money is spent on services – It must be spent within RMBC (but 
does not include 2010). It can be spent on capital or revenue projects. 
 
The £10k can be spent on any Area Plan and Community Strategy priorities as last 
year also taking into account: 
• Areas of public concern 
• Corporate Themes 
• NAG priorities 
• LAP (Local Ambition Programme) priorities  
• How fits with existing HMR programme(s) 
 
The 10k can be spent in house/with partners or the Vol/Com sector.  
 
The Area Assembly Devolved Budgets for 2010/11 does not need to have a 
participatory element (e.g. public vote).  All project proposals for 2010/11 are 
submitted to the Area Assembly by Elected Members, or through statutory and 
vol/com sector partners or either the NAG or Coordinating Group. The Co-ordinating 
Group agrees which projects they wish to see delivered in their area and their 
recommendations are included as Appendix 1. 
 
It is the decision of each Area Assembly Co-ordinating Group as to how they split or 
allocate the monies across Wards or AAs; however any method requires the 
agreement of the Co-ordinating Group. 
 
Attached is a list of projects which have been approved at Area Assembly 
Coordinating Groups and which now seek the approval of the Cabinet Member. 
 
 8.  Finance 
  

Proposed funding sources for the period 2010/11 include Neighbourhoods and Adult 
Services (NAS) funding of £30k. 
 
9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
 
There is a risk that a reduction in funding to the Area Assemblies’ devolved budgets 
after previous LAGBI and HMR funding ceased in 2010 will result in reduced impact 
on the local community.  This may result in a lack of confidence from the community 
and partners.  
 
There are additional risks around the delivery of projects which will need to be 
managed.  Improved systems for monitoring finance and progress are in place as 
part of the governance arrangements to mitigate risks of non delivery.  
 

Page 97



 
10.  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
The Community Empowerment White Paper: Communities in Control: Real People, 
Real Power: July 08 
 
Local Government White Paper: Strong and Prosperous Communities 2006 
 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
 
Contact Name:  Jan Leyland 

Neighbourhood Partnership Manager  
Ext 45950 

Page 98



NAS Projects - 10k 
Project and Project 
Sponsor

Ward  Cost  Code Strategic  Link Link to Area Plan Timescale Impact

 Own Code - i.e. 
P22166 7911 

Herringthorpe Rotherha
m East

        7,500.00 Safe Crime & ASB, 
facilities for 
children & yp

March 
2011

Creation of a multi-media space on former library 
site providing positive activities for young people 
across 2 Area Assemblies i.e. Rotherham South 
and Wentworth South

DVD the environment All         2,500.00 Safe Crime & ASB, 
improving the 
appearance of the 
environment

March 
2011

Waste management remains a significant issue 
in Rotherham South and Rotherham North, 
especially in Eastwood and Ferham. The DVD is 
intended to provide an pictorial, educational 
resource for the diverse communities in these 
two areas

Total allocated       10,000.00 
Unallocated                    -   
NAS Projects - 20k 
Project and Project 
Sponsor

Ward  Cost  Code Strategic  Link Link to Area Plan Timescale Impact

 Own Code - i.e. 
P22166 7932 

Youth Services All         7,500.00 Safe, Alive & 
Proud

Facilities for 
children & yp, 
engaging 
community in 
delivery

March 
2011

Deliver extra youth outreach work in locations 
identified by members and other partners 
through NAG process, and at the same time 
develop capacity of vol-com sector to deliver 
services 

Community Sports All         6,100.00 Safe Facilities for March Deliver extra community sports sessions in 
Eldon Rd Playing Fields Rotherha

m East
        3,900.00 Safe Improving the 

appearance of the 
environment

March 
2011

Tidying up an area identified by members and 
local PACT as a fly tipping hotspot

Longfellow Drive Rotherha         2,500.00 Safe Crime & ASB, March Undertaking works in order to reduce ASB at a 
Total allocated       20,000.00 
Unallocated                    -   

Rotherham South 

P
age 99



Wentworth North 

Project and Project 
Sponsor

Ward  Cost  Code  Strategic  Link Link to Area Plan Timescale Impact

WN 2010 - 6 Festive lights Wath         3,896.00  P22162 7911 Proud Community 
priority 1

Dec-10 To provide festive lights on Woodman 
roundabout, Swinton and in Wath Town centre 
between dates to be agreed. 

WN 2010 - 3 Queen Street 
Allotments

Swinton         5,742.00  P22162 7911 Safe Community 
priority 1

Dec-10 To address community safety and environmental 
enhancement of the Queen street allotment site 
by erecting a secure fence 

Total Allocated         9,638.00 
 Unallocated            362.00 

Project and Project 
Sponsor

Ward  Cost  Code Strategic  Link Link to Area Plan Timescale Impact

WN 2010 - 1 Young All       10,000.00  P22162 7932 Community To March To commission detached youth work hours in 
WN 2010 - 5 STRI Wath Wath         1,300.00  P22162 7932 Alive, Proud, 

Playing pitch 
strategy

Community 
Priorities 1 & 3

To provide a STRI report for the Pump House 
Field, Wath

WN 2010 - 10 West Melton Hoober         1,757.61  P22162 7932 Proud Community December To address community concerns with regards to 
WN 2010 - 6 Festive lights Wath         1,700.00  P22162 7932 Proud Community 

priority 1
Dec-10 To provide festive lights on Woodman 

roundabout, Swinton and in Wath Town centre 
between dates to be agreed. 

WN 2010-8 Quarry Hill 
BMX

Wath         5,242.39  P22162 7932 Alive, Proud Community 
priority 3

to march 
2011

To begin the development of a small local BMX 
facility for young users of an RMBC site at their 
request

Total  allocated       20,000.00 
Unallocated                    -   

NAS Projects - 20k 

NAS Projects - 10k 

P
age 100



NAS Projects - 10k 
Project and Project 
Sponsor

Ward  Cost  Code Strategic  Link Link to Area Plan Timescale Impact

Fitzwilliam Canal Project - 
Green Spaces - 
WS070NAS

        1,000.00  P22163 7911  Achieving, Proud, 
Alive  

2. Increase facilities and 
activities for children and 
young people

completion 
31/3/2011

Enhanced facilities on the canal for those who 
fish there. Improved environment and potentially 
engaging more people in fishing. 

Herringthorpe Multi Media 
Site - CYPS - WS073NAS

        3,500.00  P22163 7911 Achieving, Proud 2. Increase facilities and 
activities for children and 
young people

completion 
31/3/2011

Funding for revenue element of project, will 
ensure running costs. Enhancing local facilities 
which will help engage young people. 

Apollo Street Project - 
WSAA - WS077NAS

        1,800.00  P22163 7911  Safe, Proud  3. Improve standards of 
road and pavements and 
cleaner streets

completion 
31/3/2011

Provide an additional section of fencing for the 
building which will address issues of ASB - 
littering / dog fouling etc. 

St. Nicholas Walk Planters - 
WSAA - WS078NAS

        1,150.00  P22163 7911  Proud, Alive  5. Increase community 
facilities and activities

completion 
31/3/2011

Improved appearance of the area. Young people 
will be engaged in creating the planters.

Thrybergh Country Park 
Pond - Greenspaces - 
WS079NAS

        1,500.00  P22163 7911  Achieving, Proud, 
Alive  

2. Increase facilities and 
activities for children and 
young people

completion 
31/3/2011

Additional facility in the park which can be used 
for educational purposes and will help engage 
local community / Schools in the park. 

Sandhill Park Project - 
WSAA - WS080NAS

        1,000.00  P22163 7911  Achieving, Proud, 
Alive, Safe 

2. Increase facilities and 
activities for children and 
young people

completion 
31/3/2011

Improved facilities in the park, funding will 
provide a lunch event and diversionary sports 
activities once improvements are complete. 

Total allocated         9,950.00  P22163 7911 
Unallocated              50.00 

Wentworth South 
P

age 101



Wentworth South 
NAS Projects - 20k 
Project and Project 
Sponsor

Ward  Cost  Code Strategic  Link Link to Area Plan Timescale Impact

Rugby Club Fencing 
Project - WSAA - 
WS069RMBC

        9,000.00  P22163 7932  Safe, Proud  5. Increase community 
facilities and activities

completion 
31/3/2011

Fencing will ensure improved safety and 
appearance on the rugby pitch by addressing 
issue of dog fouling. 

Ivy Farm Croft (cutting back 
of trees) - WSAA - 
WS065RMBC  

        1,000.00  P22163 7932  Safe, Proud  1. Reduce the level and 
fear of crime and increase 
community safety

completion 
31/3/2011

cutting back of trees will ensure improved safety 
and appearance of the area. 

Detached Youth Work 
sessions - CYPS - 
WS071RMBC

        4,000.00  P22163 7932 Alive, Safe, Proud, 
achieving, learning 

2. Increase facilities and 
activities for children and 
young people

completion 
31/3/2011

3x2hour detached youth work sessions for a 30 
week period. Sessions will target "hot spot" 
locations, engaging with young people and sign 
posting them into activities. 

Cross Road/Silver Street 
Project - WSAA - 
WS066RMBC

        1,325.00  P22163 7932  Safe, Proud  1. Reduce the level and 
fear of crime and increase 
community safety

completion 
31/3/2011

Improved community safety and appearance of 
the area, bollards will be installed to prevent 
damage to grass and ASB. 

Verge Posts - 
Herringthorpe Avenue - 
WSAA - WS068RMBC

           175.00  P22163 7932  Safe, Proud  3. Improve standards of 
road and pavements and 
cleaner streets

completion 
31/3/2011

Improved community safety and appearance of 
the area, bollards will be installed to prevent 
damage to grass and ASB. 

Ravenfield Crossroads - 
WSAA - WS074RMBC

        2,500.00  P22163 7932  Proud  5. Increase community 
facilities and activities

completion 
31/3/2011

Planting scheme to enhance the area, ensuring 
improved appearance of the area and 
community pride. 

Sandhill Park Project - 
WSAA WS07RMBC

        2,000.00  P22163 7932  Achieving, Proud, 
Alive, Safe 

2. Increase facilities and 
activities for children and 
young people

completion 
31/3/2011

Improved facilities in the park, funding will 
provide goal posts for the field and an additional 
dog waste bin.

Total allocated       20,000.00 
Unallocated                    -   

P
age 102



NAS Projects - 10k 
Project and Project 
Sponsor

Ward Cost  Code Strategic  Link Link to Area Plan Timescale Impact

Diversionary Activities for 
Young People - CHYP 

Rother Vale 900.00  Own Code - i.e. 
P22167 7911 

 Safe, Alive Community 
priority 1 ASB, 3 - 
increased facilities 
for young people/ 
4 criminal 
damage/ 5 fear of 
crime/ 8 drugs 
misuse/ 10 
nuisance 
motorcycles

March 11 Young People engaged in positive activities, 
Young people perceived in a more positive light, 
Reduction in ASB.

PLAYSAFE Treeton Sports 
Development 

Rother Vale 900.00 As above March 11 Young People engaged in positive activities, 
Young people perceived in a more positive light, 
Reduction in ASB.

Community Chest - RVW 
AA

Rother Vale 1,000.00  Proud All March 11 Opportunity for groups to access funding

Cricket Coaching for Young 
People - Treeton Cricket 
Club

Rother Vale 500.00  Safe, Alive Community 
Priority 3 - 

March 11 Young people engaged in positive and healthy 
activities

Skate park - Brinsworth 
Catcliffe

2,000.00 Safe, Alive As above March 11 Young People engaged in positive activities, 
Young people perceived in a more positive light, 
Reduction in ASB.

Community Chest - RVW 
AA

Brinsworth 
Catcliffe

1,000.00 Proud All March 11 Opportunity for groups to access funding

Fencing at Hepworth Drive Holderness 1,750.00 Safe Community 
Priority 1,4 

March 11 Reduction in ASB and Criminal damage in a 
NAG hotspot area

Community Chest - RVW 
AA

Holderness 1,300.00 Proud All March 11 Opportunity for groups to access funding

Community 
Communications - RVW AA

Holderness 250.00 Proud Community 
Priority 9 
increased 
community activity 
and facility

March 11 Increase and improve communication for 
community activities in the Holderness Ward

Total Allocated 9,600.00
Unallocated 400.00

Rother Valley West
P

age 103



Rother Valley West
NAS Projects - 20k 
Project and Project 
Sponsor

Ward Cost  Code Strategic  Link Link to Area Plan Timescale Impact

Installation of goal posts at 
Wetherby Drive - Green 
Spaces

Rother Vale 350.00  Own Code - i.e. 
P22167 7932 

Alive Community 
Priority 3 - 

Mar-11 Improved facilities for young people

Marking of football pitches - 
Green Spaces

Rother Vale 300.00 Alive As above Mar-11 Improved facilities for young people

Sensory Garden - 
Streetpride

Rother Vale 2,600.00 proud, Alive Community 
Priority 9 

Mar-11 Provides opportunity for older people to get 
involved in a positive activity to reduce social 
isolation

Play Safe - Sports 
Development

Rother Vale 900.00 Safe, Alive Community 
priority 1, 3, 4,5, 
8,10 

Mar-11 Young People engaged in positive activities, 
Young people perceived in a more positive light, 
Reduction in ASB.

Diversionary Activities for 
Young People - CHYPS

Rother Vale 900.00 Safe, Alive Community 
priority 1, 3, 4,5, 
8,10 

Mar-11 Young People engaged in positive activities, 
Young people perceived in a more positive light, 
Reduction in ASB.

Grot Spots - Streetpride Rother Vale 500.00 Safe Proud Community 
priority 2 roads 
and pavements

Mar-11 Improved environment and street scene

CCTV Deployment - 
Streetpride

Rother Vale 300.00 Safe Community 
priority 1,4,5, 8,10 

Mar-11 Reduction in ASB and Criminal Damage in areas 
identified by the community

Ulley Country Park 
equipment - Green Spaces

Rother Vale 500.00 Alive Proud Priority 7 - parks 
and open spaces

March 11 Improved facilities in green open space

Ulley Play Ground - 
Greenspaces

Rother Vale 200.00 Alive Proud Priority 7 March 11 Improved facilities in green open space

Play Safe - Sports 
Development

Brinsworth 
Catcliffe

3,600.00 Safe, Alive Community 
priority 1,4,5, 8,10 

March 11 Young People engaged in positive activities, 
Young people perceived in a more positive light, 
Reduction in ASB.

Bollards - Nursery Drive - 
Streetpride

Brinsworth 
Catcliffe

500.00 Safe Community 
priority 2 

March 11 Improved road safety

St George Church gates - 
Streetpride

Brinsworth 
Catcliffe

1,000.00 Safe Community 
Priority 1, 4, 

March 11 Reduction of asb and criminal damage

Grot Spots - Streetpride Brinsworth 
Catcliffe

500.00 Safe/Proud Community 
priority 2 

March 11 Improved Street Scene 

CCTV Deployment - 
Streetpride

Brinsworth 
Catcliffe

300.00 Safe/Proud Community 
priority 1,4,5, 8,10 

March 11 Reduction in ASB and Criminal Damage in areas 
identified by the community

Play Safe - Sports 
Development

Holderness 1,800.00 Safe, Alive Community 
priority 1,4,5, 8,10 

March 11 Young People engaged in positive activities, 
Young people perceived in a more positive light, 
Reduction in ASB.

P
age 104



Rother Valley West
CCTV Deployment - 
Streetpride

Holderness 600.00 Safe,Proud Community 
priority 1,4,5, 8,10 

march 11 Reduction in ASB and Criminal Damage in areas 
identified by the community

Employability Course - 
Community Learning

Holderness 1,500.00 Learning, Proud, 
Alive

Community 
Priority 6 
opportunities to 
access learning 
new skills, 
Community 
priority 9 

March 11 Improved employability skills for local residents.

Outdoor Coaching - Sports 
Development

Holderness 500.00 Learning, Proud, 
Alive

Community 
Priority 6,

March 11 Residents of all ages able to take part in healthy 
activities

Grot Spots - Streetpride Holderness 500.00 Community 
priority 2 roads 
and pavements

March 11

Active Always Keep Moving 
- Sports Development

Holderness 500.00 Learning, Proud, 
Alive

Community 
Priority 6, 9 

March 11 Healthy activity for older people

Older Peoples Arts and 
Crafts - Community 
Learning 

Holderness 500.00 Learning, Proud, 
Alive

Community 
Priority 6, 9 

March 11 Positive activities for older people to combat 
social isolation 

Total allocated 18,350.00
Unallocated 1,650.00

P
age 105



 NAS Projects - 20k  
 Project and Project 
Sponsor 

 Ward  Cost  Code  Strategic  Link  Link to Area 
Plan 

 Timescale  Impact 

 Grot Spots  All         2,526.00  Own Code - i.e. 
P22164 7932 

 Safe, Proud, 
Alive, 
Sustainability 

 Improving local 
environments 

 October 
2010- 
March 
2011 

2 grot spots per month from community 
suggestions at A A meetings. Clean up area to 
improve environment and change perception . • 
Reduction in ASB – if area clean less likely  
more rubbish will be left. 
• Reduction in criminal damage – 
• Reduce Fear of Crime – People feel safer in a 
clean environment. 
• Improve Parks and Open Spaces

 Total allocated         2,526.00 
 Unallocated       17,474.00 

 Wentworth Valley  

P
age 106


	Agenda
	3 Winter Changes to the Green Bin Collection
	4 Contaminated Land Strategy Review
	Contaminated Land Strategy Appendix 1
	Contaminated Land Strategy 2010 Appendix B

	5 Area Assemblies - Devolved Budgets
	Appendix 1 Devolved Budgets


